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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark one)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended April 27, 2013
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-18225

CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its chaert)

California 77-0059951
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

170 West Tasman Drive
San Jose, California 95134

(Address of principal executive office and zip code

(408) 526-4000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti@ or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastia@s. YES NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ab site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRide 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). YHS NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated fileix] Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company O

(Do not check if a smaller
reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). YESO NO

Number of shares of the registr's common stock outstanding as of May 16, 201344,336,014
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PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)

CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except par value)
(Unaudited)

April 27, July 28,
2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,12z 9,79¢
Investments 42,26¢ 38,91°
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $225 at April 27, 2013 and $207 at 28l
2012 4,94; 4,36¢
Inventories 1,46¢ 1,66
Financing receivables, net 3,87¢ 3,661
Deferred tax assets 2,371 2,29¢
Other current assets 1,36: 1,23(
Total current assets 61,41° 61,93
Property and equipment, net 3,33( 3,40z
Financing receivables, net 3,83¢ 3,58t
Goodwill 21,64( 16,99¢
Purchased intangible assets, net 3,40¢ 1,95¢
Other assets 3,451 3,88:
TOTAL ASSETS 97,08 91,75¢
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt 3,292 31
Accounts payable 957 85¢
Income taxes payable — 27€
Accrued compensation 3,01( 2,92¢
Deferred revenue 9,05k 8,852
Other current liabilities 4,74¢ 4,78¢
Total current liabilities 21,06: 17,73
Long-term debt 12,95¢ 16,291
Income taxes payable 1,50¢ 1,84¢
Deferred revenue 3,63( 4,02¢
Other long-term liabilities 1,13¢ 55¢
Total liabilities 40,28¢ 40,45¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Equity:
Cisco shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value: 5 shares authoriretke issued and outstanding — —
Common stock and additional paid-in capital, $0.p@d value: 20,000 shares authorized; 5,315 ar@BEt
shares issued and outstanding at April 27, 2013Jalyd28, 2012, respectively 40,43: 39,27:
Retained earnings 15,66¢ 11,35¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income 68¢ 661
Total Cisco shareholders’ equity 56,78¢ 51,28¢
Noncontrolling interests 10 15
Total equity 56,79¢ 51,30:
97,08 91,75¢

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.







CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
NET SALES:
Product $ 9,55¢ % 9,10¢ $ 28,297 % 27,17¢
Service 2,657 2,48 7,891 7,19t
Total net sales 12,21¢ 11,58¢ 36,19( 34,37:
COST OF SALES:
Product 3,782 3,56: 11,387 10,77¢
Service 92¢ 85¢€ 2,71C 2,471
Total cost of sales 4,70¢ 4,41¢ 14,09: 13,24%
GROSS MARGIN 7,511 7,16¢ 22,09: 21,12«
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and development 1,54z 1,35¢ 4,42¢ 4,072
Sales and marketing 2,37 2,38: 7,17¢ 7,23(
General and administrative 53C 562 1,674 1,611
Amortization of purchased intangible assets 89 96 32¢ 29z
Restructuring and other charges 33 20 10= 22t
Total operating expenses 4,56¢ 4,41¢ 13,71 13,43(
OPERATING INCOME 2,94: 2,75( 8,38: 7,69¢
Interest income 162 161 48¢ 48¢
Interest expense (14%) (151) (440 (449)
Other income (loss), net (14 19 (69) 45
Interest and other income (loss), net 3 29 (26) 79
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 2,94t 2,77¢ 8,35¢ 7,778
Provision for income taxes 467 614 642 1,64¢
NET INCOME $ 2,47¢ % 2,168 % 7,71 $ 6,12¢
Net income per share:
Basic $ 047 $ 04C $ 14t $ 1.14
Diluted $ 0.46 $ 04C $ 144 $ 1.13
Shares used in per-share calculation:
Basic 5,32¢ 5,38¢ 5,31¢ 5,38
Diluted 5,381 5,45¢ 5,361 5,41¢
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 017 $ 0.0¢ $ 04% § 0.2(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net income $ 247¢ % 2,16t % 7,712 % 6,12¢

Available-for-sale investments:

Change in net unrealized gains, net of tax be(efjppense) of

$38 and $(7) for the three and nine months ended 20,

2013, respectively, and $(67) and $(39) for theesponding

periods of fiscal 2012, respectively (63) 98 10 55

Net gains reclassified into earnings, net of tdeas$ of $2 and
$16 for the three and nine months ended April 21,32

respectively, and $11 and $27 for the corresponpérgds of
fiscal 2012, respectively (4 (18) (30) (48)

(67) 80 (20) 7
Cash flow hedging instruments:

Change in unrealized gains and losses, net ofaagft
(expense) of $1 and $(1) for the three and ninethsended
April 27, 2013, and $0 for both corresponding pasiof fiscal

2012 (10) 11 58 (83)
Net (gains) losses reclassified into earnings 4) 18 (7 44
(14) 29 51 (39

Net change in cumulative translation adjustmentathdr, net of
tax benefit (expense) of $1 and $(14) for the tlznee nine months
ended April 27, 2013, respectively, and $0 and {#88the

corresponding periods of fiscal 2012, respectively (12¢) 21 (8) (29€)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (209) 13C 23 (32¢)
Comprehensive income 2,26¢ 2,29t 7,73¢€ 5,79¢
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to nomodiimtg interests — 2 5 12
Comprehensive income attributable to Cisco Systémas, $ 2,26¢ § 2,29: § 7,741 § 5,80¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigen by operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization, and other

Share-based compensation expense

Provision for receivables

Deferred income taxes

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Net losses (gains) on investments

Change in operating assets and liabilities, nefffeicts of acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Financing receivables
Other assets
Accounts payable
Income taxes, net
Accrued compensation
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales of investments
Proceeds from maturities of investments
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash and caslvalgmts acquired
Purchases of investments in privately held companie
Return of investments in privately held companies
Other
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuances of common stock
Repurchases of common stock - repurchase program
Shares repurchased for tax withholdings on vesifiigstricted stock units
Short-term borrowings, maturities less than 90 dags
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation
Dividends paid
Other
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Cash paid for:

Nine Months Ended

April 27, April 28,
2013 2012

$ 7,718 6,12¢
1,76( 1,81¢
88C 1,032
46 45
48 75
(48) (57)
23 (38)
(439 66C
23¢ (119)
(44¥) (762)
(42) (49%)
91 34
(642) 151
(48) (457)
(169) 482
(56) (200
8,90¢ 8,40:
(23,969 (32,690
7,27¢ 19,59:
13,23¢ 7,93(
(843%) (830)
(6,377 (339)
(240 (299)
11C 212
47 17t
(10,659 (6,244
1,19: 1,11¢
(1,559 (2,709
(249 (160)
(20 (50K)
48 57
(2,399 (1,076
42 (83)
(2,932 (3,360
(4,677) (1,207
9,79¢ 7,662
$ 5,122 6,461




Interest $ 562 $ 561
Income taxes, net $ 1,23¢ % 1,42¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(in millions, except per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)
Accumulated

Shares of Common Stock Other Total Cisco Non-

Common and Additional Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’ controlling
Nine Months Ended April 27, 201 Stock Paid-In Capital Earnings Income Equity Interests Total Equity
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 529 $ 39,27 $1135 $ 661 $ 51,28t $ 15 $ 51,30:
Net income 7,71 7,718 7,718
Other comprehensive income (loss) 28 28 5) 23
Issuance of common stock 111 1,19¢ 1,19¢ 1,192
Repurchase of common stock - repurchase progra (81) (606€) (1,007 (1,619 (1,619
Shares repurchased for tax withholdings on vesifng
restricted stock units (23 (249 (249 (249
Cash dividends declared ($0.45 per common shar (2,397 (2,392 (2,397
Tax effects from employee stock incentive plans (220 (220 (120
Share-based compensation expense 88C 88C 88C
Purchase acquisitions and other 62 62 62
BALANCE AT APRIL 27, 2013 531t $ 40,43. $ 15,66¢ $ 68 $ 56,78t $ 10 $ 56,79¢

Accumulated

Shares of Common Stock Other Total Cisco Non-

Common and Additional Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’ controlling
Nine Months Ended April 28, 201 Stock Paid-In Capital Earnings Income Equity Interests Total Equity
BALANCE AT JULY 30, 2011 543t §$ 38,64¢ $ 7,28 % 1,29¢ $ 4722t $ 33  $ 47,25¢
Net income 6,124 6,12¢ 6,124
Other comprehensive loss (31€) (31€) (12 (32§
Issuance of common stock 11C 1,11 1,11 1,11¢F
Repurchase of common stock - repurchase progra (152) (2,099 (1,469 (2,560 (2,560
Shares repurchased for tax withholdings on vesifng
restricted stock units (20 (160 (160 (160
Cash dividends declared ($0.20 per common shar (2,07¢) (1,076 (1,076
Tax effects from employee stock incentive plans (36) (36) (36)
Share-based compensation expense 1,03 1,03 1,032
Purchase acquisitions and other 8 8 8
BALANCE AT APRIL 28, 2012 538: $ 39,51C $ 10,86¢ $ 97¢ $ 5135 $ 21 $ 51,37¢

In September 2001, the Company’s Board of Directoithorized a stock repurchase program. As of Ajl2013 , the Company’s Board of Directors had
authorized an aggregate repurchase of up to $B@nbif common stock under this program with nortration date. For additional information regarding
stock repurchases, see Note 13 to the Consolitkteaicial Statements. The stock repurchases diecedception of this program and the related impaot
Cisco shareholders’ equity are summarized in thevitng table (in millions):

Common Stock and

Additional Paid- Total Cisco
Shares of Common Sto: In Capital Retained Earnings Shareholders’ Equity
Repurchases of common stock under the repurchageapn 3,821 $ 17,64° $ 60,09¢ $ 77,74¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
1. Basis of Presentatio

The fiscal year for Cisco Systems, Inc. (the “Comyjar “Cisco”) is the 52 or 53 weeks ending on thst Saturday in July. Fiscal 2013 and
fiscal 2012 are each 52-week fiscal years. The Qatated Financial Statements include the accooh@sco and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactiaw been eliminated. The Company conducts busgiekally and is primarily managed
on a geographic basis in the following three geplgiasegments: the Americas; Europe, Middle East,Africa (‘EMEA”); and Asia Pacific
Japan, and China (“APJC").

The accompanying financial data as of April 27,2@hd for the three and nine months ended ApriPR13 and April 28, 2012 has been
prepared by the Company, without audit, pursuathiéaules and regulations of the Securities anthBrge Commission (“SEC"). Certain
information and footnote disclosures normally imgd in financial statements prepared in accordarttegenerally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (“GAAP”) have bemmdensed or omitted pursuant to such rules andatons. The July 28, 2012
Consolidated Balance Sheet was derived from auéflitadcial statements, but does not include altldsures required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stdtesvever, the Company believes that the disclosaresdequate to make the information
presented not misleading. These Consolidated FialaGtatements should be read in conjunction with@onsolidated Financial Statements
and the notes thereto included in the Company'suAhReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endelg 28, 2012.

The Company consolidates its investment in a verfiund managed by SOFTBANK Corp. and its affiliafE&OFTBANK”) and Insieme
Networks, Inc. “Insieme”) as these are variable interest entiied the Company is the primary beneficiary. Thecoatrolling interests
attributed to SOFTBANK are presented as a sepamatgonent from the Company's equity in the equéttien of the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. SOFTBANK's share of the earnings in théweriund and the loss attributable to the nonabdlimyg interests in Insieme are not
presented separately in the Consolidated Statern&ftperations as these amounts are not materiahfyp of the fiscal periods presented.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (Winclude normal recurring adjustments, exceptisslased herein) necessary to present
fairly the statement of financial position as ofrfh@27, 2013 ; the results of operations for theethand nine months ended April 27, 2013 and
April 28, 2012 ; and the statements of cash flond @quity for the nine months ended April 27, 2@h8 April 28, 2012 , as applicable, have
been made. The results of operations for the thneenine months ended April 27, 2013 are not neciégindicative of the operating results
for the full fiscal year or any future periods.

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaod amounts in order to conform to the curremiquks presentation. The Company has
evaluated subsequent events through the datehthéinaincial statements were issued.

2. Recent Accounting Pronouncemen
(8) New Accounting Updates Recently Adopte

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&¢'FASB”) issued an accounting standard update to providéagué on increasing tl
prominence of items reported in other comprehernisi’eme, which eliminated the option to present ponents of other comprehensive
income as part of the statement of equity. The Gom@mdopted this accounting standard in the finstrigr of fiscal 2013.

In August 2011, the FASB approved a revised acéogistandard update intended to simplify how aiitetests goodwill for impairment.

The amendment will allow an entity to first assesalitative factors to determine whether it is resegy to perform the two-step quantitative
goodwill impairment test. An entity no longer wilé required to calculate the fair value of a rapgrunit unless the entity determines, based
on a qualitative assessment, that it is more likedn not that its fair value is less than its yiag amount. This accounting standard update
became effective for the Company beginning in tret §uarter of fiscal 2013, and its adoption did have any impact on the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) Recent Accounting Standards or Updates Not Yet Effgive

In December 2011, the FASB issued an accountinglatd update requiring enhanced disclosures algotsic financial instruments and
derivative instruments that are offset in the sieet of financial position or that are subject mdoeceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements. This accounting standard upadéitbe effective for the Company beginning in tirst quarter of fiscal 2014, at which
time the Company will include the required discliesu




CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Unaudited)

In July 2012, the FASB issued an accounting stahdpdate intended to simplify how an entity testiefinite-lived intangible assets other
than goodwill for impairment by providing entitiesth an option to perform a qualitative assessnieietermine whether further impairment
testing is necessary. This accounting standardtapudl be effective for the Company beginning fire tfirst quarter of fiscal 2014, and early
adoption is permitted. The adoption of this accognstandard update is not expected to have a iakbitapact on the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued an accountingdsta update to require reclassification adjusts@oim other comprehensive income to
be presented either in the financial statements thre notes to the financial statements. This acting standard update will be effective for
the Company beginning in the first quarter of fis2@14, at which time the Company will include tieguired disclosures.

In March 2013, the FASB issued an accounting stahdpdate requiring an entity to release into nebime the entire amount of a cumula
translation adjustment related to its investmerat foreign entity when as a parent it either selisrt or all of its investment in a foreign en
or no longer holds a controlling financial intergst subsidiary or group of assets within a faneggtity. This accounting standard update
be effective for the Company beginning in the figeairter of fiscal 2015. The Company is currentigleating the impact of this accounting
standard update on its Consolidated Financial Siés.

3. Business Combination
(8) Acquisition Summary

On July 30, 2012, the Company completed its acipiisof NDS Group Limited (“NDS”), a leading prowd of video software and content
security solutions that enable service providesraadia companies to securely deliver and monegzevideo entertainment experiences.
The acquisition of NDS is expected to complement @ccelerate the delivery of Cisco Videoscape(bmpany's comprehensive content
delivery platform that enables service providerd aredia companies to deliver next-generation eaitertent experiences. With the NDS
acquisition, the Company aims to broaden its opmities in the service provider market and to expigmreach into emerging markets such
as China and India, where NDS has an establish&tdroer presence.

Under the terms of the acquisition agreement, thmiany paid total cash consideration of approxiipai8.0 billion, which included the
repayment of $993 million of pre-existing NDS débthird party creditors at the closing of the dsiion. The following table summarizes
the purchase consideration for the NDS acquisifiomillions):

Fair Value
Cash consideration to seller $ 4,01z
Repayment of NDS debt to third party creditors 99¢
Total purchase consideration $ 5,00¢

The payment of the total purchase consideratiappfoximately $5.0 billion shown above, net of castl cash equivalents acquired, is
classified as a use of cash under investing aietivib the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The Company's purchase price allocation for ND@&diminary and subject to revision as additiombimation about fair value of assets .
liabilities becomes available. Additional infornmti which existed as of the acquisition date bdhat time was unknown to the Company,
may become known to the Company during the remaioitihe measurement period, a period not to exé@edonths from the acquisition
date. Adjustments in the purchase price allocatiay require a recasting of the amounts allocateptmiwill retroactive to the period in
which the acquisition occurred.

A summary of the preliminary allocation of the iqtarchase consideration for NDS is presented lk®afe (in millions):

Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98
Accounts receivable, net 19¢
Other tangible assets 26€
Goodwill 3,441
Purchased intangible assets 1,74¢
Deferred tax liabilities, net (37¢)
Liabilities assumed (372)
Total purchase consideration $ 5,00¢







CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Unaudited)

The Company completed nine additional business amatibns during the nine months ended April 27,20A summary of the allocation of
the total purchase consideration is presentedliasvi(in millions):

Purchase Net Liabilities Purchased
Consideration Assumed Intangible Assets Goodwill
Meraki Inc. $ 974 % 59 ¢ 28¢ % 744
Intucell, Ltd 36C (23 10€ 277
All others (seven in total) 24¢ (18) 88 17¢€
Total other acquisitions $ 158 $ (100 $ 48: $ 1,19;

The Company acquired privately held Meraki Inc. €fdki”) in the second quarter of fiscal 2013. Méafkers mid-market customers on-
premise networking solutions centrally managed fthencloud. With its acquisition of Meraki, the Cpamy intends to address the shift to
cloud networking as a key part of the Company'sali/strategy to accelerate the adoption of sofealzssed business models that provide
new consumption options for customers and reveppentunities for partners. The Company has incluskdds from the Meraki acquisition,
subsequent to the acquisition date, in its Wirepgssguct category.

The Company acquired privately held Intucell, L{tdhtucell”) in the third quarter of fiscal 2013ntucell provides advanced self-optimizing
network software for mobile carriers. With its ajtion of Intucell, the Company intends to enhaitseommitment to global service
providers by adding a critical network intelligerlager to manage and optimize spectrum, coveradeapacity, and ultimately the quality
the mobile experience.

The total purchase consideration related to the gamyl's business combinations completed duringitteemonths ended April 27, 2013
consisted of cash consideration, repayment of delot,vested share-based awards assumed. Thentotah and cash equivalents acquired
from these business combinations was approxim&tehi million .

(b) Other Acquisition/Divestiture Information

Total transaction costs related to the Companysinkess combination activities were $23 million &3dmillion for the nine months ended
April 27, 2013 and April 28, 2012 , respectiveljheBe transaction costs were expensed as incurgehagal and administrative (“G&A”)
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Opasatio

The goodwill generated from the Company's busisessbinations completed during the nine months edged 27, 2013 is primarily
related to expected synergies. The goodwill is gahyenot deductible for U.S. federal income taxpmses.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include fegating results of each business combination fterdate of acquisition. Pro forma
results of operations for the acquisitions comgletering the nine months ended April 27, 20ib¥e not been presented because the effe
the acquisitions, individually and in the aggregatere not material to the Company's financial ltssu

During the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the Camyegreed to sell its Linksys product line to adtparty. This transaction closed during
third quarter of fiscal 2013. The financial statemienpact of the Company's Linksys product line #nelresulting sale were not material for
any of the periods presented.

4. Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Asse!
(a) Goodwill

The following table presents the goodwill allocatedhe Company's reportable segments as of andgdiive nine months ended April 27,
2013 (in millions):

Balance at Other Balance at
July 28, 2012 NDS Acquisitior  Acquisitions Other April 27, 2013
Americas $ 11,758 % 1,23C $ 641 $ B $ 13,61¢
EMEA 3,287 1,323 35¢ 5 4,972
APJC 1,95¢ 887 20z 4 3,05(C
Total $ 16,99¢ $ 344  $ 1,197 $ 1 3 21,64(

In the preceding table, the column entitled “Othiecludes a goodwill reduction related to divesstactivity and purchase accounting
adjustments.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Unaudited)

(b) Purchased Intangible Assel

The following table presents details of the Compamtangible assets acquired through business ioatitns completed during the nine
months ended April 27, 2013 (in millions, excepass:

INDEFINITE
FINITE LIVES LIVES
CUSTOMER
TECHNOLOGY RELATIONSHIPS OTHER IPR&D TOTAL
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Useful Average Useful Average Useful
Life (in Years) Amount Life (in Years) Amount Life (in Years) Amount Amount Amount
NDS Group Limited 6.4 $ 807 6.7 $ 81¢ 74 $ 27 % 94 $ 1,74¢
Meraki Inc. 8.0 25¢ 6.0 30 — — — 28¢
Intucell, Ltd. 5.0 59 5.0 11 — — 36 10€
All others (seven in total) 4.1 61 6.3 12 5.C 1 14 88
Total $ 1,18¢ $ 871 $ 28 3 144 $ 2,22¢
The following tables present details of the Compapurchased intangible assets (in millions):
Accumulated
April 27, 2013 Gross Amortization Net
Purchased intangible assets with finite lives:
Technology 3,50C % (1,316 2,18¢
Customer relationships 1,791 (640) 1,151
Other 46 (23) 23
Total purchased intangible assets with finite lives 5,331 (1,979 3,35¢
In-process research and development, with indefiiies 50 — 50
Total 5387 $ (1,979 3,40¢
Accumulated
July 28, 2012 Gross Amortization Net
Purchased intangible assets with finite lives:
Technology 2,267 $ (90€) 1,35¢
Customer relationships 2,261 (1,669) 592
Other 49 (42) 8
Total 4577 $ (2,61¢) 1,95¢

Purchased intangible assets include intangiblesasquired through business combinations as wehrm@ugh direct purchases or licenses.

The following table presents the amortization afghased intangible assets (in millions):

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Amortization of purchased intangible assets:
Cost of sales $ 15¢€ $ 10 $ 444 3 30z
Operating expenses 96 32¢ 292
Total $ 24 $ 204 % 77 % 59t

There were no impairment charges related to puezhagangible assets during the periods presented.
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CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Unaudited)

The estimated future amortization expense of pugethéntangible assets with finite lives as of Agidl 2013 is as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2013 (remaining three months) $ 232
2014 862
2015 78C
2016 554
2017 39¢
Thereafter 531
Total $ 3,35¢

5. Restructuring and Other Charges

In fiscal 2011, the Company initiated a number &f kargeted actions to address several areashnstaess model. These actions were
intended to simplify and focus the Company's orgaindn and operating model, align the Company's &ngcture given transitions in the
marketplace, divest or exit underperforming operatj and deliver value to the Company's sharehaldére Company initiated these actions
to align its business based on its five foundafipniarities: leadership in its core business (hogit switching, and associated services), which
includes comprehensive security and mobility sohsi collaboration; data center virtualization atwld; video; and architectures for
business transformation.

Pursuant to the restructuring that the Company ameed in July 2011, the Company has incurred cutimalaharges of approximately $1.1
billion (included as part of the charges discudseldw). The Company has substantially completeditiie 2011 restructuring and does not
expect significant remaining charges related tgeatections. The following table summarizes thevaies related to the restructuring and
other charges pursuant to the Company's July 20dduamcement related to the realignment and restiingtof the Company's business as
well as certain consumer product lines as annoudaedg April 2011 (in millions):

Voluntary Early Goodwill and
Retirement Employee Intangible
Program Severance Assets Other Total
Gross charges in fiscal 2011 $ 45 % 247 % 71 % 28 $% 79¢
Cash payments (43¢ (13 — — (449
Non-cash items — — (72 a7 (88)
BALANCE AT JULY 30, 2011 $ 17 ¢ 234 % —  $ 11 % 262
Gross charges in fiscal 2012 — 29¢ — 54 358
Change in estimate related to fiscal 2011 charges — (49 — — (49
Cash payments @7 (401) — (18) (43€)
Non-cash items — — — (20 (20
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 $ — 3 83 % — $ 27 % 11C
Charges in fiscal 2013 — 111 — (6) 10t
Cash payments — (164) — (10) (1749
Non-cash items — — — ©)] ©)]
BALANCE AT APRIL 27, 2013 $ — % 30 % — 3 8 $ 38
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6. Balance Sheet Detai

The following tables provide details of selectethbae sheet items (in millions):

April 27, July 28,
2013 2012
Inventories:

Raw materials $ 81 % 127
Work in process 38 35

Finished goods:
Distributor inventory and deferred cost of sales 67¢ 63C
Manufactured finished goods 37¢ 597
Total finished goods 1,057 1,223
Service-related spares 252 213
Demonstration systems 40 61
Total $ 1,46¢ $ 1,66:

Property and equipment, net:

Land, buildings, and building and leasehold improeats $ 4,437 % 4,36:
Computer equipment and related software 1,392 1,46¢
Production, engineering, and other equipment 5,65¢ 5,36¢
Operating lease asséfs 29¢ 30C
Furniture and fixtures 497 487
12,28( 11,98
Less accumulated depreciation and amortizadtion (8,950 (8,58))
Total $ 333 $ 3,40z

@ Accumulated depreciation related to operaage assets was $185 and $181 as of April 28 a0d July 28, 2012, respective

Other assets:

Deferred tax assets $ 1,787 $ 2,27(
Investments in privately held companies 83t 85¢
Other 82¢ 754

Total $ 3451 $ 3,88:

Deferred revenue:

Service $ 8,70t % 9,17:
Product:
Unrecognized revenue on product shipments and déferred revenue 3,25 2,97¢
Cash receipts related to unrecognized revenue finmier distributors 728 732
Total product deferred revenue 3,98( 3,70
Total $ 12,68 $ 12,88(
Reported as:
Current $ 9,05t % 8,85:
Noncurrent 3,63( 4,02¢
Total $ 12,68 $ 12,88(
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7. Financing Receivables and Guarantes
(a) Financing Receivable

Financing receivables primarily consist of leasmieables, loan receivables, and financed senooéracts and other. Lease receivables
represent sales-type and direct-financing leasastiieg from the sale of the Company's and comptearg third-party products and are
typically collateralized by a security interestlive underlying assets. Loan receivables repreg@anding arrangements related to the sale of
the Company's products and services, which mawdechdditional funding for other costs associatél metwork installation and integratic

of the Company's products and services. Leasevadales consist of arrangements with terms of faary on average, while loan receivables
generally have terms of up to three years . Thenfied service contracts and other category inclfidascing receivables related to technical
support and advanced services, as well as recesablated to financing of certain indirect costsoiated with leases. Revenue related t
technical support services is typically deferred atluded in deferred service revenue and is neizeg ratably over the period during which
the related services are to be performed, whicltcéjly ranges from one to three years .

A summary of the Company’s financing receivablegrasented as follows (in millions):

Financed Service Total Financing
April 27, 2013 Lease Receivables Loan Receivables Contracts and Other Receivables
Gross $ 3,76« $ 1,671 $ 292 % 8,35¢
Unearned income (28€) — — (28€)
Allowance for credit loss (24%) (93 (29 (357)
Total, net $ 3,23: % 157¢ % 290t % 7,71¢€
Reported as:
Current $ 1,400 $ 90C % 157¢ % 3,87¢
Noncurrent 1,83 67€ 1,32 3,83¢
Total, net $ 3,23t $ 1,57¢ § 2,90t $ 7,71¢€
Financed Service Total Financing
July 28, 2012 Lease Receivables Loan Receivables Contracts and Other Receivables
Gross $ 3,42¢ % 1,79¢ $ 2,651 $ 7,87¢
Unearned income (250 — — (250
Allowance for credit loss (247) (122 (17) (380)
Total, net $ 293 % 1,672 % 264C % 7,24¢
Reported as:
Current $ 1,20 $ 96 $ 1,49 $ 3,661
Noncurrent 1,73: 70€ 1,14 3,58¢
Total, net $ 293 % 1,672 % 264C $ 7,24¢

As of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012, the defdrservice revenue related to the financed senaogéracts and other was $1,825 million and
$1,838 million , respectively.

Contractual maturities of the gross lease rece@sat April 27, 2013 are summarized as followsr(ilions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2013 (remaining three months) $ 51€
2014 1,477
2015 957
2016 53t
2017 234
Thereafter 45
Total $ 3,76¢

Actual cash collections may differ from the contuat maturities due to early customer buyoutspeeftings, or defaults.



14




CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(Unaudited)

(b) Credit Quality of Financing Receivable:

Financing receivables categorized by the Compantgsnal credit risk rating as of April 27, 2013daduly 28, 2012 are summarized as
follows (in millions):

INTERNAL CREDIT RISK RATING

Residual Gross Receivables,
April 27, 2013 lto4 5t06 7 and Higher Total Value Net of Unearned Incorr
Lease receivables $ 165« $ 147¢ $ 87 $ 3217 % 261 $ 3,47¢
Loan receivables 85¢ 77¢ 33 1,671 — 1,671
Financed service contracts and other 1,62( 1,16( 144 2,92¢ — 2,92¢
Total $ 4,13 % 341 % 264 $ 781 % 261 $ 8,07:

INTERNAL CREDIT RISK RATING

Residual Gross Receivables,
July 28, 2012 lto4 5t06 7 and Higher Total Value Net of Unearned Incorr
Lease receivables $ 1532 $ 1347 $ 31 $ 290t % 274 $ 3,17¢
Loan receivables 831 921 44 1,79¢ — 1,79¢
Financed service contracts and other 1,552 1,03( 69 2,651 — 2,651
Total $ 391t $ 3,29 % 144  $ 7,35 % 274 % 7,62¢

The Company determines the adequacy of its alloeémccredit loss by assessing the risks and lasbesent in its financing receivables by
portfolio segment. The portfolio segment is basedhe types of financing offered by the Companitd@ustomers: lease receivables, loan
receivables, and financed service contracts anef.oth

The Company's internal credit risk ratings of Jothgh 4 correspond to investment-grade ratings,endriédit risk ratings of 5 ando®rrespon
to non-investment grade ratings. Credit risk rainfy7 and higher correspond to substandard ratingsonstitute a relatively small portion
of the Company's financing receivables.

In circumstances when collectibility is not deemedsonably assured, the associated revenue isatbéferaccordance with the Company's
revenue recognition policies, and the related aloge for credit loss, if any, is included in dedéerrevenue. The Company also records
deferred revenue associated with financing recé@galvhen there are remaining performance obligatias it does for financed service
contracts. Total allowances for credit loss aneédefl revenue as of April 27, 2013 and July 28 220&re $2,275 million and $2,387

million , respectively, and they were associatetth\financing receivables (net of unearned inconié8p073 million and $7,626 million as of
their respective period ends. The Company did raifp any financing receivables during the peripdssented.

The following tables present the aging analysir@ncing receivables as of April 27, 2013 and 28y 2012 (in millions):

DAYS PAST DUE (INCLUDES BILLED
AND UNBILLED)

Gross

Receivables, Non-Accrual Impaired

Total Net of Unearne Financing Financing
April 27, 2013 31-60 61-90 91+ Past Due Current Income Receivables  Receivables
Lease receivables $ 11¢ $ 45 $ 216 $ 38C $ 3,09¢ $ 3,47¢ $ 23 % 17
Loan receivables 26 2 12 40 1,631 1,671 11 11
Financed service contracts and other 79 24Z 424 74¢ 2,17¢ 2,92¢ 20 10
Total $ 224 $ 29C $ 652 $ 1,166 $ 6,907 $ 8,07t $ 54 % 38
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DAYS PAST DUE (INCLUDES BILLED
AND UNBILLED)

Gross
Receivables, Non-Accrual Impaired

Total Net of Unearne Financing Financing
July 28, 2012 31-60 61-90 91+ Past Due Current Income Receivables  Receivables
Lease receivables $ 151 $ 68 $ 177 $ 39: $ 2,78 $ 3,17¢  $ 23 % 14
Loan receivables 10 8 11 29 1,767 1,79¢ 4 4
Financed service contracts and other 89 68 392 54¢ 2,10z 2,651 18 10
Total $ 25C $ 145 $ 57¢ % 971 $ 6,655 $ 7,62¢ $ 45 % 28

Past due financing receivables are those thatlada@s or more past due according to their contegtayment terms. The data in the
preceding tables are presented by contract, anagiing classification of each contract is basetherldest outstanding receivable, and
therefore past due amounts also include unbillebcamrent receivables within the same contract. @dances of either unbilled or current
financing receivables included in the category bfiays plus past due for lease receivables, lca@ivables, and financed service contracts
and other were, respectively, $175 million , $6lionl , and $334 million as of April 27, 2013 . Tamounts were, respectively, $139 million,
$3 million , and $313 million as of July 28, 2012.

As of April 27, 2013 , the Company had financingai@ables of $110 million , net of unbilled or cemt receivables from the same contract,
that were in the category for 91 days plus pasttdieemained on accrual status. Such balance %@& illion as of July 28, 2012. A
financing receivable may be placed on nonaccraalistearlier if, in management's opinion, a tinwlfection of the full principal and intert
becomes uncertain.

(c) Allowance for Credit Loss Rollforward

The allowances for credit loss and the relatednfingg receivables are summarized as follows (itioni):

CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
Financed Service

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Lease Receivables Loan Receivables Contracts and Other Total
Allowance for credit loss as of January 26, 2013 $ 247 % 101 % 13  $ 361
Provisions 30 8 6 44
Write-offs net of recoveries (29) (15) — (44)
Foreign exchange and other 3 (1) — (4
Allowance for credit loss as of April 27, 2013 $ 248 $ 93 % 19 $ 357
Gross receivables as of April 27, 2013,

net of unearned income $ 3,47¢ % 1,671 $ 292¢ % 8,07¢

CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
Financed Service

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Lease Receivables Loan Receivables Contracts and Other Total
Allowance for credit loss as of July 28, 2012 $ 247 $ 122 $ 11 $ 38C
Provisions 27 (15) 8 20
Write-offs net of recoveries (29 (15) — (44)
Foreign exchange and other — 1 — 1
Allowance for credit loss as of April 27, 2013 $ 248 $ 93 % 19 $ 357
Gross receivables as of April 27, 2013,

net of unearned income $ 3,47¢ % 1,671 $ 292¢ % 8,07¢
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CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
Financed Service

Three Months Ended April 28, 2012 Lease Receivables Loan Receivables Contracts and Other Total
Allowance for credit loss as of January 28, 2012 $ 25C $ 11C  $ 9 $ 36¢
Provisions 3 7 2 12
Write-offs net of recoveries (@) — — @)
Foreign exchange and other — 1 — 1
Allowance for credit loss as of April 28, 2012 $ 25z % 11€  $ 11 $ 381
Gross receivables as of April 28, 2012,

net of unearned income $ 3,15:  $ 1827 $ 262t ¢ 7,60¢

CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCES
Financed Service

Nine Months Ended April 28, 2012 Lease Receivables Loan Receivables Contracts and Other Total
Allowance for credit loss as of July 30, 2011 $ 237 $ 102 27 % 367
Provisions 23 1€ (14) 25
Write-offs net of recoveries (@) — — €))
Foreign exchange and other ©) (@] )] (10
Allowance for credit loss as of April 28, 2012 $ 25z % 11€  $ 11 $ 381
Gross receivables as of April 28, 2012,

net of unearned income $ 3,15:  $ 1827 $ 262t $ 7,60¢

The Company assesses the allowance for creditéteted to financing receivables on either an iiadial or a collective basis. The Company
considers various factors in evaluating lease aad teceivables and the earned portion of finaseedce contracts for possible impairment
on an individual basis. These factors include tben@any's historical experience, credit quality agd of the receivable balances, and
economic conditions that may affect a customeilgytn pay. When the evaluation indicates thasiprobable that all amounts due pursuant
to the contractual terms of the financing agreemantuding scheduled interest payments, are unatbe collected, the financing receivable
is considered impaired. All such outstanding amsuntluding any accrued interest, will be assessetifully reserved at the customer level.

Typically, the Company also considers receivablis avrisk rating of 8 or higher to be impaired amitl include them in the individual
assessment for allowance. These balances, as v2&XpP013 and July 28, 2012, are presented ut{bgCredit Quality of Financing
Receivables” above.

The Company evaluates the remainder of its finanoceivables portfolio for impairment on a colleetbasis and records an allowance for
credit loss at the portfolio segment level. Whealeating the financing receivables on a collecbasis, the Company uses expected default
frequency rates published by a major third-pargditrrating agency as well as its own historicakloate in the event of default, while also
systematically giving effect to economic conditipasncentration of risk, and correlation.

(d) Financing Guarantee:

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyiges financing guarantees for various third-péirtgncing arrangements extended to
channel partners and end-user customers. Paynmahs these financing guarantee arrangements wereaterial for the periods presented.

Channel Partner Financing Guarant&ése Company facilitates arrangements for thirdypfinancing extended to channel partners,
consisting of revolving short-term financing, geadrwith payment terms ranging from 60 to 90 day$ese financing arrangements
facilitate the working capital requirements of ti@nnel partners, and, in some cases, the Compemgirgees a portion of these
arrangements. The volume of channel partner fimgnaias $5.8 billion and $5.2 billion for the thm@enths ended April 27, 2013 and

April 28, 2012 , respectively. The volume of charpertner financing was $17.2 billion and $15.9idil for the nine months ended April 27,
2013 and April 28, 2012 , respectively. The balapfcéhe channel partner financing subject to guaesmwas $1.4 billion and $1.2 billion as
of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012, respectively.
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EndUser Financing Guaranteékhe Company also provides financing guaranteethfai-party financing arrangements extended to eset
customers related to leases and loans, which tjypitave terms of up to three years. The volumér@ncing provided by third parties for
leases and loans as to which the Company had gabgdarantees was $38 million and $99 million Fer three months ended April 27, 2013
and April 28, 2012 , respectively, and was $137ionland $194 million for the nine months ended iRp¥, 2013 and April 28, 2012 ,
respectively.

Financing Guarantee Summafhe aggregate amounts of financing guaranteesamualisg at April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012, repnging
the total maximum potential future payments underfcing arrangements with third parties along whthrelated deferred revenue, are
summarized in the following table (in millions):

April 27, July 28,
2013 2012
Maximum potential future payments relating to fioigig guarantees:
Channel partner $ 391 % 271
End user 25E 23z
Total $ 64€ $ 50¢
Deferred revenue associated with financing guaesnte
Channel partner $ (227 $ (193)
End user (229 (200)
Total $ (450 $ (399
Maximum potential future payments relating to fiogay guarantees, net of associated deferred
revenue $ 19€ $ 11€

8. Investments
(a) Summary of Available-for-Sale Investment

The following tables summarize the Company'’s awddor-sale investments (in millions):

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized

April 27, 2013 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Fixed income securities:

U.S. government securities $ 28,39¢ $ 45 % — 3 28,44
U.S. government agency securities 3,291 12 — 3,30¢
Non-U.S. government and agency securities 1,007 5 — 1,01z
Corporate debt securities 7,32t 104 @ 7,42¢
Total fixed income securities 40,027 16€ (1) 40,19:
Publicly traded equity securities 1,53( 54¢ 4 2,07¢
Total $ 41,557 $ 714 % (5) $ 42,26¢

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized

July 28, 2012 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Fixed income securities:

U.S. government securities $ 24,20. $ 41 $ 1 $ 24,24
U.S. government agency securities 5,361 21 — 5,38¢
Non-U.S. government and agency securities 1,62¢ 9 — 1,63¢
Corporate debt securities 5,95¢ 74 3 6,03(
Total fixed income securities 37,15¢ 14k 4 37,29'
Publicly traded equity securities 1,107 524 (12) 1,62(
Total $ 38,26! $ 66 $ (15 $ 38,91°
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U.S. government agency securities include corpatele securities that are guaranteed by the FeBegadsit Insurance Corporation, while
non-U.S. government and agency securities inclgéaey and corporate debt securities that are gtesdioy non-U.S. governments.

(b) Gains and Losses on Available-foSale Investment

The following table presents the gross realizedgjand gross realized losses related to the Cortgangilable-for-sale investments (in
millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Gross realized gains $ 55 $% 9q $ 17t $ 465
Gross realized losses (49 (60) (129 (389)
Total $ 6 $ 30 3 46 $ 76

The following table presents the realized net géimsses) related to the Company's available-fta-isaestments by security type (in
millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net gains (losses) on investments in publicly toadguity securities$ 2 $ 15 $ 12 % 30
Net gains on investments in fixed income securities 8 15 34 46
Total $ 6 $ 30 $ 446 $ 76

There were no impairment charges on available-dte-svestments for the periods presented.

The following tables present the breakdown of thelable-for-sale investments with gross unrealibssges and the duration that those losses
had been unrealized at April 27, 2013 and July2232 (in millions):

UNREALIZED LOSSES UNREALIZED LOSSES
LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
April 27, 2013 Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government securities $ — 3 — — % — % — 3 —
Corporate debt securities 60z @ — — 602 (1)
Total fixed income securities 602 D) — — 602 1)
Publicly traded equity securities 61 (4) — — 61 4
Total $ 66 $ G) $ — % — % 665 $ (5)
UNREALIZED LOSSES UNREALIZED LOSSES
LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
July 28, 2012 Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Fixed income securities:

U.S. government securities $ 5351 $ 1 $ — $ —  $ 53571 $ (1)
Corporate debt securities 602 (3 14 — 617 3
Total fixed income securities 5,96( 4 14 — 5,97¢ 4
Publicly traded equity securities 167 (8) 20 ©) 187 (12)
Total $ 6,127 $ (12 $ 34 $ (3) $ 6,161 $ (15)
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As of April 27, 2013 , for fixed income securitiggat were in unrealized loss positions, the Comges/determined that (i) it does not have
the intent to sell any of these investments, aifid {5 not more likely than not that it will bequired to sell any of these investments before
recovery of the entire amortized cost basis. Intadd as of April 27, 2013, the Company anticgmthat it will recover the entire amortized
cost basis of such fixed income securities anddetermined that no other-than-temporary impairmass®ciated with credit losses were
required to be recognized during the three and miaeths ended April 27, 2013 .

The Company has evaluated its publicly traded gcpgiturities as of April 27, 2013 and has deterchihat there was no indication of other-
than-temporary impairments in the respective categof unrealized losses. This determination waset on several factors, which include
the length of time and extent to which fair valies heen less than the cost basis, the financiditimm and near-term prospects of the issuer,
and the Company's intent and ability to hold thklisly traded equity securities for a period of éisufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in market value.

(c) Maturities of Fixed Income Securitie!

The following table summarizes the maturities & @ompany’s fixed income securities at April 2712@in millions):

Amortized Cost Fair Value
Less than 1 year $ 16,46( $ 16,47¢
Due in 1 to 2 years 12,15¢ 12,20:
Due in 2 to 5 years 11,27: 11,36:
Due after 5 years 14C 14¢
Total $ 40,027 $ 40,19:

Actual maturities may differ from the contractuaturities because borrowers may have the righalicoc prepay certain obligations.
(d) Securities Lending

The Company periodically engages in securitiesitendctivities with certain of its available-forisanvestments. These transactions are
accounted for as a secured lending of the securdigd the securities are typically loaned onlaprovernight basis. The average daily
balance of securities lending for the nine montidee April 27, 2013 and April 28, 2012 was $0.Tidnil and $0.4 billion , respectively. The
Company requires collateral equal to at least 102%e fair market value of the loaned securityhia form of cash or in the form of liquid,
high-quality assets. The Company engages in theseed lending transactions with creditworthy ceuparties, and the associated portfolio
custodian has agreed to indemnify the Company ageatlateral losses. The Company did not expeeiemy losses in connection with the
secured lending of securities during the perio@s@nted. As of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2018,@lompany had no outstanding securities
lending transactions.

9. Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed from selling an asset or paid to transfélality in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Wegrrdining the fair value measurements for assetdiabilities required or permitted to
be either recorded or disclosed at fair value Gbepany considers the principal or most advantagewarket in which it would transact, and
it also considers assumptions that market partitgpavould use when pricing the asset or liability.

(a) Fair Value Hierarchy

The accounting guidance for fair value measuremaquires an entity to maximize the use of obseesaiputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.stardard establishes a fair value hierarchy basetenlevel of independent, objective
evidence surrounding the inputs used to measurgdhie. A financial instrument's categorizationthin the fair value hierarchy is based u
the lowest level of input that is significant teetfair value measurement. The fair value hieraiskas follows:

Level 1applies to assets or liabilities for which there quoted prices in active markets for identicaétssr liabilities.
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Level 2applies to assets or liabilities for which there #puts other than quoted prices that are obskr¥abthe asset or liability such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiesagtive markets; quoted prices for identical assetmbilities in markets with insufficient
volume or infrequent transactions (less active rk or model-derived valuations in which sigrifit inputs are observable or can be
derived principally from, or corroborated by, ohsdyle market data.

Level 3applies to assets or liabilities for which there anobservable inputs to the valuation methodotbgyare significant to the
measurement of the fair value of the assets ottitiab.

(b) Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarring basis as of April 27, 2013 and July ZBl2were as follows (in millions):

APRIL 27, 2013 JULY 28, 2012
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Total Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
Assets
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 3,33 % — $ — $ 333 $ 250¢ $ — $ — $ 2,50¢
Available-for-sale investments:
U.S. government securities — 28,44: — 28,44: — 24,24 — 24,24
U.S. government agency securities — 3,30¢ — 3,30¢ — 5,38¢ — 5,38¢
Non-U.S. government and agency
securities — 1,012 — 1,012 — 1,63¢ — 1,63¢
Corporate debt securities — 7,42¢ — 7,42¢ — 6,03( — 6,03(
Publicly traded equity securities 2,07¢ — — 2,07¢ 1,62( — — 1,62(
Derivative assets — 234 — 234 — 263 1 264
Total $ 541 $ 4042« $ — $ 4583¢ $ 4,12¢ $ 37,56( $ 1 $ 41,681
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities $ — % 94 $ — 3 94 $ — % 42 $ — 3 42
Total $ — 94 $ — 3 94 3 — 3 42 $ — 8 42

Level 2 fixed income securities are priced usingtgd market prices for similar instruments or nodbig market prices that are corroborated
by observable market data. The Company uses ispotsas actual trade data, benchmark yields, bid#ader quotes, and other similar data,
which are obtained from quoted market prices, iedejgnt pricing vendors, or other sources, to deterine ultimate fair value of these
assets and liabilities. The Company uses suchngritata as the primary input to make its assessnagick determinations as to the ultimate
valuation of its investment portfolio and has natdwe, during the periods presented, any materiabadents to such inputs. The Company is
ultimately responsible for the financial statemeantd underlying estimates. The Company's derivatisguments are primarily classified as
Level 2, as they are not actively traded and ahgedhusing pricing models that use observable mankeits. The Company did not have any
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair valuasoeements during the periods presented.

Level 3 assets include certain derivative instrutsigthe values of which are determined based aodiged cash flow models using inputs
that the Company could not corroborate with madeta.

There was no material activity related to assetasmesd at fair value on a recurring basis usingifsignt unobservable inputs (Level 3) for
the nine months ended April 27, 2013 .
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The following table presents a reconciliation dfeelsets measured at fair value on a recurring hessing significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the nine months ended April 28, 2@itPmillions):

Asset-Backed

Securities Derivative Assets Total

Balance at July 30, 2011 $ 121 % 2 3 123
Total gains and losses (realized and unrealized):

Included in other income (loss), net 3 — 3

Included in other comprehensive income (loss) 3 — 3
Sales and maturities (14) @ (15)
Transfer into Level 2 (107) — (107)
Balance at April 28, 2012 $ — 19 1

The Company's asset-backed securities were rdagsom Level 3 to Level 2 at January 28, 201 &€nd of the Company's second quarter
for fiscal 2012, as circumstances indicated areiase in market activity and related observable etatita was available for these financial
assets.

(c) Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Bas

The following tables present the Company’s finahicistruments and nonfinancial assets that weresared at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis during the indicated periods and the reletedgnized gains and losses for the periods (ilomd):

April 27, 2013
Net Carrying Value as of Gains (Losses) for the  Gains (Losses) for the Nir
End of Period Three Months Ended Months Ended
Assets held for sale $ 72 $ 44 $ 44
Investments in privately held companies $ 66 (5) (23
Gains on assets no longer held at period end 34 34
Net gains for nonrecurring measurements $ 738 55
April 28, 2012
Net Carrying Value as of Losses for the Three  Gains (Losses) for the Nir
End of Period Months Ended Months Ended
Assets held for sale $ 52 §$ (76) $ (192)
Investments in privately held companies $ 17 (15) 7
Gains on assets no longer held at period end — 14
Net losses for nonrecurring measurements $ (9) % (199

The assets in the preceding tables were measufen aalue due to events or circumstances the Gomyjpdentified as having significant
impact on their fair value during the respectiveqs. To arrive at the valuation of these asskesCompany considers any significant
changes in the financial metrics and economic ée& and also uses third-party valuation reporessist in the valuation as necessary.
These assets were classified as Level 3 assetadgettee Company used significant unobservable snputalue them.

The assets held for sale represent primarily lanbbaildings, as well as other items which metdtiteria to be classified as held for sale.
fair value of assets held for sale was measurdd tivét assistance of third-party valuation modelgtwhised discounted cash flow techniques
as part of their analysis. The fair value measuremas categorized as Level 3 as significant unvladée inputs were used in the valuation
report. The impairment charges as a result of éteations, which represented the difference betvileefiair value less cost to sell and the
carrying amount of the assets held for sale, watkided in G&A expenses.
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The fair value of the impaired investments wassifeesl as Level 3 because significant unobserveigets were used in the valuation due to
the absence of quoted market prices and inherekoiliquidity. Significant unobservable inputshigh included financial metrics of
comparable private and public companies, finaremaldition and near-term prospects of the investeegnt financing activities of the
investees, and the investees' capital structuneeliss other economic variables, reflected themgdions market participants would use in
pricing these assets. The impairment charges, septiag the difference between the net book vahaktlae fair value as a result of the
evaluation, were recorded to other income (loss), n

(d) Other Fair Value Disclosure:

The carrying value of the Company's investmeniwivately held companies that were accounted faieuthe cost method was $248 million
and $249 million as of April 27, 2013 and July 2812, respectively. It was not practicable to eaterthe fair value of this portfolio.

The fair value of the Company's short-term loarereables and financed service contracts approxsrtatesr carrying value due to their short
duration. The aggregate carrying value of the Camgisdong-term loan receivables and financed sereantracts and other as of April 27,
2013 and July 28, 2012 was $2.0 billion and $1l#hi, respectively. The estimated fair value loé iCompany's long-term loan receivables
and financed service contracts and other approgisitaieir carrying value. The Company uses sigmificaobservable inputs in determining
discounted cash flows to estimate the fair valuigsdbng-term loan receivables and financed sereuntracts, and therefore they are
categorized as Level 3.

As of April 27, 2013, the fair value of the Compansenior notes was $18.4 billion with a carryamgount of $16.2 billion This compares f
a fair value of $18.8 billion and a carrying amoah$16.3 billion as of July 28, 2012. The fair walof the senior notes was determined basec
on observable market prices in a less active maketwas categorized as Level 2 in the fair valaeaichy.

10. Borrowings
(a) Short-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the Company’s stema debt (in millions, except percentages):

April 27, 2013 July 28, 2012
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Interest Average Interest
Amount Rate Amount Rate
Current portion of long-term debt $ 3,27¢ 0.64% $ — —%
Other notes and borrowings 13 9.6(% 31 6.72%
Total short-term debt $ 3,29 $ 31

In fiscal 2011, the Company established a shont-@ebt financing program of up to $3.0 billion thgh the issuance of commercial paper
notes. The Company uses the proceeds from thenisswd commercial paper notes for general corpgratposes. The Company had no
commercial paper notes outstanding as of each af 2p 2013 and July 28, 2012.

Other notes and borrowings in the preceding tabsist of notes and credit facilities establishéithwa number of financial institutions that
are available to certain foreign subsidiaries ef @ompany. These notes and credit facilities dpgestito various terms and foreign currency
market interest rates pursuant to individual finaharrangements between the financing instituéind the applicable foreign subsidiary.

As of April 27, 2013 , the estimated fair valuetloé short-term debt approximates its carrying value to the short maturities.
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(b) Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the Company's largatdebt (in millions, except percentages):

April 27, 2013 July 28, 2012
Amount Effective Rate Amount Effective Rate
Senior Notes:
Floating-rate notes, due 2014 $ 1,25( 0.63% $ 1,25( 0.81%
1.625% fixed-rate notes, due 2014 2,00( 0.65% 2,00( 0.84%
2.90% fixed-rate notes, due 2014 50C 3.11% 50C 3.11%
5.50% fixed-rate notes, due 2016 3,00( 3.07% 3,00( 3.16%
3.15% fixed-rate notes, due 2017 75C 0.85% 75C 1.03%
4.95% fixed-rate notes, due 2019 2,00( 5.08% 2,00( 5.08%
4.45% fixed-rate notes, due 2020 2,50( 4.50% 2,50( 4.50%
5.90% fixed-rate notes, due 2039 2,00( 6.11% 2,00( 6.11%
5.50% fixed-rate notes, due 2040 2,00( 5.67% 2,00(¢ 5.67%
Total 16,00( 16,00(
Other long-term debt 10 0.19% 10 0.19%
Unaccreted discount (66) (70)
Hedge accounting fair value adjustments 291 357
Total 16,23¢ 16,29°
Less: current portion of long-term debt (3,279 0.64% —
Total long-term debt $ 12,95¢ $ 16,29’

To achieve its interest rate risk management obgsitthe Company entered into interest rate swafhsan aggregate notional amount of
$4.25 billion designated as fair value hedges dhae of its fixed-rate senior notes. In effecedl swaps convert the fixed interest rates of the
fixed-rate notes to floating interest rates basethe London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). Thains and losses related to changes in
the fair value of the interest rate swaps substtyibffset changes in the fair value of the hedpgedion of the underlying debt that are
attributable to the changes in market interessré@ee Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statésn

The effective rates for the fixed-rate debt incltide interest on the notes, the accretion of teeadint, and, if applicable, adjustments related
to hedging. Interest is payable semiannually ol &tass of the senior fixed-rate notes and payaindeterly on the floating-rate notes. Each
of the senior fixed-rate notes is redeemable byChwmpany at any time, subject to a make-whole premi

The senior notes rank at par with the commercipépaotes that may be issued in the future purgoaht Company's short-term debt
financing program, as discussed above under “(ajtSterm Debt.” As of April 27, 2013 , the Compangs in compliance with all debt
covenants.

As of April 27, 2013, future principal payments fong-term debt, including the current portiorg aummarized as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2013 (remaining three months) $ =
2014 3,26(
2015 50C
2016 3,00(
2017 75C
Thereafter 8,50(
Total $ 16,01(
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(c) Credit Facility

On February 17, 2012, the Company entered inteditcagreement with certain institutional lendéxat tprovides for a $3.0 billion unsecured
revolving credit facility that is scheduled to esgobn February 17, 2017 . Any advances under gditaigreement will accrue interest at rates
that are equal to, based on certain conditionsee(t) the higher of the Federal Funds rate pl68% , Bank of America's “prime rate” as
announced from time to time, or one-month LIBORsplu00% , or (ii) LIBOR plus a margin that is basedthe Company's senior debt credit
ratings as published by Standard & Poor's Finai8gabices, LLC and Moody's Investors Service, Triite credit agreement requires the
Company to comply with certain covenants, includimgt it maintains an interest coverage ratio diséé in the agreement. As of April 27,
2013, the Company was in compliance with all srfuired covenants, and the Company had not bod-ang funds under the credit

facility.

The Company may also, upon the agreement of ditleethen-existing lenders or additional lendersauotently parties to the agreement,
increase the commitments under the credit fadiljtyip to an additional $2.0 billion and/or extehd expiration date of the credit facility by
up to two additional years, or up to February 11,2.

11. Derivative Instruments
(&) Summary of Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivative instruments primasilpnanage exposures to foreign currency exchangeinatrest rate, and equity price
risks. The Company's primary objective in holdirggidatives is to reduce the volatility of earniraged cash flows associated with changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest ratabgeanity prices. The Company's derivatives expbsedredit risk to the extent that the
counterparties may be unable to meet the ternmtsechgreement. The Company does, however, seekit@ataisuch risks by limiting its
counterparties to major financial institutions.aldition, the potential risk of loss with any orinterparty resulting from this type of credit
risk is monitored. Management does not expect nahlesses as a result of defaults by counterpartie

The fair values of the Company's derivative insteats and the line items on the Consolidated Bal&he®ts to which they were recorded
summarized as follows (in millions):

DERIVATIVE ASSETS DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES
April 27, July 28, April 27, July 28,
Balance Sheet Line Ite 2013 2012 Balance Sheet Line Item 2013 2012
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives Other current assets$ 17 $ 24 Other current liabilities $ 2 3 26
Interest rate derivatives Other assets 18z 22% Other long-term liabilities — —
Equity derivatives Other current assets — — Other current liabilities 87 4
Total 20C 247 89 3C
Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives Other current assets 34 1€ Other current liabilities 5 12
Equity derivatives Other assets — 1 Other long-term liabilities — —
Total 34 17 5 12
Total $ 234 $ 264 $ 94 % 42
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The effects of the Company's cash flow and netstment hedging instruments on other comprehensa@nie (“OCI”) and the Consolidated

Statements of Operations are summarized as follmargillions):

GAINS (LOSSES) RECOGNIZED
IN OCI ON DERIVATIVES FOR THE
THREE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION)

GAINS (LOSSES) RECLASSIFIED FROM
AOCI INTO INCOME FOR THE
THREE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION)

Derivatives designated as cash flow April 27, April 28, Line Item in Statements of April 27, April 28,
hedging instruments: 2013 2012 Operations 2013 2012
Foreign currency derivatives $ 11) $ 11 Operating expenses $ 3 3 (15)
Cost of sales - service 1 (4)
Interest rate derivatives — — Interest expense — 1
Total $ (11 % 11 $ 4 % (18)
Derivatives designated as net
investment hedging instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives $ 2C 8 — Other income (loss), net $ —  § —
GAINS (LOSSES) RECOGNIZED GAINS (LOSSES) RECLASSIFIED FROM
IN OCI ON DERIVATIVES FOR THE AOCI INTO INCOME FOR THE
NINE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION) NINE MONTHS ENDED (EFFECTIVE PORTION)
Derivatives designated as cash flow April 27, April 28, Line Item in Statements of April 27, April 28,
hedging instruments: 2013 2012 Operations 2013 2012
Foreign currency derivatives $ 58 $ (83) Operating expenses $ 5 % 37)
Cost of sales - service 2 (8)
Interest rate derivatives — — Interest expense — 1
Total $ 58 % (83) $ 7 % (44)
Derivatives designated as net
investment hedging instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives $ 4 % (6)  Other income (loss), net $ — 3 —

During the three and nine months ended April 22,328nd April 28,

2012 , the amounts recognizedaimiags on derivative instruments

designated as cash flow hedges and net investredgek related to the ineffective portion were natamal, and the Company did not

exclude any component of the changes in fair vafuibe derivative

As of April 27, 2013, the Company estimates thpraximately $10 million of net derivative gaindated to its cash flow hedges included in

instruments from the assessmehédge effectiveness.

accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI") b reclassified into earnings within the nextmi@nths.

The effect on the Consolidated Statements of Ojpeibf derivative instruments designated as falue hedges and the underlying hedged

items is summarized as follows (in millions):

GAINS (LOSSES) ON GAINS (LOSSES) RELATED TO

DERIVATIVES HEDGED
INSTRUMENTS FOR THE THREE ITEMS FOR THE THREE MONTHS
MONTHS ENDED ENDED

Derivatives Designated as Fair ValueLine Item in Statements of April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
Hedging Instruments Operations 2013 2012 2013 2012
Equity derivatives Other income (loss), net $ (45 $ — 45 % —
Interest rate derivatives Interest expense (11 (16 11 16

Total $ (56) $ (16) $ 56 $ 16
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GAINS (LOSSES) ON GAINS (LOSSES) RELATED TO

DERIVATIVES HEDGED
INSTRUMENTS FOR THE NINE ITEMS FOR THE NINE MONTHS
MONTHS ENDED ENDED
Derivatives Designated as Fair ValueLine Item in Statements of April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
Hedging Instruments Operations 2013 2012 2013 2012
Equity derivatives Other income (loss), net $ 87 % — ¢ 87 $ —
Interest rate derivatives Interest expense (40 60 4C (62)
Total $ 127 $ 60 $ 127 % (62)

The amounts excluded from the assessment of hdfigtiweness for derivative instruments designatedair value hedges were not material
for the periods presented.

The effect on the Consolidated Statements of Ojpeibf derivative instruments not designated algbe is summarized as follows (in
millions):

GAINS (LOSSES) FOR THE THRE  GAINS (LOSSES) FOR THE NINE
MONTHS ENDED MONTHS ENDED

Derivatives Not Designated as Line Item in Statements of April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
Hedging Instruments Operations 2013 2012 2013 2012
Foreign currency derivatives  Other income (loss), net $ (90 $ 20 % (78) $ (125)
Total return swaps - deferred
compensation Cost of sales — 1 — 4
Operating expenses 12 6 45 (4)
Equity derivatives Other income (loss), net (6) 7 6 (4
Total $ (84) $ 34 % 27 $ (129
The notional amounts of the Company’s outstandimiyvdtives are summarized as follows (in millions):
April 27, July 28,
2013 2012
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives - cash flow hedges $ 1,067 $ 2,91(
Interest rate derivatives 4,25( 4,25(
Net investment hedging instruments 58€ 46¢
Equity derivatives 62¢ 272
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign currency derivatives 4,31¢ 6,241
Total return swaps-deferred compensation 322 26¢
Total $ 11,16¢ $ 14,41(

(b) Foreign Currency Exchange Risl

The Company conducts business globally in numecaugncies. Therefore, it is exposed to adverseemewts in foreign currency exchange
rates. To limit the exposure related to foreigrrency changes, the Company enters into foreigrenay contracts. The Company does not
enter into such contracts for trading purposes.

The Company hedges forecasted foreign currencgditions related to certain operating expenseseamnite cost of sales with currency
options and forward contracts. These currency amitd forward contracts, designated as cash flalgd® generally have maturities of less
than 18 months . The Company assesses effectivbassd on changes in total fair value of the déviga. The effective portion of the
derivative instrument's gain or loss is initialgported as a component of AOCI and subsequentlgssfied into earnings when the hedged
exposure affects earnings. The ineffective portibany, of the gain or loss is reported in earsiilgmediately. During the periods presented,
the Company did not discontinue any cash flow hedgewhich it was probable that a forecasted tatisn would not occur.
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The Company enters into foreign exchange forwardagtion contracts to reduce the short-term effetfsreign currency fluctuations on
assets and liabilities such as foreign currencgivables, including long-term customer financiriggestments, and payables. These
derivatives are not designated as hedging instrtsn&ains and losses on the contracts are inclindetther income (loss), net, and
substantially offset foreign exchange gains anddsedrom the remeasurement of intercompany balanaather current assets, investments,
or liabilities denominated in currencies other titaa functional currency of the reporting entity.

The Company hedges certain net investments intitsgn operations with forward contracts to redineffects of foreign currency
fluctuations on the Company's net investment is¢hioreign subsidiaries. These derivative instrumganerally have maturities of up to six
months .

(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Derivatives, Investmeni®he Company's primary objective for holding fixedome securities is to achieve an appropriate
investment return consistent with preserving ppatand managing risk. To realize these objectittesCompany may utilize interest rate
swaps or other derivatives designated as fair valwash flow hedges. As of April 27, 2013 and 28y 2012, the Company did not have any
outstanding interest rate derivatives relatedgdixed income securities.

Interest Rate Derivatives Designated as Fair VBledges, Londgrerm Debt In fiscal 2011, the Company entered into interatt swaps
designated as fair value hedges related to fixeglsmnior notes that were issued in March 201laa@diue in 2014 and 2017. In fiscal 2010,
the Company entered into interest rate swaps datgidras fair value hedges for a portion of semiadfrate notes that were issued in 2006
and are due in 2016. Under these interest ratessulag Company receives fixed-rate interest paysn@md makes interest payments based on
LIBOR plus a fixed number of basis points. The efief such swaps is to convert the fixed interatts of the senior fixed-rate notes to
floating interest rates based on LIBOR. The gaimtlasses related to changes in the fair valubefriterest rate swaps are included in
interest expense and substantially offset chamg#seifair value of the hedged portion of the ulydieg debt that are attributable to the
changes in market interest rates. The fair valub®interest rate swaps was reflected in otheatsiss

(d) Equity Price Risk

The Company may hold equity securities for strat@girposes or to diversify its overall investmeattfolio. The publicly traded equity
securities in the Company's portfolio are subjegirice risk. To manage its exposure to changésdiiair value of certain equity securities,
the Company may enter into equity derivatives #ratdesignated as fair value hedges. The chandes iralue of the hedging instruments
included in other income (loss), net, and offset¢hange in the fair value of the underlying hedgedstment. In addition, the Company
periodically manages the risk of its investmentfodio by entering into equity derivatives that aret designated as accounting hedges. The
changes in the fair value of these derivativesaése included in other income (loss), net.

The Company is also exposed to variability in congagion charges related to certain deferred conapiensobligations to
employees. Although not designated as accountidgé® the Company utilizes derivatives such as ietarn swaps to economically hedge
this exposure.

(e) Credit-Risk-Related Contingent Feature

Certain derivative instruments are executed ungereaments that have provisions requiring the Comppaud the counterparty to maintain a
specified credit rating from certain credit-ratimgencies. If the Company's or the counterpartgdicrating falls below a specified credit
rating, either party has the right to request tefk#l on the derivatives' net liability positioruch provisions did not affect the Company's
financial position as of April 27, 2013 and July, 2812.
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12. Commitments and Contingencie

(a) Operating Lease:

The Company leases office space in many U.S. lmesitiOutside the United States, larger leasedisithgde sites in Australia, Belgium,
China, France, Germany, India, Israel, Italy, Japan the United Kingdom . The Company also leasefpment and vehicles. Future
minimum lease payments under all noncancelableatipgrleases with an initial term in excess of gaar as of April 27, 2013 are as follows
(in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2013 (remaining three months) $ 92
2014 29¢
2015 24C
2016 121
2017 80
Thereafter 224
Total $ 1,05¢€

(b) Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers am Suppliers

The Company purchases components from a varietymgliers and uses several contract manufactwenovide manufacturing services for
its products. During the normal course of busingssrder to manage manufacturing lead times atyldresure adequate component supply,
the Company enters into agreements with contraoufaaturers and suppliers that either allow themrtwure inventory based upon criteria
as defined by the Company or establish the paramé&dining the Company's requirements. A signifiqaortion of the Company's reported
purchase commitments arising from these agreensentsists of firm, noncancelable, and unconditi@mmsmhmitments. In certain instances,
these agreements allow the Company the optionrtoetareschedule, and adjust the Company's regaivenased on its business needs |
to firm orders being placed. As of April 27, 20I&laJuly 28, 2012, the Company had total purchasevdtments for inventory of $4,215
million and $3,869 million , respectively.

The Company records a liability for firm, noncarat#é, and unconditional purchase commitments fantjties in excess of its future demi
forecasts consistent with the valuation of the Canys excess and obsolete inventory. As of AprilZ0id.3and July 28, 2012, the liability fi
these purchase commitments was $178 million an@ #iilion , respectively, and was included in otbarrent liabilities.

(c) Other Commitments

In connection with the Company's business comtminatand asset purchases, the Company has agrneay ¢ertain additional amounts
contingent upon the achievement of certain agrgeshtechnology, development, product, or other stolees or the continued employment
with the Company of certain employees of the aeglentities. The Company recognized such compemsakpense of $44 million and $12
million during the three months ended April 27, 2@hd April 28, 2012 , respectively, and $79 millend $40 million during the nine
months ended April 27, 2013 and April 28, 2012spextively. As of April 27, 2013 , the Company estted that future compensation
expense and contingent consideration of up to Billidn may be required to be recognized pursuarhé applicable business combination
and asset purchase agreements, which included isnmnapotential $863 million in milestone paymergtated to Insieme as more fully
discussed in the subsection entitled “Insieme” inigection (d) immediately below.

The Company also has certain funding commitmemis\gily related to its investments in privatelyitheompanies and venture funds, some
of which are based on the achievement of certaieeajupon milestones, and some of which are redjtirée funded on demand. The
funding commitments were $113 million and $120 imillas of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012, respedy.
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(d) Variable Interest Entities

VCE Joint Ventur&/CE is a joint venture that the Company formedisedl 2010 with EMC Corporation (“EMC”), with invesents from
VMware, Inc. (“VMware”) and Intel Corporation. VCiEelps organizations leverage best-in-class teclgiedaand disciplines from Cisco,
EMC, and VMware to enable the transformation taudlcomputing.

As of April 27, 2013 , the Company's cumulativeggrinvestment in VCE was approximately $464 milljamclusive of accrued interest, and
its ownership percentage was approximately 35% .

The Company accounts for its investment in VCE unle equity method, and its portion of VCE's mesislis recognized in other income
(loss), net. The Company's consolidated share &'¥Y®sses, based upon its portion of the ovemallling, was approximately 36.8% for
each of the three and nine months ended April @Z32nd April 28, 2012 . As of April 27, 2013 , tBempany had recorded cumulative
losses from VCE of $374 million since inceptionydfich losses of $49 million and $34 million weeeorded for the three months ended
April 27, 2013 and April 28, 2012 , respectivelpddosses of $135 million and $120 million wereareled for the nine months ended April
27,2013 and April 28, 2012 . The Company's cagyalue in VCE as of April 27, 2013 of $90 millimrecorded in other assets.

Over the next 12 months, as VCE scales its opergtibe Company expects that it will make additiameestments in VCE and may incur
additional losses proportionate with the Compaslyare ownership.

From time to time, EMC and Cisco may enter intorgntee agreements on behalf of VCE to indemnifidtparties, such as customers, for
monetary damages. Such guarantees were not matedlApril 27, 2013 .

Insiemeln the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Companydman investment in Insieme, an early stage comfzanugsed on research and
development in the data center market. As set farthe agreement between the Company and Insigaisenvestment includes $100 million
of funding and a license to certain of the Compatgcthnology. In addition, pursuant to a Novemlidr2amendment to the agreement
between the Company and Insieme, the Company atpéedest an additional $35 million in Insieme nphe satisfaction of certain
conditions. As of April 27, 2013, the Company owrgproximately 85% of Insieme as a result of thegestments and has consolidated the
results of Insieme in its Consolidated Financiait&nents.

The net loss attributable to the noncontrollingiasts was not presented separately in the Coasadictatements of Operations due to the
amount being immaterial. In connection with thigdatment, the Company and Insieme have entered iptd/call option agreement that
provides the Company with the right to purchaseréimeaining interests in Insieme. In addition, te@controlling interest holders can require
the Company to purchase their shares upon the reewa of certain events. If the Company acquiresémaining interests of Insieme, the
noncontrolling interest holders are eligible togige two milestone payments, which will be deterimsing agreed-upon formulas based on
revenue for certain of Insieme's products. The Gomgwill begin recognizing the amounts due underrttilestone payments when it is
determined that such payments are probable of lemed, which the Company expects may be in f@84. When such a determination is
made, the milestone payments will then be recoedetbmpensation expense by the Company basedestianate of the fair value of the
amounts probable of being earned, pursuant totingeschedule. Subsequent changes to the fair wdltiee amounts probable of being
earned and the continued vesting will result iruatipents to the recorded compensation expensan@kienum amount that could be
recorded as compensation expense by the Compappieximately $863 million . This maximum amountswacreased from the previous
maximum of $750 million due to a November 2012 admeent to the agreement, as the parties recogriedhigher staffing levels may be
necessary to perform additional product developmEmt milestone payments, if earned, are expeotée paid primarily during fiscal 2016
and fiscal 2017.

Other Variable Interest Entitiels the ordinary course of business, the Companyirhestments in other privately held companies and
provides financing to certain customers. Thesergihigately held companies and customers may bsidered to be variable interest entities.
The Company evaluates on an ongoing basis itstimesgs in these other privately held companiesisntlstomer financings and has
determined that as of April 27, 2013 there wer®tier variable interest entities required to besotidated in the Company's Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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(e) Product Warranties and Guarantee:

The following table summarizes the activity relateghroduct warranty liability during the nine mbhatended April 27, 2013 and April 28,
2012 (in millions):

Nine Months Ended

April 27, April 28,
2013 2012
Balance at beginning of period $ 415 $ 34z
Provision for warranties issued 494 474
Payments (47¢) (42¢)
Balance at end of period $ 431 $ 39C

The Company accrues for warranty costs as pats abist of sales based on associated material grodsts, labor costs for technical support
staff, and associated overhead. The Company's piodre generally covered by a warranty for periagiging from 90 days to five years ,
and for some products the Company provides a ldvitetime warranty.

In the normal course of business, the Company imifees other parties, including customers, lessans, parties to other transactions with
Company, with respect to certain matters. The Campas agreed to hold the other parties harmlegisstjosses arising from a breach of
representations or covenants or out of intelleqiwaperty infringement or other claims made agadestain parties. These agreements may
limit the time within which an indemnification ctaican be made and the amount of the claim. In i@atddithe Company has entered into
indemnification agreements with its officers antkdfors, and the Company's Amended and RestatedvBydontain similar indemnification
obligations to the Company's agents. It is not ipes$o determine the maximum potential amount urtdese indemnification agreements
to the Company's limited history with prior inderication claims and the unique facts and circumstarinvolved in each particular
agreement. Historically, payments made by the Compader these agreements have not had a mateiel en the Company's operating
results, financial position, or cash flows.

The Company also provides financing guarantees;iwduie generally for various third-party financemgangements to channel partners and
other end-user customers. See Note 7 to the Cdasedi Financial Statements. The Company's otheagte® arrangements as of April 27,
2013 and July 28, 2012 that were subject to re¢mgnand disclosure requirements were not material.

(H Legal Proceeding

Brazilian authorities have investigated the ComfmByazilian subsidiary and certain of its currentl former employees, as well as a
Brazilian importer of the Company's products, asdaffiliates and employees, relating to allegeasén of import taxes and alleged imprc
transactions involving the subsidiary and the inigroBrazilian tax authorities have assessed claigasnst the Company's Brazilian
subsidiary based on a theory of joint liability vthe Brazilian importer for import taxes, interestid penalties. In addition to claims asserted
by the Brazilian federal tax authorities in prigchl years, tax authorities from the Braziliartesaf Sao Paulo have asserted similar claims or
the same legal basis in prior fiscal years. Infitst quarter of fiscal 2013, the Brazilian fedeta authorities asserted an additional claim
against the Company's Brazilian subsidiary based tveory of joint liability with respect to anedled underpayment of income taxes, social
taxes, interest, and penalties by a Brazilian ithistor.

The asserted claims by Brazilian federal tax autilesrare for calendar years 2003 through 2008 thadsserted claims by the tax authorities
from the state of Sao Paulo, are for calendar y2@08 through 2007. The total asserted claims laziBan state and federal tax authorities
aggregate to approximately $432 million for thegéld evasion of import and other taxes, approximé&te2 billion for interest, and
approximately $1.9 billion for various penaltie8,determined using an exchange rate as of AprilZB43 . The Company has completed a
thorough review of the matters and believes therssd claims against the Company's Brazilian sudgicire without merit, and the Compi

is defending the claims vigorously. While the Compéaelieves there is no legal basis for the alldgdadlity, due to the complexities and
uncertainty surrounding the judicial process indilrand the nature of the claims asserting joiability with the importer, the Company is
unable to determine the likelihood of an unfavoeaditcome against its Brazilian subsidiary anchisble to reasonably estimate a range of
loss, if any. The Company does not expect a findicjal determination for several years.
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On March 31, 2011 and April 12, 2011, purportedshalder class action lawsuits were filed in thetéth States District Court for the
Northern District of California against the Compamd certain of its officers and directors. Thedaits were consolidated, and an amer
consolidated complaint was filed on December 2120 he consolidated action was purportedly browghbehalf of purchasers of the
Company's publicly traded securities between Fepr8a2010 and May 11, 2011. Plaintiffs alleged tefendants made false and mislea
statements, purported to assert claims for viatatiof the federal securities laws, and sought wifpe compensatory damages and other
relief. On February 12, 2012, the Company filedaion seeking to dismiss all claims in the amenc@dplaint. On March 29, 2013, the
Court granted the Company's motion and dismisseduriended complaint, finding no facts or infererioesupport the plaintiffs' allegations.
Plaintiffs chose not to file an amended complaitd aot to pursue an appeal. The Court dismissedritige lawsuit with prejudice on April
29, 2013.

Beginning on April 8, 2011, a number of purportedreholder derivative lawsuits were filed in bdtk United States District Court for the
Northern District of California and the Californguperior Court for the County of Santa Clara agdhms Company's Board of Directors ¢
several of its officers. The federal lawsuits hbeen consolidated in the Northern District of Qalifia. Plaintiffs in both the federal and state
derivative actions allege that the Board allowerdaie officers to make allegedly false and mislegdtatements. The complaint includes
claims for violation of the federal securities lalgeach of fiduciary duties, waste of corporatgess unjust enrichment, and violations of the
California Corporations Code. The complaint seekapensatory damages, disgorgement, and other. alikfht of the United States Distr
Court's dismissal of the purported shareholdeiscasion noted above, all of the federal and statevative lawsuits have been voluntarily
dismissed.

The Company was subject to patent claims asseyt&tirbetX, Inc. on August 11, 2010 in the Unitecfets District Court for the Eastern
District of Texas. VirnetX alleged that variouss€ products that implement a method for securenuamication using virtual private
networks infringe certain patents. VirnetX sougiunetary damages. The trial on these claims begdvarch 4, 2013. On March 14, 2013,
the jury entered a verdict finding that the Compsuagcused products do not infringe any of Virnepétents asserted in the lawsuit. On /

3, 2013,VirnetX filed a motion seeking a new toal the issue of infringement, which the Companyd@sosed. The Court has set a hearing
date for VirnetX's motion in June 2013.

The Company was subject to numerous patent, taitcantract claims asserted by XpertUniverse onclla0, 2009 in the United States
District Court for the District of Delaware. Shgrtyefore trial, the Court dismissed on summary judgt all claims initially asserted by
XpertUniverse except a claim for infringement obtXpertUniverse patents and a claim for fraud byocsalment. XpertUniverse's remaining
patent claims alleged that three Cisco productkerfield of expertise location software infringeeb XpertUniverse patents. XpertUniverse's
fraud by concealment claim alleged that the Comphdynot disclose its decision not to admit Xperitténse into a partner program. The trial
on these remaining claims began on March 11, 20b3Viarch 22, 2013, the jury entered a verdict figdihat two of the Company's produ
infringed two of XpertUniverse's patents and awdrdpertUniverse damages of less than $35 thous&@hd jury also found for
XpertUniverse on its fraud by concealment claim amérded damages of $70 million . The Company besiét has strong arguments to
overturn the fraud damage award or to obtain atniedv On May 6, 2013, the Company filed pas&él motions that are expected to be dec

in July or August 2013. If the Court does not grituet Company's post-trial motions, the Company milisue an appeal. While the ultimate
outcome of the case may still result in a lossGbepany does not expect it to be material.

The Company and a service provider customer arjectuio patent claims asserted by TiVo, Inc. oneJdn2012 in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas. TiVo gis that the Company's digital video recordersayeyal by the service provider customer
infringe certain of its patents. TiVo seeks monettamages and injunctive relief. The trial onsthelaims is scheduled to begin in March
2014. The Company intends to show at trial tlsaprbducts do not use the technology describeldeipatents. The Company is seeking
permission from the Court to add counterclaimsgatig that TiVo's new products infringe several @figvideo recorder patents owned by the
Company.

TiVo previously filed a similar patent lawsuit agai the same service provider customer, accusgitabivideo recorders manufactured by
one of the Company's competitors. The outcombatfdase, which is now scheduled for trial in J20&3, could have an impact on the
timing and outcome of the Company's case. Thégsaxt that case may conduct a mediation prionéaJune trial and, if so, the Company
expects to participate. The mediation could reisudt resolution of the case for the Company andesorrall of its service provider customers,
which could result in a material charge to the Canyp Due to the uncertainty surrounding the liiigaprocess, which involves numerous
defendants, the Company is unable to reasonabiyagstthe ultimate outcome of this litigation attime.
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In addition, the Company is subject to legal proiegs, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinaourse of business, including intellectual
property litigation. While the outcome of these teet is currently not determinable, the Companysdu# expect that the ultimate costs to
resolve these matters will have a material adveifeet on its consolidated financial position, flesof operations, or cash flows.

13. Shareholders’Equity
(a) Stock Repurchase Prograr

In September 2001, the Company's Board of Dire@otkorized a stock repurchase program. As of Zil2013 , the Company's Board of
Directors had authorized an aggregate repurchase tf $82 billion of common stock under this pagr and the remaining authorized
repurchase amount was $4.3 billion with no termidmatlate. A summary of the stock repurchase agtivitder the stock repurchase program,
reported based on the trade date, is summarizidlass (in millions, except per-share amounts):

Weighted-
Shares Average Price Amount
Repurchased per Share Repurchased
Cumulative balance at July 28, 2012 3,74C $ 20.3¢ % 76,13:
Repurchase of common stock under the stock repseghi@gram 81 19.81 1,61:
Cumulative balance at April 27, 2013 3,821 ¢ 203t $ 77,74¢

The purchase price for the shares of the Compatgck repurchased is reflected as a reductionaceblolders' equity. The Company is
required to allocate the purchase price of thengyased shares as (i) a reduction to retainedreger@ind (ii) a reduction of common stock
additional paid-in capital. Issuance of common lstaed the tax benefit related to employee stockritive plans are recorded as an increase
to common stock and additional paid-in capital.

(b) Cash Dividends on Shares of Common Sto

During the nine months ended April 27, 2013 , tleenpany declared and paid cash dividends of $0.48@amon share, or $2.4 billion , on
the Company's outstanding common stock. Duringhthe months ended April 28, 2012 , the Companyated and paid cash dividends of
$0.20 per common share, or $1.1 billion , on then@any's outstanding common stock.

Any future dividends will be subject to the apprbefithe Company's Board of Directors.
(c) Other Repurchases of Common Stoc

For the nine months ended April 27, 2013 and A28il2012 , the Company repurchased approximatelyill®n and 10 million shares, or
$249 million and $160 million , of common stockspectively, in settlement of employee tax withhiogdobligations due upon the vesting of
restricted stock or stock units.
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(d) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incom

The components of AOCI, net of tax, and the otlmengrehensive income (loss), excluding noncontrgliiiterest, for the nine months ended
April 27, 2013 and April 28, 2012 are summarizedadi®ws (in millions):

Net Unrealized

Gains (Losses) Cumulative
Net Unrealized Cash Flow Translation Accumulated Othe
Gains on Hedging Adjustment and Comprehensive
Investments Instruments Other Income
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 $ 40¢ $ 53 $ 308 % 661
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributableisc®@
Systems, Inc. (15) 51 (8) 28
BALANCE AT APRIL 27, 2013 $ 394 % 2 $ 297 % 68¢
Net Unrealized
Gains (Losses) Cumulative
Net Unrealized Cash Flow Translation Accumulated Othe
Gains on Hedging Adjustment and Comprehensive
Investments Instruments Other Income
BALANCE AT JULY 30, 2011 $ 487 $ 6 $ 801 $ 1,29¢
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributableisc@
Systems, Inc. 19 (39) (29€) (31€)
BALANCE AT APRIL 28, 2012 $ 50€ $ (33 $ 50t % 97¢

14. Employee Benefit Plan
(&) Employee Stock Incentive Plar

Stock Incentive Plan Program Descriptiofss of April 27, 2013 , the Company had five stamgentive plans: the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “2005 Plan”); the 1996 Stock Incentive Pldre(t1996 Plan”); the 1997 Supplemental Stock Ingerlan (the “Supplemental Plan”);

the Cisco Systems, Inc. SA Acquisition Long-Terrodntive Plan (the “SA Acquisition Plan”); and this€d Systems, Inc. WebEXx
Acquisition Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “WebExdgsition Plan”). In addition, the Company hascannection with the acquisitions of
various companies, assumed the share-based awardedjunder stock incentive plans of the acquimdpanies or issued share-based
awards in replacement thereof. Share-based awerdteaigned to reward employees for their long-teomtributions to the Company and
provide incentives for them to remain with the Camp. The number and frequency of shbased awards are based on competitive prac
operating results of the Company, government reéiguis, and other factors. Since the inception efdtock incentive plans, the Company has
granted share-based awards to a significant pexgertf its employees, and the majority has beentggao employees below the vice
president level. The Company's primary stock ingerplans are summarized as follows:

2005 PlanAs amended on November 15, 2007, the maximum nuofterares issuable under the 2005 Plan overritsite559 million
shares plus the amount of any shares underlyingdswaautstanding on November 15, 2007 under the P36, the SA Acquisition Plan, and
the WebEx Acquisition Plan that are forfeited ae tarminated for any other reason before beingogsext or settled. If any awards granted
under the 2005 Plan are forfeited or are termintdedny other reason before being exercised dedethen the shares underlying the awi
will again be available under the 2005 Plan.

Pursuant to an amendment approved by the Compstmteholders on November 12, 2009, the numberaséstavailable for issuance under
the 2005 Plan was reduced by 1.5 shares for eachk slwarded as a stock grant or a stock unit, apdlares underlying awards outstanding
under the 1996 Plan, the SA Acquisition Plan, dredWwebEx Acquisition Plan that expire unexercisetth@ end of their maximum terms
become available for reissuance under the 2005 Pk:2005 Plan permits the granting of stock aygtjaestricted stock, restricted stock
units (“RSUs"), the vesting of which may be perfamae-based or market-based along with the requisitéce requirement, and stock
appreciation rights to employees (including empéoglgectors and officers), consultants of the Camypand its subsidiaries and affiliates,
non-employee directors of the Company. Stock optammd stock appreciation rights granted under @& Zlan have an exercise price of at
least 100% of the fair market value of the undedystock on the grant date and prior to Novembe@@9 have an expiration date no later
than nine years from the grant date. The expiratite for stock options and stock appreciationtsiginanted subsequent to the amendment
approved on November 12, 2009 shall be no later thia years from the grant date.
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The stock options will generally become exercis&te?0% or 25% of the option shares one year filoendate of grant and then ratably over
the following 48 or 36 months , respectively. Tilmgsed stock grants and time-based RSUs will gdperedt with respect to 20% or 25% of
the shares or share units covered by the granacim & the first through fifth or fourth anniverar of the date of the grant, respectively.
Performance-based and market-based RSUs typiaadlyat the end of the three year requisite sepacied or earlier if the award recipient
meets certain retirement eligibility conditions.eT@ompensation and Management Development Comnoittde Board of Directors has the
discretion to use different vesting schedules. Sagpreciation rights may be awarded in combinatiith stock options or stock grants, and
such awards shall provide that the stock appreciatghts will not be exercisable unless the relaick options or stock grants are forfeited.
Stock grants may be awarded in combination with-statutory stock options, and such awards may geothat the stock grants will be
forfeited in the event that the related non-stagjustock options are exercised.

1996 PlanThe 1996 Plan expired on December 31, 2006, an@dnepany can no longer make equity awards undet386 Plan. The
maximum number of shares issuable over the tertineo1996 Plan was 2.5 billion shares. Stock optgraasted under the 1996 Plan have an
exercise price of at least 100% of the fair maxledtie of the underlying stock on the grant dateexmre no later than nine years from the
grant date. The stock options generally becamecisadaie for 20% or 25% of the option shares one free the date of grant and then
ratably over the following 48 or 36 months , regpety. Certain other grants utilized a 60 -mordkeble vesting schedule. In addition, the
Board of Directors, or other committees adminisigtihe 1996 Plan, had the discretion to use ardiftevesting schedule and did so from 1
to time.

Supplemental Plafihe Supplemental Plan expired on December 31, 206¥the Company can no longer make equity awarderuthe
Supplemental Plan. Officers and members of the @Gmiylp Board of Directors were not eligible to pap@te in the Supplemental Plan. Nine
million shares were reserved for issuance undeSthpplemental Plan.

Acquisition Plandn connection with the Company's acquisitions déBiific-Atlanta, Inc. (“Scientific-Atlanta”) and \AbEx

Communications, Inc. (“WebEx"), the Company adopteel SA Acquisition Plan and the WebEx Acquisit®lan, respectively, each
effective upon completion of the applicable acdigsi These plans constitute assumptions, amendmestatements, and renamings of the
2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of Scientifidlanta and the WebEx Communications, Inc. Amenaled Restated 2000 Stock Incentive P
respectively. The plans permit the grant of stgokams, stock, stock units, and stock appreciatigints to certain employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries and affiliates who had beepleyed by Scientific-Atlanta or its subsidiariesWebEXx or its subsidiaries, as applicable.
As a result of the shareholder approval of the aiment and extension of the 2005 Plan, as of Noveit#he2007, the Company will no
longer make stock option grants or direct shangaisses under either the SA Acquisition Plan oMiebEXx Acquisition Plan.

(b) Employee Stock Purchase Ple

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plach wicludes its subplan, the International Empe$tock Purchase Plan (together,
the “Purchase Plan”), under which 471.4 millionrgiseof the Company's common stock have been res&wéssuance as of April 27, 2013 .
Eligible employees are offered shares through ar@hth offering period, which consists of four ceastive 6 -month purchase

periods. Employees may purchase a limited numbehaifes of the Company's stock at a discount ¢ 15% of the lesser of the market
value at the beginning of the offering period ar #nd of each 6 -month purchase period. The PurdPlas is scheduled to terminate on
January 3, 2020. The Company issued 18 millioneshander the Purchase Plan during each of themim¢hs ended April 27, 2013 and
April 28, 2012 . As of April 27, 2013 , 69 millisshares were available for issuance under the Psedpian.
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(¢) Summary of ShareBased Compensation Expen:

Share-based compensation expense consists priroaakpenses for stock options, stock purchasesijgbstricted stock, and restricted stock
units granted to employees. The following table suarizes share-based compensation expense (inmsjilio

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Cost of sales - product $ 10 $ 12 3 31 $ 39
Cost of sales - service 34 39 10k 11€
Share-based compensation expense in cost of sales 44 51 13€ 15&
Research and development 72 97 22¢ 297
Sales and marketing 11¢€ 13¢ 38:¢ 42¢
General and administrative 38 51 13€ 15z
Restructuring and other charges — — (©) 2
Share-based compensation expense in operating ggen 22¢ 28¢€ 744 877
Total share-based compensation expense $ 27z $ 337 % 88C $ 1,03z

As of April 27, 2013, the total compensation aetated to unvested share-based awards not yegnized was $2.0 billion , which is
expected to be recognized over approximately 2a6syen a weighted-average basis. The income taefibéor share-based compensation
expense was $73 million and $232 million for theethand nine months ended April 27, 2013 , respalgtiand $88 million and $271 million
for the three and nine months ended April 28, 20E3pectively.

The Company uses third-party analyses to asstveloping the assumptions used in, as well abradiing, its lattice-binomial and Black-
Scholes models. The Company is responsible formétieng the assumptions used in estimating thevialne of its share-based payment
awards.

The Company uses the implied volatility for tradgdions (with contract terms corresponding to thigeeted life of the employee stock
purchase rights) on the Company's stock as thectegb&olatility assumption required in the BlackaBles model. The implied volatility is
more representative of future stock price trends thistorical volatility. The risk-free interesteaassumption is based upon observed interest
rates appropriate for the term of the Company'sleyepe stock purchase rights. The dividend yieldiagstion is based on the history and
expectation of dividend payouts at the grant date.

The use of the lattice-binomial model requires esiee actual employee exercise behavior data fordlative probability estimation purpose,
and a number of complex assumptions as presentbé jpreceding table. The estimated kurtosis ard/skss are technical measures of the
distribution of stock price returns, which affegpected employee stock option exercise behaviadaae based on the Company's stock
return history as well as consideration of variansademic analyses. The expected life of employsk stptions is a derived output of the
lattice-binomial model, which represents the weighaverage period the stock options are expecteghtain outstanding.

(d) ShareBased Awards Available for Grani

A summary of share-based awards available for gseam follows (in millions):

Share-Based Awards
Available for Grant

BALANCE AT JULY 30, 2011 25E
Restricted stock, stock units, and other shareebaserds granted (95)
Share-based awards canceled/forfeited/expired 64
Other (6)
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 21¢
Restricted stock, stock units, and other shareebaserds granted (84)
Share-based awards canceled/forfeited/expired 10z
Other 3
BALANCE AT APRIL 27, 2013 234
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As reflected in the preceding table, for each shararded as restricted stock or subject to a oéstristock unit award under the 2005 Plan, an
equivalent of 1.5 shares was deducted from thdablaishare-based award balance. For restricte#t stuts that were awarded with vesting
contingent upon the achievement of future finangeformance or market-based metrics, the maximuards that can be achieved upon full
vesting of such awards were reflected in the priagetble.

(e) Restricted Stock and Stock Unit Award

A summary of the restricted stock and stock urtitvétg, which includes time-based and performanesda or market-based restricted stock
units, is as follows (in millions, except per-sharaounts):

Weighted-Average
Restricted Stock/Stoc Grant Date Fair Value Aggregated Fair

Units per Share Market Value
UNVESTED BALANCE AT JULY 30, 2011 11€ $ 21.5C
Granted and assumed 65 17.4f
Vested (35) 21.9¢ $ 58C
Canceled/forfeited (18) 20.3¢
UNVESTED BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 12¢ 19.4¢
Granted and assumed 58 17.57
Vested (37) 20.6¢ $ 71€
Canceled/forfeited (8) 18.9¢
UNVESTED BALANCE AT APRIL 27, 2013 141 ¢ 18.3¢
The assumptions for the valuation of RSUs are suizethas follows:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,

2013 2012 2013 2012
Expected dividend yield 2.7% 1.6% 3.0% 1.4%
Range of risk-free interest rates 0.1% - 0.9% 0.0% - 1.1% 0.0% - 0.9% 0.0% - 1.1%

(f) Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units

The Company granted approximately 4 million andiien performance-based awards (“PRSUs") for tireermonths ended April 27, 2013
and April 28, 2012 , respectively. These PRSUsargingent on the achievement of the Company'siéiish performance metrics or its
comparative market-based returns. On the dateawitgthe Company estimated the fair value of retstiii stock units with market-based
conditions using a Monte Carlo simulation modele BHssumptions used to determine the grant datedie of restricted stock units with
performance metrics conditions are included intétde immediately above.

(g) Stock Option Awards

A summary of the stock option activity is as folkwn millions, except per-share amounts):

STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

Number Weighted-Average
Outstanding Exercise Price per She

BALANCE AT JULY 30, 2011 621 $ 21.7¢
Assumed from acquisitions 1 2.0¢
Exercised (6€) 13.51
Canceled/forfeited/expired (3€) 23.4(
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2012 52C 22.6¢
Assumed from acquisitions 7 0.92
Exercised (57) 16.71
Canceled/forfeited/expired (90) 21.7C
BALANCE AT APRIL 27, 2013 38C g 23.42
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The following table summarizes significant rangésuistanding and exercisable stock options aspfl 7, 2013 (in millions, except years
and share prices):

STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDING STOCK OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
Weighted-
Average
Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Contractual Average Average
Number Life Exercise Price  Aggregate Number Exercise Price  Aggregate
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (in Years) per Share Intrinsic Value  Exercisable per Share Intrinsic Value
$ 0.01 - 15.00 9 5.88 $ 477 $ 14¢ 6 $ 73 $ 70
15.01 - 18.00 60 1.42 17.7¢ 178 60 17.7¢ 178
18.01 — 20.00 68 0.66 19.1% 10C 67 19.13 101
20.01 - 25.00 121 2.33 22.7¢ 2 121 22.7¢ 2
25.01 - 35.00 122 3.37 30.6¢ = 121 30.7( =
Total 38C 231 % 23.4; 9 424 37t ¢ 2366 9 34¢€

The aggregate intrinsic value in the precedingetabpresents the total pretax intrinsic value, thasethe Company's closing stock price of
$20.67 as of April 26, 2013, which would have besreived by the option holders had those optiodérslexercised their stock options as of
that date. The total number of in-the-money stquioms exercisable as of April 27, 2013 was 136ioml. As of July 28, 2012, 512 million
outstanding stock options were exercisable anavitighted-average exercise price was $22.65 .

15. Income Taxe!

The following table provides details of income taxm millions, except percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Income before provision for income taxes $ 2,948 $ 2,77¢  $ 8,35¢ % 7,772
Provision for income taxes $ 467 % 614 $ 642 $ 1,64¢
Effective tax rate 15.9% 22.1% 7.7% 21.2%

The effective tax rate for the three and nine mertihded April 27, 2013 reflected the Company'sgeition of a net tax benefit of
approximately $117 million which is due in largetpa lapses of the time period for assessmereofrt certain foreign jurisdictions. As
discussed below, the effective tax rate for themmnths ended April 27, 2013 also reflected then@any's recognition of tax benefits of
approximately $946 million , of which, $794 milliorlated to a tax settlement with the Internal RexeService (“IRS”) and $152 million
related to the reinstatement of the U.S. fedessdaech and development (“R&D”) tax credit.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the IRS &edGompany settled all outstanding items relateétiécaudit of the Company's federal
income tax returns for the fiscal years ended 2udly2002 through July 28, 2007. As a result ofdbiglement, the Company increased its
income tax receivable by $733 million and recogdiaenet benefit to the provision for income taxe$#94 million , which included a
reduction in interest expense of $157 million . iDgrthe third quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compaegeived its income tax refund from the
IRS. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. faldacome tax audit through fiscal 2007.

Also during the second quarter of fiscal 2013,Angerican Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 reinstated th8. federal R&D tax credit, retroact
to January 1, 2012. As a result, during the ninettended April 27, 2013, the Company recognintal tax benefits of $152 million , of
which $72 million related to fiscal 2012 R&D expess

As a result of the IRS tax settlement, the amotigrass unrecognized tax benefits was reduced pyoapmately $1.0 billion , of which $154
million , which was previously paid by the Compahgcame certain as a result of completing the afdiof April 27, 2013 the total amoul

of gross unrecognized tax benefits was $1.8 billiohwhich, $1.5 billionwould affect the effective tax rate if realized.eT@ompany believe

it is reasonably possible that certain federakifpm, and state tax matters may be concluded ingke12 months. Specific positions that may
be resolved include issues involving transfer pgcand various other matters. The Company estintlaédst is reasonably possible that the
unrecognized tax benefits at April 27, 2013 cowdddduced in the next 12 months by approximate§03illion .
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16. Segment Information and Major Customers
(@) Net Sales and Gross Margin by Segme

The Company conducts business globally and is piliyraanaged on a geographic basis consistingrektisegments: the Americas; EMEA,;
and APJC. The Company's management makes finateziadions and allocates resources based on theniafion it receives from its intern
management system. Sales are attributed to a sédpamsad on the ordering location of the customiee Tompany does not allocate research
and development, sales and marketing, or genedshdministrative expenses to its segments in tigsal management system because
management does not include the information imigasurement of the performance of the operatingneets. In addition, the Company d¢
not allocate amortization and impairment of acdigisirelated intangible assets, share-based corafienexpense, impacts to cost of sales
from purchase accounting adjustments to inventrgrges related to asset impairments and restiogsjrand certain other charges to the
gross margin for each segment because managenmenhdbinclude this information in its measurenwnthe performance of the operating
segments.

Summarized financial information by segment for tttvee and nine months ended April 27, 2013 andl 2Br 2012 , based on the
Company's internal management system and as dtliigehe Company's Chief Operating Decision MakéODM"), is as follows (in
millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net sales:
Americas $ 7,127 $ 6,466 $ 21,28t $ 19,60¢
EMEA 3,131 3,16( 9,06t 9,25t
APJC 1,95¢ 1,96: 5,83¢ 5,51(
Total $ 12,21¢ $ 11,58t $ 36,19C $ 34,37
Gross margin:
Americas 4,46( 4,05: 13,34 12,31¢
EMEA 2,04¢ 2,01¢ 5,85( 5,86¢
APJC 1,19 1,24: 3,49¢ 3,34:
Segment total 7,701 7,314 22,68¢ 21,52¢
Unallocated corporate items (290 (14¢%) (592) (40%)
Total $ 7511 % 7,16¢ % 22,090 % 21,12«

Net sales in the United States, which is incluagethe Americas, wer$6.1 billion and $5.5 billion for the three monthrsded April 27, 2013
and April 28, 2012 , respectively, and were $18l&h and $16.6 billion for the nine months end&gril 27, 2013 and April 28, 2012 ,
respectively.

(b) Net Sales for Groups of Similar Products and Servie

The Company designs, manufactures, and sells ktt@motocol (“IP")-based networking and other praduelated to the communications
and IT industry, and provides services associaifutivese products and their use. The Company grisproducts and technologies into the
following categories: Switching, NGN Routing, SemiProvider Video, Collaboration, Data Center, \léss, Security, and Other Products.
These products, primarily integrated by Cisco |@8ware, link geographically dispersed local-areaworks (“LANS”), metropolitan-area
networks (“MANs"), and wide-area networks (“WANshe Company has made certain reclassificatiotiset@rior period amounts to
conform to the current period's presentation.
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The following table presents net sales for grodpsimilar products and services (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net sales:

Switching $ 3,59¢ % 3,661 $ 10,93¢ $ 10,96¢
NGN Routing 2,14( 2,13¢ 6,13¢ 6,29¢
Service Provider Video 1,29¢ 99¢ 3,667 2,89¢
Collaboration 1,01z 1,022 2,97¢ 3,19(
Data Center 51t 291 1,48( 88:¢
Wireless 522 413 1,52¢ 1,17¢
Security 327 34z 1,001 994
Other 144 244 562 773
Product 9,55¢ 9,10¢€ 28,29: 27,17¢
Service 2,651 2,482 7,891 7,19t
Total $ 12,21¢ $ 11,58t % 36,19C $ 34,37

(c) Additional Segment Information

The majority of the Company's assets, excluding easl cash equivalents and investments, as of 2pyi2013 and July 28, 2012 w ere
attributable to its U.S. operations. The Compatota cash and cash equivalents and investmendshiyelarious foreign subsidiaries were
$39.5 hillion and $42.5 billion as of April 27, 2Dand July 28, 2012, respectively, and the remgi#in9 billion and $6.2 billion at the
respective period ends was available in the Uriitiedes.

Property and equipment information is based orpthesical location of the assets. The following ¢aptesents property and equipment
information for geographic areas (in millions):

April 27, July 28,
2013 2012
Property and equipment, net:
United States $ 2,76C % 2,84z
International 57C 56(
Total $ 333C % 3,40z
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17. Net Income per Shari

The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted net income per share (in millions;ept per-share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net income $ 2,47¢ 3 2,16t $ 7,712 % 6,12¢
Weighted-average shares - basic 5,32¢ 5,38¢ 5,31¢ 5,38:
Effect of dilutive potential common shares 58 68 45 35
Weighted-average shares - diluted 5,387 5,45¢ 5,361 5,41¢
Net income per share - basic $ 047 $ 0.4C $ 1.4 $ 1.14
Net income per share - diluted $ 0.4€ $ 04C $ 144 $ 1.1:
Antidilutive employee share-based awards, excluded 245 29C 417 53¢

Employee equity share options, unvested sharessiamldr equity instruments granted by the Compargytreated as potential common
shares outstanding in computing diluted earningspare. Diluted shares outstanding include thdidé effect of in-the-money options,
unvested restricted stock, and restricted stoctsufihe dilutive effect of such equity awards ikakated based on the average share price for
each fiscal period using the treasury stock methiodler the treasury stock method, the amount th@@me must pay for exercising stock
options, the amount of compensation cost for fusem¥ice that the Company has not yet recognizaditlee amount of tax benefits that wa

be recorded in additional paid-in capital whendhard becomes deductible are collectively assumée used to repurchase shares.
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ltem 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including thianagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financmddtion and Results of Operations,
contains forward-looking statements regarding ®iewents and our future results that are subjetietsafe harbors created under the
Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) ame tSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchang®)AAll statements other than
statements of historical facts are statementscthati be deemed forward-looking statements. Thiedersents are based on current
expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projectiboat the industries in which we operate and tliefs and assumptions of our managen
Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “targetgdals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believe’s;,seeks,” “estimates,” “continues,”
“endeavors,” “strives,” “may,” variations of suctovds and similar expressions are intended to ifiestich forward-looking statements. In
addition, any statements that refer to projectimingur future financial performance, our anticightgowth and trends in our businesses, and
other characterizations of future events or cirdamses are forward-looking statements. Readersaartoned that these forward-looking
statements are only predictions and are subjetiks, uncertainties, and assumptions that arediffto predict, including those identified
below, under “Part Il, Iltem 1A. Risk Factors,” agldewhere herein. Therefore, actual results mdgrdifiaterially and adversely from those
expressed in any forward-looking statements. Weerttalle no obligation to revise or update any fodalaoking statements for any reason.

OVERVIEW

We design, manufacture, and sell Internet Prot@t®l) based networking and other products reldtethe communications and information
technology (“IT”) industry and provide services @gated with these products and their use. We gesaibroad line of products for
transporting data, voice, and video within buildingcross campuses, and around the world. Our giodte designed to transform how
people connect, communicate, and collaborate. @gyets are utilized at enterprise businessesj@unstitutions, telecommunications
companies and other service providers, commerasihiesses, and personal residences.

A summary of our results is as follows (in milligrexcept percentages and per-share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance
Net sales $ 12,21¢ $ 11,58¢ 5.4% $ 36,19C $ 34,37 5.3%
Gross margin percentage 61.5% 61.% (0.4 pts 61.(% 61.5% (0.5) pts
Research and development $ 154: $  1,35¢ 13.£% $ 4,428 $  4,07: 8.7%
Sales and marketing $ 2,37F % 2,38: (0.9% $ 7,17¢ % 7,23( (0.%
General and administrative $ 53C $ 562 (5.71% $ 167/ $ 1,611 3.8%
Total R&D, sales and marketing,
general and administrative $ 4,447 $  4,30¢ 3.3% $ 13277 $ 12,91t 2.8%
Total as a percentage of revenue 36.4% 37.1% (0.7 pts 36.7% 37.6% (0.¢) pts
Amortization of purchased intangible
assets $ 89 $ 9€ (7.9% $ 32¢ 3 292 12.7%
Restructuring and other charges $ 33 $ 2C 65.C % $ 105 % 22F (53.9%
Operating income as a percentage of
revenue 24.1% 23.1% 0.4 pts 23.2% 22.L% 0.8 pts
Income tax percentage 15.% 22.1% (6.2) pts 7.7% 21.2% (13.5) pts
Net income $ 2,47¢ % 2,16t 14.5% $ 7,71 % 6,12¢ 25.€%
Net income as a percentage of reven 20.2% 18.71% 1.€ pts 21.2% 17.€% 3.5 pts
Earnings per share-diluted $ 0.4€ % 0.4C 15.C% $ 144  $ 1.1: 27.£%
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Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hivlonths Ended April 28, 2012

For the third quarter of fiscal 2013, we contintie@xecute on our plan to deliver profitable growter the long term by maintaining our
focus on operational excellence and portfolio managnt. Net sales increased 5% , with net prodiles $acreasing 5% and service revenue
increasing 7% . The net product sales increasdémlasge part due to our acquisition of NDS, whiehs completed at the beginning of fiscal
2013. Total gross margin decreased by 0.4 percemqaigts. Operating income as a percentage of uevercreased by 0.4 percentage points,
primarily as a result of our continuing focus opemse management. Diluted earnings per share sertdry 15% from the prior year period,
a result of both a 14% increase in net income aghelctine in our diluted share count by 69 millidrases. Net income for the third quarter of
fiscal 2013 benefited from a lower effective tatera

For the third quarter of fiscal 2013, as compar&# tine prior year period, net sales increased®$ $illion . The Americas contributed the
majority of the increase led by a sales increagbhearinited States. APJC was flat, while EMEA eigrared a slight decline.

For the third quarter of fiscal 2013, as compar&# tine prior year period, net product sales amdise revenue increased by $0.5 billion and
$0.2 billion , respectively. The product sales @ase was driven by the following: an increase o8 $dllion from Service Provider Video
products driven in large part by the acquisitiolN&fS at the beginning of fiscal 2013; an increas®002 billion from Data Center products,
due to continued strong customer demand, and aease of $0.1 billiofrom Wireless products, due to continued demandhfese solution:
These net product sales increases, along withetivéce revenue contribution, reflect, in our vighe success we are experiencing with our
technology architectures and our ability to deliwestomer solutions, particularly in both the eptise and service provider data center and
cloud environments.

These increases were partially offset by net prodales decreases in our Switching, Security, avithGoration product categories. In
addition, sales in our Other Products categoryesesed by $0.1 billion due in large part to the séleur Linksys product line which was
completed in the third quarter of fiscal 2013.

In summary, during the third quarter of fiscal 200/@ continued to execute on our plan to delivefifable growth over the long term. We
did so even as we continued to experience the bfloheroeconomic challenges we have faced in reqpasuters including, in particular,
weakness in the European economy, global publimsspending, and a conservative approach to Idtedlcapital spending by customers.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

Net sales increasé% , with net product sales increasing 4% and semgvenue increasing 10% . The increase in neluptsales was due

in large part to our acquisition of NDS. We achigwet sales increases in our Americas and APJCrgplig segments, while net sales in our
EMEA geographic segment declined. Total gross madgtcreased by 0.5 percentage points. As a pegeeofaevenue, research and
development, sales and marketing, and general @méhistrative expenses collectively declined by fie®centage points primarily due to
lower sales and marketing expenses. Operating ia@sa percentage of revenue increased by 0.8np&geepoints, primarily as a result of
lower restructuring charges and our continuing ooo expense management.

Diluted earnings per share increased by 27% fraptior year, a result of both a 26% increase trim@mme and a decline by our diluted
share count of 57 million shares. A significanttpmr of the increase in net income was attributabltal tax benefits of $1.1 billion ,
primarily related to a tax settlement with the IR reinstatement of the U.S. federal R&D tax itrechd lapses of the time period for
assessment of tax in certain foreign jurisdictions.

Strategy and Focus Areas

Our focus continues to be on our five foundatiqrarities:
» Leadership in our core business (routing, svifighand associated services), which includes ceh®sive security and mobility
solutions
» Collaboratiol
» Data center virtualization and clc
* Videc
» Architectures for business transforma

We believe that focusing on these priorities besitpns us to continue to expand our share ottastomers' information technology
spending.
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We continue to undergo product transitions in aredusiness, including the introduction of nextgation products with higher price
performance and architectural advantages compaitbdbath our prior generation of products and thedpct offerings of our competitors.
We believe that many of these product transitiorsgaining momentum based on the strong year-oear{roduct revenue growth across
these next-generation product families. We belibet our strategy and our ability to innovate areoaite may enable us to improve our
relative competitive position in many of our protlaceas even in uncertain or difficult businessditions and, therefore, may continue to
provide us with long-term growth opportunities. Hawer, we believe that these newly introduced prtedoay continue to negatively impact
product gross margins, which we are currently stg\to address through various initiatives, inchglvalue engineering; effective supply
chain management; and delivering greater customleehrough offers that include hardware, softwarel services.

We continue to seek to capitalize on market traovsst which we believe will continue to come atirereasing pace. Market transitions
relating to the network are becoming, in our vievare significant as intelligent networks have mofredh being a mere cost center isshat
is, where the focus is on reducing network opegatiosts and increasing network-related productitdthecoming, additionally and
increasingly, a platform for improved revenue getien as well as driving business agility and siggitexecution.

Market transitions for which we are primarily foedgsinclude those related to the increased rolértfalization/the cloud, video,

collaboration, networked mobility technologies, transition from Internet Protocol Version 4 todntet Protocol Version 6, and the Internet
of Everything. For example, a market in which anffigant market transition is underway is the eptise data center market, where a
transition to virtualization/the cloud is rapidlyadving. There is a continued growing awarenessitfialligent networks are becoming the
platform for productivity improvement and globalnepetitiveness. We believe that disruption in theemrise data center market is
accelerating, due to changing technology trendb asahe increasing adoption of virtualization, filse in scalable processing, and the advent
of cloud computing and cloud-based IT resourceaapents and business models. These key terms fanedi@s follows:

» Virtualization:Refers to the process of creating a virtual, ompigsical, version of a device or resource, such server, storage
device, network or an operating system, in suclag tlvat human users as well as other devices @odinees are able to interact w
the virtual resource as if it were an actual ptalsiesource. For example, one type of virtualizatgserver or data center
virtualization, which consists of aggregating therent siloed data center resources into unifiedrexd resource pools that can be
dynamically delivered to applications on demandstanabling the ability to move content and apfibees between devices and the
network.

» The cloudRefers to an information technology hosting andveey system in which resources, such as servessfoware
applications, are no longer tethered to a useysipdl infrastructure but instead are deliveredrid consumed by the user “on
demand” as an Internet-based service, whether lgirigor with multiple other users simultaneously.

This virtualization and cloud-driven market traisitin the enterprise data center market is bemgdht about through the convergence of
networking, computing, storage, and software teldgies. We are seeking to take advantage of thikehé&ransition through, among other
things, our Cisco Unified Computing System platfand Cisco Nexus product families, which are desigio integrate the previously siloed
technologies in the enterprise data center withifiad architecture. We are also seeking to cap#abn this market transition through the
development of other cloud-based product and sewfierings through which we intend to enable congtrs to develop and deploy their own
cloud-based IT solutions, including software-asasge (“SaaS”) and other-as-a-service (“XaaS"usohs.

The competitive landscape in the enterprise datgecenarket is changing. Very large, well-financadd aggressive competitors are each
bringing their own new class of products to addth&snew market. We expect this competitive mattezid to continue. With respect to this
market, we believe the network will be the intetgetof innovation through an open ecosystem aaddsrds. We expect to see acquisitions,
further industry consolidation, and new alliance®ag companies as they seek to serve the entegaiaecenter market. As we enter this
next market phase, we expect that we will strengttestain strategic alliances, compete more wittagestrategic alliances and partners, and
perhaps also encounter new competitors in our attéordeliver the best solutions for our customers.

We believe that the architectural approach thahawee undertaken in the enterprise data center migrkelaptable to other markets. An
example of a market where we aim to apply this @@ is mobility, where growth of IP traffic on ltreld devices is driving the need for
more robust architectures, equipment and servicesder to accommodate not only an increasing numieorldwide mobile device users,
but also increased user demand for broadband-gumiginess network and consumer web applicatiobg tdelivered on such devices. A key
term in this mobility-centered market transitiorfByOD,” an acronym for “bring your own device,” wdh in the context of IT usage in
companies, universities, and other organizatiofesseo the growing trend of employees, custonsdtglents, and others associated with such
entities to bring and use their own laptop comgjtemartphones, tablets or other mobile devicethsr work or participation, instead of
using equipment provided by the organization.
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With regard to this market transition, to help sochanizations meet the demands of increasing BYi®d&ye, our product development
strategy involves a comprehensive architecturatagoh that will allow for, among other things, afig security policy across the whole
organization; a simplified operations and netwodnagement structure that understands applicatidorpence from a user's perspective,
enhances troubleshooting capability and lowers odtwperating costs; and an uncompromised useriexge over the organization's entire
wireless and wired network that embraces use okarg/of device. Our mobility-related products asudutions reflect this architecturbhsec
approach.

Other market transitions on which we are focusiagipular attention include those related to thevemgence of video, collaboration, and
networked mobility technologies, which we believid drive productivity and growth in network loadsid which convergence appears to be
evolving even more quickly and more significantipn we had previously anticipated. Cisco TeleP@ssgstems are one example of pro
offerings that have incorporated video, collabamtiand networked mobility technologies, as custsmeolve their communications and
business models. More generally, we are focusesimplifying and expanding the creation, distribatiand use of end-tend video solution
for businesses and consumers.

A market transition on which we are focusing is ti@ve toward more programmable, flexible, and arnetworks, sometimes called
Software Defined Networking, or SDN. This move &iwork programmability encompasses technologiek aacSDN and is focused on
moving from a hardware-centric approach for netwagho a virtualized network environment that isideed to enable flexible, application-
driven customization of network infrastructures. Bédieve the successful products and solutionkignrharket will combine application-
specific-integrated-circuits (“ASICs”) with hardveaand software elements together to meet custoto&ktost of ownership, quality,
security, scalability and experience requiremdntsur view, there is no single architecture thgimorts all customer requirements in this
area. Our strategy is targeted to address a bewapbrof specific customer use cases, and we believeave an effective strategy that also
enables us to look to next steps that will folldwe initial implementations that are underway.

We have announced our strategy to address thigmmity with the Cisco Open Network Environment,@isco ONE, including overlay
network technology, application programming integfa (“APIs”), and network-operation tools calle@aty and controllers and we have
several customers in a trial phase for these solstiln our view, this evolution is in its very geastages, but we believe we have a
differentiated strategy. We intend to continue fiwalinternal innovation, partner for co-developmemd make strategic investments to lead
this evolution.

Other Key Financial Measures

The following is a summary of our other key finaeheasures for the third quarter and first ninenthe of fiscal 2013 (in millions, except
days sales outstanding in accounts receivable (“D&@ annualized inventory turns):

April 27, July 28,
2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents and investments $47,388 $48,716
Deferred revenue $12,685 $12,880
DSO 37 days 34 days
Inventories $1,469 $1,663
Annualized inventory turns 12.4 11.7

Nine Months Ended

April 27, April 28,

2013 2012
Cash provided by operating activities $8,908 $8,403
Repurchases of common stock - stock repurchasegmg $1,613 $2,560
Dividends $2,392 $1,076
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements and reldisdosures in conformity with accounting prineglgenerally accepted in the United St
requires us to make judgments, assumptions, aimdagss that affect the amounts reported in the Glateted Financial Statements and
accompanying notes. Note 2 to the ConsolidatedngéinhStatements in our Annual Report on Form 1lfdkthe year ended July 28, 2012, as
updated as applicable in Note 2 to the Consolidatedncial Statements herein, describes the sigmfiaccounting policies and methods t

in the preparation of the Consolidated Financiat&hents. The accounting policies described belevgignificantly affected by critical
accounting estimates. Such accounting policiesiregignificant judgments, assumptions, and esésased in the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, and actualtsesauld differ materially from the amounts repdrimsed on these policies.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when all of the followingeria have been met:

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exContracts, Internet commerce agreements, and casfjounchase orders are generally
used to determine the existence of an arrangement.

» Delivery has occurrecShipping documents and customer acceptance, whiicaple, are used to verify delive

» The fee is fixed or determinabl&e assess whether the fee is fixed or determinzsded on the payment terms associated with the
transaction and whether the sales price is sutjaetfund or adjustment.

» Collectibility is reasonably assure/e assess collectibility based primarily on theditreorthiness of the customer as determined by
credit checks and analysis, as well as the custemayment history.

In instances where final acceptance of the prodystem, or solution is specified by the custommrenue is deferred until all acceptance
criteria have been met. When a sale involves maltigliverables, such as sales of products thatdecservices, the multiple deliverables are
evaluated to determine the unit of accounting, thedentire fee from the arrangement is allocateshtth unit of accounting based on the
relative selling price. Revenue is recognized wiienrevenue recognition criteria for each unitafaunting are met.

The amount of product and service revenue recodniza given period is affected by our judgmentcaghether an arrangement includes
multiple deliverables and, if so, our valuatiortleé units of accounting for multiple deliverabl@scording to the accounting guidance
prescribed in Accounting Standards Codification$@) 605,Revenue Recognitigrwe use vendor-specific objective evidence ofiragl|
price (“VSOE”) for each of those units, when aviaiéa We determine VSOE based on our normal priaimdj discounting practices for the
specific product or service when sold separatelgldtermining VSOE, we require that a substantgjbnity of the historical standalone
transactions have the selling prices for a produservice fall within a reasonably narrow priciagnge, generally evidenced by
approximately 80% of such historical standalonada&tions falling within plus or minus 15% of thedran rates. When VSOE does not
exist, we apply the selling price hierarchy to &mille multiple-deliverable arrangements. Undersiséng price hierarchy, third-party
evidence of selling price (“TPE") will be considdrié VSOE does not exist, and estimated sellingg(fESP") will be used if neither VSOE
nor TPE is available. Generally, we are not ablégt@rmine TPE because our go-to-market strate@grslfrom that of others in our markets,
and the extent of our proprietary technology vaae®ng comparable products or services from thbsargeers. In determining ESP, we
apply significant judgment as we weigh a varietyaators, based on the facts and circumstancdsedairangement. We typically arrive at an
ESP for a product or service that is not sold sapr by considering company-specific factors saslgeographies, competitive landscape,
internal costs, profitability objectives, pricingagtices used to establish bundled pricing, anstiexj portfolio pricing and discounting.

Some of our sales arrangements have multiple dalies containing software and related softwar@sugomponents. Such sales
arrangements are subject to the accounting guidan&8C 985-605Software-Revenue Recognition

As our business and offerings evolve over time,griging practices may be required to be modifiedoadingly, which could result in
changes in selling prices, including both VSOE B&dP, in subsequent periods. There were no maienpacts during the quarter nor do we
currently expect a material impact in the next t@ahonths on our revenue recognition due to anpgésin our VSOE, TPE, or ESP.

Revenue deferrals relate to the timing of revemaeegnition for specific transactions based on foiragy arrangements, service, support, and
other factors. Financing arrangements may inclatksstype, direct-financing, and operating leakes)s, and guarantees of third-party
financing. Our deferred revenue for products wa® $4lion and $3.7 billion as of April 27, 2013a@duly 28, 2012, respectively. Technical
support services revenue is deferred and recognaally over the period during which the serviaesto be performed, which typically is
from one to three years. Advanced services reveneeognized upon delivery or completion of parfance. Our deferred revenue for
services was $8.7 billion and $9.2 billion as ofrih@7, 2013 and July 28, 2012, respectively.
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We make sales to distributors and retail partnehsch we refer to as two-tier systems of salehéodnd customer. Revenue from distributors
and retail partners is recognized based on als@ixjh method using information provided by therar Gistributors and retail partners
participate in various cooperative marketing arfteoprograms, and we maintain estimated accrualabmwances for these programs. If
actual credits received by our distributors andit@artners under these programs were to devigiéfisantly from our estimates, which are
based on historical experience, our revenue coeladversely affected.

Allowances for Receivables and Sales Returns

The allowances for receivables were as followsiltions, except percentages):

April 27, July 28,
2013 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 22t $ 207
Percentage of gross accounts receivable 4.4% 4.5%
Allowance for credit loss - lease receivables $ 24F $ 247
Percentage of gross lease receivables 6.5% 7.2%
Allowance for credit loss - loan receivables $ 93 $ 122
Percentage of gross loan receivables 5.6% 6.8%

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based orasgessment of the collectibility of customer acteuwWe regularly review the adequac
these allowances by considering internal factoch ss historical experience, credit quality and @fgihe receivable balances, as well as
external factors such as economic conditions tfat affect a customer's ability to pay and expedefdult frequency rates, which are
published by major third-party credit-rating agexscand are generally updated on a quarterly BA&salso consider the concentration of
receivables outstanding with a particular custoimessessing the adequacy of our allowances fdstéldiaccounts. If a major customer's
creditworthiness deteriorates, if actual defaulestagher than our historical experience, or ifestbircumstances arise, our estimates of the
recoverability of amounts due to us could be owatest, and additional allowances could be requindtich could have an adverse impact on
our operating results.

The allowance for credit loss on financing recelgalis also based on the assessment of collettibflicustomer accounts. We regularly
review the adequacy of the credit allowances detexdheither on an individual or a collective ba¥ien evaluating the financing
receivables on an individual basis, we consideolital experience, credit quality and age of reakie balances, and economic conditions
that may affect a customer's ability to pay. Whealgating the financing receivables on a collectasis, we use expected default frequency
rates published by a major third-party credit-ratimency as well as our own historical loss ratiénevent of default, while also
systematically giving effect to economic conditipagncentration of risk and correlation. Determinéxpected default frequency rates and
loss factors associated with internal credit ristings, as well as assessing factors such as e@oronditions, concentration of risk, and
correlation, are complex and subjective. Our ongaionsideration of all these factors could resulin increase in our allowance for credit
loss in the future, which could adversely affeat operating results. Both accounts receivable arah€ing receivables are charged off at the
point when they are considered uncollectible.

A reserve for future sales returns is establistes8 on historical trends in product return rakée. reserve for future sales returns as of
April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012 was $133 milliovd&129 million, respectively, and was recorded as a reducti@unéccounts receivabl
If the actual future returns were to deviate frém historical data on which the reserve had betbkshed, our revenue could be adversely
affected.

Inventory Valuation and Liability for Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers and Suppliers

Our inventory balance was $1.5 billion and $1.%dyilas of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012, resjpety. Inventory is written down based
on excess and obsolete inventories determined phlyniy future demand forecasts. Inventory writeaths are measured as the difference
between the cost of the inventory and market, baped assumptions about future demand, and argethéo the provision for inventory,
which is a component of our cost of sales. At thimfof the loss recognition, a new, lower costibéar that inventory is established, and
subsequent changes in facts and circumstancestdesuit in the restoration or increase in that Iyesstablished cost basis.

We record a liability for firm, noncancelable, amtconditional purchase commitments with contractufiacturers and suppliers for
guantities in excess of our future demand foreaamtsistent with the valuation of our excess argblgie inventory. As of April 27, 2013 ,
the liability for these purchase commitments wag8illion , compared with $193 million as of J@§, 2012, and was included in other
current liabilities. Our provision for inventory w&92 million and $91 million for the first nine mihs of fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The provision for the liability related to purchasmmmitments with contract manufacturers and sepplivas $76 million and $103 millidar
the first nine months of fiscal 2013 and 2012, eesipely.
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If there were to be a sudden and significant deer@ademand for our products, or if there werggadr incidence of inventory obsolescence
because of rapidly changing technology and custaatgrirements, we could be required to increasenwentory write-downs, and our
liability for purchase commitments with contractmé&acturers and suppliers, and accordingly ourifatwifity could be adversely affected.
We regularly evaluate our exposure for inventoritavdowns and the adequacy of our liability for ghase commitments. Inventory and
supply chain management remain areas of focus dml@ace the need to maintain supply chain flexjbib help ensure competitive lead
times with the risk of inventory obsolescence, ipatarly in light of current macroeconomic uncent#s and conditions and the resulting
potential for changes in future demand forecast.

Warranty Costs

The liability for product warranties, included ither current liabilities, was $431 million as of |27, 2013 , compared with $415 million as
of July 28, 2012. See Note 12 to the Consolidaiedritial Statements. Our products are generallg@l/by a warranty for periods ranging
from 90 days to five years, and for some produ@gvovide a limited lifetime warranty. We accrue fearranty costs as part of our cost of
sales based on associated material costs, teclsnjopbrt labor costs, and associated overheadrisllatest is estimated based primarily u
historical trends in the volume of product retuwithin the warranty period and the cost to repaireplace the equipment. Technical support
labor cost is estimated based primarily upon hisabtrends in the rate of customer cases anddbeto support the customer cases within the
warranty period. Overhead cost is applied basegstimated time to support warranty activities.

The provision for product warranties issued dutimgfirst nine months of fiscal 2013 and 2012 w&84bmillion and $474 million ,
respectively. The increase in the provision fornamaties was primarily due to increased shipmentwel of products. If we experience an
increase in warranty claims compared with our hist experience, or if the cost of servicing watyaclaims is greater than expected, our
profitability could be adversely affected.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

Share-based compensation expense is presenteltbasfin millions):

Nine Months Ended

April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 Variance
Share-based compensation expense $ 88C $ 1,032 $ (152)

Restricted stock units are valued using the marélete of our common stock on the date of grantaliated for the present value of expected
dividends. Restricted stock unit awards with matieted conditions are valued using a Monte Canhulsition. See Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The determination of the fair value of employeektoptions and employee stock purchase rights emi#te of grant using an option-pricing
model is affected by our stock price as well asiaggions regarding a number of highly complex amgiective variables. For employee st
options and employee stock purchase rights, thesables include, but are not limited to, the expéstock price volatility over the term of
the awards, the risk-free interest rate, and expledividends as of the grant date. For employesk siptions, we historically have used the
implied volatility for two-year traded options onrostock as the expected volatility assumption iregluin the lattice-binomial model. For
employee stock purchase rights, we used the impbéatility for traded options (with lives corregming to the expected life of the employ
stock purchase rights) on our stock. The seleafdhe implied volatility approach was based upwoa availability of actively traded options
on our stock and our assessment that implied Vibtas more representative of future stock prieents than historical volatility. The
valuation of employee stock options is also impadte kurtosis and skewness, which are technicabaorea of the distribution of stock price
returns and the actual and projected employee siptitin exercise behaviors.

Because sharkased compensation expense is based on awardateliyrexpected to vest, it has been reduced féeifares. If factors chani
and we employ different assumptions in the appboadf our option-pricing model in future periodsibwe experience different forfeiture
rates, the compensation expense that is deriveddiffay significantly from what we have recordedtive current period.

Fair Value Measurements

Our fixed income and publicly traded equity sedesit collectively, are reflected in the ConsolidbBalance Sheets at a fair value of $42.3
billion as of April 27, 2013 , compared with $3&lion as of July 28, 2012. Our fixed income intraent portfolio, as of April 27, 2013,
consisted primarily of high-quality investment-geaskcurities. See Note 8 to the Consolidated Fiab8tatements.
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As described more fully in Note 9 to the ConsokdbEFinancial Statements, a valuation hierarchyaget on the level of independent,
objective evidence available regarding the valuthefinvestments. It encompasses three classasasdtments: Level 1 consists of securities
for which there are quoted prices in active markatsdentical securities; Level 2 consists of g@@s for which observable inputs other than
Level 1 inputs are used, such as quoted pricesirftlar securities in active markets or quoted gsifor identical securities in less active
markets and model-derived valuations for whichwtheables are derived from, or corroborated bygeolsble market data; and Level 3
consists of securities for which there are unolzasvinputs to the valuation methodology that &gaificant to the measurement of the fair
value.

Our Level 2 securities are valued using quoted etgpkices for similar instruments or nonbinding kedrprices that are corroborated by
observable market data. We use inputs such asl aeida data, benchmark yields, broker/dealer qj@ed other similar data, which are
obtained from independent pricing vendors, quotadket prices, or other sources to determine thenate fair value of our assets and
liabilities. We use such pricing data as the pririaput, to which we have not made any materialisitiients during fiscal 2013 and fiscal
2012, to make our assessments and determinatidogdtas ultimate valuation of our investment pditfoWe are ultimately responsible for
the financial statements and underlying estimates.

The inputs and fair value are reviewed for reastamass, may be further validated by comparisorutdiply available information, and could
be adjusted based on market indices or other irdtiam that management deems material to its estinfafair value. The assessment of fair
value can be difficult and subjective. However agivthe relative reliability of the inputs we usevédue our investment portfolio, and because
substantially all of our valuation inputs are ob& using quoted market prices for similar or idehtassets, we do not believe that the nature
of estimates and assumptions affected by levedsibjectivity and judgment was material to the vimaof the investment portfolio as of

April 27, 2013 . We had no Level 3 investmentsiim ttal portfolio as of April 27, 2013 .

Other-than-Temporary Impairments

We recognize an impairment charge when the declinde fair values of our fixed income or publi¢thpded equity securities below their
cost basis are judged to be other than temporamy Lltimate value realized on these securitiedyg@xtent unhedged, is subject to market
price volatility until they are sold.

If the fair value of a debt security is less thimnaimortized cost, we assess whether the impairimether than temporary. An impairment is
considered other than temporary if (i) we haveitient to sell the security, (ii) it is more likeflgan not that we will be required to sell the
security before recovery of its entire amortizedtdmasis, or (iii) we do not expect to recoverehére amortized cost of the security. If an
impairment is considered other than temporary base() or (ii) described in the prior sentences #ntire difference between the amortized
cost and the fair value of the security is recogdiin earnings. If an impairment is considered iothen temporary based on condition (iii),
the amount representing credit loss, defined adlifference between the present value of the dasisfexpected to be collected and the
amortized cost basis of the debt security, wiltéd@gnized in earnings, and the amount relatirajltother factors will be recognized in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). In estimating the aimoand timing of cash flows expected to be codldctve consider all available
information, including past events, current comdlis, the remaining payment terms of the secutiyfinancial condition of the issuer,
expected defaults, and the value of underlyingatetbl.

For publicly traded equity securities, we considatious factors in determining whether we shouttbgmnize an impairment charge, including
the length of time and extent to which the fairneahas been less than our cost basis, the finarandition and near-term prospects of the
issuer, and our intent and ability to hold the Btwgent for a period of time sufficient to allow famy anticipated recovery in market value.

There were no impairment charges on our investriargablicly traded equity securities and fixedange securities in the first nine months
of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012. Our ongoing consatien of all the factors described previously cbrdsult in additional impairment charges
in the future, which could adversely affect our ilebme.

We also have investments in privately held commardieme of which are in the startup or developratages. As of April 27, 2013, our
investments in privately held companies were $88kom, compared with $858 million as of July 2812, and were included in other
assets. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financtdr8ents. We monitor these investments for evartgaumstances indicative of potential
impairment, and we will make appropriate reductionsarrying values if we determine that an impanicharge is required, based primarily
on the financial condition and near-term prospetthese companies. These investments are inhgmiskly because the markets for the
technologies or products these companies are danglare typically in the early stages and may nevaterialize. Our impairment charges
on investments in privately held companies were®fliion and $17 million for the first nine montle$ fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Asset Impairments

Our methodology for allocating the purchase pralating to purchase acquisitions is determineduthinoestablished valuation techniques.
Gooduwill represents a residual value as of the ia@tgpn date, which in most cases results in maagugoodwill as an excess of the purchase
consideration transferred plus the fair value of @aoncontrolling interest in the acquired compargrahe fair value of net assets acquired,
including contingent consideration. We perform getidmpairment tests on an annual basis in thettofiscal quarter and between annual
tests in certain circumstances for each reportitiy The assessment of fair value for goodwill @adchased intangible assets is based on
factors that market participants would use in atedy transaction in accordance with the new actingrguidance for the fair value
measurement of nonfinancial assets.

The goodwill recorded in the Consolidated Balankee®s as of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012 was6&Billion and $17.0 billion ,
respectively. The increase in goodwill for thetfintne months of fiscal 2013 was due in large padur acquisitions of NDS and Meraki. In
response to changes in industry and market conditiwe could be required to strategically realignresources and consider restructuring,
disposing of, or otherwise exiting businesses, tigiould result in an impairment of goodwill. Thevas no impairment of goodwill in the
first nine months of fiscal 2013 and 2012.

We make judgments about the recoverability of paseld intangible assets with finite lives whenewengs or changes in circumstances
indicate that an impairment may exist. Recoverghdf purchased intangible assets with finite lii@measured by comparing the carrying
amount of the asset to the future undiscounted ttasis the asset is expected to generate. We rewvidefinite-lived intangible assets for
impairment annually or whenever events or changegcumstances indicate the carrying value maybeatecoverable. Recoverability of
indefinite-lived intangible assets is measured daypparing the carrying amount of the asset to th&réudiscounted cash flows the asset is
expected to generate. If the asset is considerbd tmpaired, the amount of any impairment is mestbas the difference between the
carrying value and the fair value of the impaireded. Assumptions and estimates about future valugésemaining useful lives of our
purchased intangible assets are complex and siygie€hey can be affected by a variety of factorsluding external factors such as industry
and economic trends and internal factors such asges in our business strategy and our internatésts. There were no impairment cha
related to purchased intangible assets for therfire months of fiscal 2013 and 2012. Our onga@iogsideration of all the factors described
previously could result in additional impairmentaches in the future, which could adversely affestret income.

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the United Sttesnumerous foreign jurisdictions. Our effectiae rates differ from the statutory rate,
primarily due to the tax impact of state taxesefgn operations, research and development (“R&BX)dredits, tax audit settlements,
nondeductible compensation, international realigmsieand transfer pricing adjustments. Our effectax rate was 15.9% and 22.1% in the
third quarter of fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectivElyr effective tax rate was 7.7% and 21 f2#the first nine months of fiscal 2013 and 2(
respectively.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating oacertain tax positions and determining our pravidor income taxes. Although we belie
our reserves are reasonable, no assurance cawdretigat the final tax outcome of these mattersmait be different from that which is
reflected in our historical income tax provisiomglaccruals. We adjust these reserves in lighhahging facts and circumstances, such a
closing of a tax audit or the refinement of anraate. To the extent that the final tax outcoméhese matters is different than the amounts
recorded, such differences will impact the provisior income taxes in the period in which such deteation is made. The provision for
income taxes includes the impact of reserve promgsand changes to reserves that are considereapaippe, as well as the related net
interest and penalties.

Significant judgment is also required in determinany valuation allowance recorded against defameéssets. In assessing the need for a
valuation allowance, we consider all available ewick, including past operating results, estimatéstore taxable income, and the feasibility
of tax planning strategies. In the event that waenge our determination as to the amount of defderedssets that can be realized, we will
adjust our valuation allowance with a correspondingact to the provision for income taxes in thequtin which such determination is
made.

Our provision for income taxes is subject to vditgtand could be adversely impacted by earningsgwer than anticipated in countries
that have lower tax rates and higher than antiegbat countries that have higher tax rates; by gharin the valuation of our deferred tax
assets and liabilities; by expiration of or lapsethe R&D tax credit laws; by expiration of or Egs in tax incentives; by transfer pricing
adjustments, including the effect of acquisitionsoarr intercompany R&D cost-sharing arrangementlagadl structure; by tax effects of
nondeductible compensation; by tax costs relateédtéocompany realignments; by changes in accogmtimciples; or by changes in tax la
and regulations, including possible U.S. changdbddaxation of earnings of our foreign subsidisrithe deductibility of expenses
attributable to foreign income, or the foreign tagdit rules. Significant judgment is required &tatmine the recognition and measurement
attributes prescribed in the accounting guidanceif@ertainty in income taxes. The accounting gutgafor uncertainty in income taxes
applies to all income tax positions, including gogential recovery of previously paid taxes, whickettled unfavorably could adversely
impact our provision for income taxes or additiopaid-in capital.
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Further, as a result of certain of our ongoing eyplent and capital investment actions and commitsp@ur income in certain countries is
subject to reduced tax rates and in some casdsakyexempt from tax. Our failure to meet thesenaunitments could adversely impact our
provision for income taxes. In addition, we arejsabto the continuous examination of our incomergturns by the IRS and other tax
authorities. We regularly assess the likelihoodaferse outcomes resulting from these examinatmdstermine the adequacy of our
provision for income taxes. There can be no assertrat the outcomes from these continuous exaioirswill not have an adverse impact
on our operating results and financial condition.

Loss Contingencies

We are subject to the possibility of various lossgsing in the ordinary course of business. Wesitar the likelihood of loss or impairment

of an asset or the incurrence of a liability, a8l @& our ability to reasonably estimate the amainbss, in determining loss contingencies
estimated loss contingency is accrued when itabaiole that an asset has been impaired or a tiab#s been incurred and the amount of loss
can be reasonably estimated. We regularly evatuatent information available to us to determinesttier such accruals should be adjusted
and whether new accruals are required.

Third parties, including customers, have in the pasl may in the future assert claims or initidtigdtion related to exclusive patent,
copyright, trademark, and other intellectual préypeights to technologies and related standardsatearelevant to us. These assertions have
increased over time as a result of our growth dedyeneral increase in the pace of patent claisertians, particularly in the United States
any infringement or other intellectual propertyiclanade against us by any third party is successfuf we fail to develop non-infringing
technology or license the proprietary rights on o@rcially reasonable terms and conditions, ourrass, operating results, and financial
condition could be materially and adversely affdcte

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales
The following table presents the breakdown of aétsbetween product and service revenue (in milliexcept percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance Variance ir April 27, April 28, Variance Variance ir
2013 2012 in Dollars  Percent 2013 2012 in Dollars  Percent
Net sales:

Product $ 9,55¢ $ 9,10¢ $ 45: 5% $ 28,29 $  27,17¢ $ 1,117 4.1%

Percentage of net sales 78.2% 78.6% 78.2% 79.1%
Service 2,651 2,48 17¢ 7.1% 7,89 7,19¢ 70z 9.8%

Percentage of net sales 21.8% 21.4% 21.8% 20.9%
Total $ 12,21« $ 11,58t¢ $ 62¢ 5.4% $ 36,19( $ 34,37 $ 1,81¢ 5.3%

We manage our business primarily on a geograplsis barganized into three geographic segmentsn@usales, which include product and
service revenue for each segment, are summarizbe iiollowing table (in millions, except percergay

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance Variance in April 27, April 28, Variance Variance in
2013 2012 in Dollars Percent 2013 2012 in Dollars Percent
Net sales:
Americas $ 7,127 $ 6,46¢ $ 661 10.2% $ 21,28¢ $ 19,60¢ $ 1,68C 8.€%
Percentage of net sales 58.4% 55.8% 58.9% 57.0%
EMEA 3,131 3,16( (29 (0.9% 9,06t 9,25¢ (190 (2.)%
Percentage of net sales 25.6% 27.3% 25.0% 27.0%
APJC 1,95¢ 1,96: 4) (0.2% 5,83¢ 5,51( 32¢ 6.C%
Percentage of net sales 16.0% 16.9% 16.1% 16.0%
Total $  12,21¢ $ 11,58¢ $ 62¢ 54% $ 36,19 $ 34,37 $ 1,81¢ 5.2
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Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hivlonths Ended April 28, 2012

For the third quarter of fiscal 2013, as compardti the third quarter of fiscal 2012, net salegéased by 5% Net product sales increasec
5% , while service revenue increased by 7% . Nedyet sales reflected growth in our Americas and@Beographic segments, while net
product sales declined in the EMEA segment. Semdeenues increased in our Americas and EMEA gebgeesegments, while service
revenue decreased in our APJC segment.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtumths Ended April 28, 201

For the first nine months of fiscal 2013, as corepawith the first nine months of fiscal 2012, nates increased by 5% . Net product sales
increased by 4% , while service revenue increagelDbo . The increase in net product sales reflegtedith in our Americas and APJC
geographic segments, while net product sales detimthe EMEA segment. Service revenues increasexbs all of our geographic
segments.

We conduct business globally in numerous currendiks direct effect of foreign currency fluctuatsoon sales has not been material because
our sales are primarily denominated in U.S. dollai@wvever, if the U.S. dollar strengthens relativ@ther currencies, such strengthening
could have an indirect effect on our sales to Hier# it raises the cost of our products to non:@duStomers and thereby reduces demand. A
weaker U.S. dollar could have the opposite effdoiwvever, the precise indirect effect of currenaicfuations is difficult to measure or prec
because our sales are influenced by many factaddition to the impact of such currency fluctuatio

In addition to the impact of macroeconomic factamsjuding a cautious IT spending environment anddetdriven reductions in spending
government entities, net sales by segment in &péat period may be significantly impacted by sevéactors related to revenue recogniti
including the complexity of transactions such adtiple-element arrangements; the mix of financinguagements provided to our channel
partners and customers; and final acceptance girtwuct, system, or solution, among other factoraddition, certain customers tend to
make large and sporadic purchases, and the nstregd¢ed to these transactions may also be affdégtehe timing of revenue recognition,
which in turn would impact the net sales of thevaht segment. As has been the case in certaur @moerging countries from time to time,
customers require greater levels of financing ayeaments, service, and support, and this may oodutture periods, which may also impact
the timing of the recognition of revenue.

Net Product Sales by Segment

The following table presents the breakdown of metipct sales by segment (in millions, except peagps):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance Variancein  April 27, April 28, Variance Variance in
2013 2012 in Dollars Percent 2013 2012 in Dollars Percent
Net product sales:

Americas $ 5,36¢ $ 4,88¢ $ 47E 9.7% $ 16,06 $ 14,91¢ $ 1,14¢ 7.7%
Percentage of net product sal 56.1% 53.7% 56.8% 54.9%
EMEA 2,59( 2,63¢ (49 (1.9% 7,46¢ 7,75¢ (289 (3.7%
Percentage of net product sals 27.1% 29.0% 26.4% 28.5%
APJC 1,60t 1,57¢ 27 1.7% 4,757 4,49¢ 25¢ 57%
Percentage of net product sal 16.8% 17.3% 16.8% 16.6%
Total $ 9,65¢ $ 9,10¢ $ 45¢ 5C% $ 28,29 $ 27,17¢ $ 1,115 4.1%

Americas
Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hivlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Our Americas segment grew by 1086l by net product sales increases in the servimager, commercial, and enterprise markets. Tloevth
in net product sales to the service provider manias due in part to our acquisition of NDS at thgihning of fiscal 2013. We continued to
experience a decline in net product sales in thdigpaector market for the third quartfrfiscal 2013. From a country perspective, netipc
sales increased by 12% in the United States andi@®¥@zil. Net product sales in Canada and Mexieclined by 10% and 5%, respectivt
compared with the corresponding period of fiscdl20
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Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

The increase in net product sales in the Ameriegsent was led by growth in the service providemmercial and enterprise markets. The
growth in net product sales to the service providarket was due in part to our acquisition of ND#&a beginning of fiscal 2013. We
experienced a decline in net product sales to tiigpsector market for the first nine months stfl 2013 due in large part to lower net
product sales to the U.S. public sector. From atgperspective, net product sales increased B ihdboth the United States and Brazil,
and 4% in Mexico. These increases were partiafiyedby a net product sales decline of 10% in Canad

EMEA
Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withre€hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Net product sales in the EMEA segment decreasghitblias the decline in the enterprise market veatiglly offset by net product sal
increases in the commercial and service providekets, which included sales of NDS products. Netpct sales were flat in the public
sector market. From a country perspective, netymoshles decreased by 12% in the Netherlandsn®aissia, 6% in Germany, and 3% in
France. Partially offsetting these declines wetegoneduct sales increases of 21% in Italy and 4%hénUnited Kingdom.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

The decrease in EMEA net product sales was ataiideto declines in the enterprise, public seatar service provider markets. Sales to the
commercial market were relatively flat. From a cooyperspective, net product sales decreased byiaZb& Netherlands, 3% in the United
Kingdom, 7% in Germany, 6% France, and 12% in ItBiyrtially offsetting these product sales decliwas an 8% increase in net product
sales in Russia.

APJC
Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withre€hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

The increase in net product sales in the APJC segwees led by net product sales growth in the comiaemarket and, to a lesser degree, in
the service provider and public sector markets. grioavth in the service provider market was dueangé part to our acquisition of NDS.
These product sales increases were partially dffsetdecrease in net product sales in the enserprarket. From a country perspective, net
product sales increased by 27% in India and 1%ustralia, partially offset by net product salesliohes of 14% in Japan and 5% in China.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

The increase in net product sales was across most customer markets in the APJC segment, witiwgt in the public sector, service
provider and commercial markets. The growth ingbevice provider market was due in large part toamguisition of NDS. We experienced
a net product sales decline in the enterprise markbe APJC segment. From a country perspeatigeproduct sales increased by 35% in
India and 12% in Australia, partially offset by mpebduct sales declines of 7% in Japan and 1% inaCh
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Net Product Sales by Groups of Similar Products

In addition to the primary view on a geographici®ase also prepare financial information relatedjtoups of similar products and customer
markets for various purposes. Our product categaiasist of the following categories (with subgatées in parentheses): Switching (fixed
switching, modular switching, and storage); NGN &y (high-end routers, mid-range and low-end rgjtand other NGN Routing
products); Service Provider Video (connected deyiealeo software and solutions, cable access &)NCollaboration (unified
communications and Cisco TelePresence); Data Ceftfiezless; Security; and Other Products. The ORreducts category consists
primarily of emerging technology products and othetworking products.

The following table presents net sales for grodpsnilar products (in millions, except percentages

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance Variancein  April 27, April 28, Variance Variance in
2013 2012 in Dollars Percent 2013 2012 in Dollars Percent
Net product sales:

Switching $ 3,69¢ $ 3,661 $ (63) (1.7% $ 10,93¢ $ 10,96¢ $ (31) (0.3%
Percentage of net product sales 37.6% 40.2% 38.7% 40.4%
NGN Routing 2,14( 2,13¢ 6 0.2% 6,13¢ 6,29¢€ (15¢) (2.5%
Percentage of net product sales 22.4% 23.4% 21.7% 23.2%
Service Provider Video 1,29¢ 99¢ 30C 30.C% 3,667 2,89¢ 771 26.€ %
Percentage of net product sales 13.6% 11.0% 13.0% 10.7%
Collaboration 1,01z 1,02 9 (0.9% 2,97¢ 3,19( (212 (6.6)%
Percentage of net product sales 10.6% 11.2% 10.5% 11.7%
Data Center 51t 291 224 77.C% 1,48( 88¢ 597 67.€%
Percentage of net product sales 5.4% 3.2% 5.2% 3.2%
Wireless 52z 41¢ 11C 26.€% 1,52¢ 1,17¢ 354 30.1%
Percentage of net product sales 5.5% 4.5% 5.4% 4.3%
Security 327 34z (15) (4.9% 1,001 994 7 0.7%
Percentage of net product sales 3.4% 3.8% 3.5% 3.7%
Other 144 244 (100 (41.0% 562 773 (211 (27.9%
Percentage of net product sales 1.5% 2.7% 2.0% 2.8%
Total $ 9,565¢ $ 9,10¢ $ 45: 5C09% $ 28,29: $ 27,17¢ $ 1,117 4.1%

Certain reclassifications have been made to tler pariod amounts to conform to the current pesqatesentation.

Switching
Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withre€hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Net product sales in our Switching product cate(decreased slightly primarily due to the impact @tnoeconomic and public sector
spending challenges. Sales of modular switchesraecby 9%, or $134 million, driven by lower satd<Cisco Catalyst 6500 Series Switct
partially offset by higher sales of Cisco Nexus @&ries Switches. The decrease in sales of moslitghes was partially offset by a 4%,
$82 million, increase in sales of LAN fixed-configtion switches resulting from higher sales of wanious Cisco Nexus Series Switches in
this category. Net product sales in the Switchiradpct category were also negatively impacted bg%rdecrease in sales of storage
products.
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Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

Within the Switching product category, sales of LAkéd-configuration switches increased by 3%, or $163ioni] sales of modular switch
decreased by 3% or $119 million, and sales of giopaoducts decreased by 18%, or $75 million. Tibesiase in sales of LAN fixed-
configuration switches was primarily due to highales of Cisco Nexus Series Switches and fixecthwig) optics modules, partially offset
sales declines in certain of our Cisco Catalystiped families. Sales of modular switches decreasedto lower sales of Cisco Catalyst 6500
Series Switches partially offset by higher sale€isco Nexus 7000 Series Switches and optics medule

NGN Routing

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hivlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Overall, sales in our NGN Routing product categeeye flat, with increases in sales in our midraage low-end router products being offset
by decreases in sales of our high-end router pteduad other NGN Routing products. Higher salesuinmidrange and low-end router
products were driven by the continued adoptionusflotegrated Service Routers (“ISR”) platform.&sain high-end router products
decreased by 2%, or $21 million, due to lower saféSisco CRS-3 Carrier Routing System products@ndegacy high-end router products,
partially offset by strong adoption of our Ciscogkggation Service Routers (“ASR”) products. Thelidedn sales of other NGN Routing
products was due to decreased sales of other goptoducts.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

The decrease in sales of our NGN Routing produeigcay was driven by a 3%, or $111 million, deceeiassales of high-end router products
and a 12%, or $64 million, decrease in sales croGN Routing products. Within the high-end roygesducts category, we experienced
lower sales of our Cisco CRS-3 Carrier Routing &ysproducts and our legacy high-end router prodiittsse decreases were partially
offset by sales growth in several Cisco ASR prosluthe decline in sales of other NGN Routing présiwas due to decreased sales of other
routing and optical networking products.

Service Provider Video

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Our Service Provider Video product category gre®3®r $300 million , primarily due to the acquiisit of NDS at the beginning of fiscal
2013, which contributed a substantial majorityhd total sales increase.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with Nitenths Ended April 28, 201

The increase in sales of Service Provider Videdpets was in large part due to the acquisition DS\t the beginning of fiscal 2013,
followed by increased sales in connected devicdd ®§, or $219 million, and to a lesser degree emed sales in video software and solut
of 11%, or $21 million. The increase in sales afreected devices products was primarily due to amed sales of cable set-top boxes.

Collaboration

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hvionths Ended April 28, 2012

Our Collaboration category continues to shift @sufs to recurring revenue streams driven by Sa8mds. Overall, sales of Collaboration
products slightly decreased primarily due to logales of Cisco TelePresence products. Partialfetifiig this decrease was a slight increase
in sales of unified communications products duentyad higher sales of collaborative web-basedroffss.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtonths Ended April 28, 201

The sales decrease in our Collaboration produegoay was primarily due to a decline in sales aitGiTelePresence Systems and to a lessel
degree, a decline in sales of unified communicatfmmoducts. Lower public sector spending in thetééhBtates, as well as demand weakness
in Europe during the first half of the fiscal yeaere significant drivers of the decline in salé€sco TelePresence Systems. We also
experienced a decline in sales of unified commuitina products which was due primarily to loweresabf unified communications
infrastructure products.

Data Center

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe@hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

We continue to experience strong growth in our [2eater product category which grew 77% with strealgs growth of our Cisco Unified
Computing System products across all geographimeets and customer markets. The increase was das@part to the momentum we
experiencing with our products across all customarket segments for both data center and cloud@mwients as current customers increase
their data center build-outs, and as new customgnchase products. The growth in our Data Centxgoay was also positively impacted by
lower than anticipated sales in the third quartdisoal 2012 as certain customers at that timeevegiil evaluating our new server chip
technology platform.
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To the extent our Data Center business grows amié\aes further market penetration, we expect thatpmparison to what we have
experienced during the initial rapid growth of thigrtion of our business, the growth rates for@ata Center product sales will experience
more normal seasonality consistent with the oveatver market.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtumths Ended April 28, 201

Sales of Data Center products increased significaluie to increased sales of Cisco Unified ComguBystem products. The increase was
due in large part to similar factors as those dffigahe three month period discussed immediatetvea.

Wireless, Security, and Other

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withre€hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Sales of Wireless products increased 27% , or $iillion , primarily reflecting the continued customer adopif and migration to the Cis
Unified Access Network architecture, and also ity increased sales of new products in this categs well as sales from our acquisition
of Meraki. Sales of our Security products were d@, or $15 million , led by a decline in saleoaf content security products, partially
offset by higher sales in high-end firewall produafithin our network security product portfolio. Vegperienced a decrease in sales of Other
Products due in large part to the sale of our Lysksroduct line in the third quarter of fiscal 2013

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

Sales of Wireless products increased 30% , or $38ibn , due to similar factors as those affectthg three month period discussed above.
Sales of security products increased slightly aadevdriven in part by the relatively recent updzteur firewall security product portfolio.
We experienced a decrease in sales of Other Poduetin large part to lower sales of our formeikkys products.
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Net Service Sales by Segment
The following table presents the breakdown of servevenue by segment (in millions, except pergasa

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance Variance in April 27, April 28, Variance Variance ir
2013 2012 in Dollars Percent 2013 2012 in Dollars  Percent
Net service sales:
Americas $ 1,76¢ $ 1,57 $ 18€ 11.e% $ 5,21¢ $ 4,68i $ 53¢ 11.4%
Percentage of net service sales 66.3% 63.5% 66.1% 65.1%
EMEA 541 521 20 3.8% 1,59¢ 1,497 99 6.€%
Percentage of net service sales 20.4% 21.0% 20.2% 20.8%
APJC 352 384 (3D (8.)% 1,08z 1,011 71 7.C%
Percentage of net service sales 13.3% 15.5% 13.7% 14.1%
Total $ 2,65i $ 2,48 $ 17E 71% $ 7,89 $ 7,19t $ 70z 9.8%

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Service revenue increased by 7% , with worldwiddmnécal support services revenue increasing byd®d,worldwide advanced services,
which relate to consulting support services forcdfcustomer network needs, experiencing 14% mereegrowth. Technical support service
experienced growth in the Americas and EMEA segmdtnewals and technical support service contrdigitions associated with product
sales provided an installed base of equipment b&#ngiced which, in concert with new service offigs, were the primary factors driving
these sales increases. Advanced services revesaigralv in the Americas and EMEA segments drivesddiyl growth in both transaction
and subscription revenues. The decrease in saetesmue in the APJC segment was due mainly todhepletion of several large, multiyear
projects in this segment during the third quarfdiszal 2012.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

Service revenue experienced solid growth acrossf alir geographic segments for the period. Wortltechnical support services revenue
increased by 7%, and worldwide advanced servicpsreenced 19% revenue growth. Technical suppovices revenue grew across all of
our geographic segments. We experienced revenudlgio advanced services across all geographic eetgnled by growth in the Americas
segment. Advanced services revenue growth wasrdhbyestrong growth in both transaction and subsionprevenues.

Gross Margin

The following table presents the gross margin fodpcts and services (in millions, except percesdig

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Gross margin:
Product $ 5777 $ 554 60.4% 60.% $ 16,90¢ $ 16,40( 59.8% 60.2%
Service 1,73¢ 1,62¢ 65.2% 65.5% 5,18 4,72¢ 65.71% 65.71%
Total $ 7511 § 7.16¢ 61.5% 61.c% $ 22090 § 21,12 61.(% 61.5%
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Product Gross Margin

The following table summarizes the key factors ttattributed to the change in product gross masgicentage for the third quarter and first
nine months of fiscal 2013 as compared with theesponding prior year periods:

Product Gross Margin Percentage

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended®
Fiscal 2012 60.€ % 60.2 %
Sales discounts, rebates, and product pricing (2.9% (2.9%
Mix of products sold (1.7% (1.0%
Amortization of purchased intangible assets (0.9% (0.5%
Acquisition fair value adjustment to inventory aottier — % (0.2%
Productivity® 4.4% 4.1%
Fiscal 2013 60.2 % 59.€ %

M Beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2013 refaned our methodology for presenting the itemthim preceding table and accordingly
certain reclassifications have been made to the mionths ended amounts to conform to the presentatade for the three months-ended
amounts.

@ Productivity includes overall manufacturing-relatamsts, shipment volume, and other items not catagghelsewhere.
Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe@hvionths Ended April 28, 2012

Product gross margin decreased bygeEentage points for the period. The decreasepvimsrily due to the impact of higher sales disdsy
rebates, and unfavorable product pricing, whichenddiven by normal market factors and by the gguigicamix of net product sales. These
factors impacted most of our customer markets acti ef our three geographic segments. Additionally,product gross margin for the third
quarter of fiscal 2013 was negatively impactedhmy ghift in the mix of products sold, primarily asesult of sales increases of our relatively
lower margin Cisco Unified Computing System andvider Provider Video products. Further, our recemfugsitions, in particular NDS,
resulted in higher amortization expense from puselantangible assets. These factors were partébgt by productivity improvements.
The productivity improvements were in large part doiincreased benefits from cost savings partilyula certain of our Switching and NGN
Routing categories in which product transitionsehbeen taking place; driven by value engineerifgrtsf favorable component pricing; and
continued operational efficiency in manufacturingemtions. Value engineering is the process by hvproduction costs are reduced through
component redesign, board configuration, test mee® and transformation processes.

Our future gross margins could be impacted by oadyct mix and could be adversely affected by ®rgrowth in sales of products that
have lower gross margins, such as Cisco Unified @dimg System and Service Provider Video produsts. gross margins may also be
impacted by the geographic mix of our revenue asdyas the case in fiscal 2012 and 2011, may bersely affected by increased sales
discounts, rebates, and product pricing attribetébdlcompetitive factors. Additionally, our manufaing-related costs may be negatively
impacted by constraints in our supply chain, whitturn could negatively affect gross margin. Ifaf the preceding factors that in the past
have negatively impacted our gross margins ari$etime periods, our gross margins could contiruéecline.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtemths Ended April 28, 201

Product gross margin decreased bygeEentage points for the period. The decreasepvimsrily due to the impact of higher sales disdsy
rebates, and unfavorable product pricing, whichenddiven by normal market factors and by the gguigjcamix of net product sales. These
factors impacted most of our customer markets #iraf aur geographic segments. Additionally, ouoguct gross margin for the first nine
months of fiscal 2013 was negatively impacted leyshift in the mix of products sold, primarily asesult of sales increases in our relatively
lower margin Cisco Unified Computing System andvider Provider Video products. Further, as discusgsale, our acquisition of NDS
resulted both in higher amortization expense framtpased intangible assets and costs resulting dréair value adjustment to inventory
acquired as part of the business combination, efalhich negatively impacted our product gross nmafgr the first nine months of fiscal
2013. These factors were partially offset by prdigity improvements driven by similar factors asdissed in the three month period
immediately above.
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Service Gross Margin
Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hvlonths Ended April 28, 2012

Our service gross margin percentage decrease®lpefcentage points for the third quarter of fi@3 period. This decrease was primarily
due to increased cost impacts such as headcoattdatosts, particularly in advanced services arfiavorable mix. The mix impacts were
due to our lower gross margin advanced serviceséss contributing a higher proportion of servieeemue for the third quarter of fiscal
2013, as compared with the prior year period. @uvise gross margin was also negatively impactethbycompletion of several large,
multiyear projects during the third quarter of £62012.

Our service gross margin normally experiences stutuations due to various factors such as théngnof contract initiations and renewals,
our strategic investments in headcount, and theuress we deploy to support the overall servicénass. Other factors include the mix of
service offerings, as the gross margin from oulaaded services is typically lower than the grossgingrom technical support services.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtomths Ended April 28, 201

Our service gross margin percentage was unchargyegared with the corresponding period in fiscal204lthough we experienced higher
sales volume led by growth in advanced servicesratethnical support services, the resulting bieteigross margin was offset by increa
cost impacts such as headcount-related costscylarty in advanced services; partner delivery gomhd unfavorable mix. The mix impacts
were due to our lower gross margin advanced sendasiness contributing a higher proportion of mervevenue for the first nine months of
fiscal 2013, as compared with the prior year period

Gross Margin by Segment

The following table presents the total gross mafgireach segment (in millions, except percentages)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Gross margin:

Americas $ 446( $ 4,05: 62.6% 62.7% $ 13,34 $ 12,31¢ 62.7% 62.8%

EMEA 2,04¢ 2,01¢ 65.2% 63.% 5,85( 5,86¢ 64.5% 63.40

APJC 1,19 1,24z 61.1% 63.2% 3,49¢ 3,342 59.8% 60.7%

Segment total 7,701 7,31¢ 63.(% 63.1% 22,68t 21,52¢ 62.7% 62.6%
Unallocated corporate items
Q) (190 (145) (592) (40%)
Total $ 7511 $ 7,16¢ 61.5% 61.99% $ 22,090 $ 21,12 61.(% 61.5%

@ The unallocated corporate items include the effettsmnortization of acquisition-related intangiblesets, share-based compensation expense, impast tf sales from
purchase accounting adjustments to inventory, astiucturing and other charges. We do not alldbetge items to the gross margin for each segmeatbe management does
not include such information in measuring the penance of the operating segments.

Three Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared withe€hivlonths Ended April 28, 2012

We experienced a gross margin percentage decrease Americas and APJC segments, while our EMEghsmnt experienced a gross
margin percentage increase.

The Americas segment experienced a slight deciratsegross margin percentage due to the impaots higher sales discounts, rebates and
unfavorable pricing; and also due to unfavorable imipacts. The unfavorable mix impacts were dulaiige part to higher revenue from our
lower margin Data Center products. Partially otfsgtthese factors were productivity improvemedts/en in large part by lower overall
manufacturing costs and higher volume.

Our EMEA segment gross margin percentage increasadresult of productivity improvements and a nfaverable mix of products sold
during the current period, driven in large partebfavorable mix within the Service Provider Videxdagory. Partially offsetting these factors
were the impacts from higher sales discounts, esbatd unfavorable pricing.

The gross margin percentage decreased in our A8Gi@ent due to the impact of higher sales discouslbgtes, unfavorable pricing, and
unfavorable mix impacts and also due to the dedfirmur service gross margin. The decline in sergiss margin in our APJC segment for
the current period was largely due to the comphetibseveral large, multiyear projects during thiedt quarter of fiscal 2012.
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The gross margin percentage for a particular segmanm fluctuate, and period-to-period changes ohquercentages may or may not be
indicative of a trend for that segment. Our procard service gross margins may be impacted by @sigrdownturns or uncertain economic
conditions as well as our movement into new maokgbrtunities and gross margins could decline yf @fithe factors that impact our gross
margins are adversely affected in future periods.

Nine Months Ended April 27, 2013 Compared with NWtumths Ended April 28, 201

The Americas segment experienced a slight grosgimpercentage decrease due to higher sales discoehates and unfavorable pricing,
and also due to an unfavorable mix impact, alligilytoffset by productivity improvements.

The gross margin percentage increase in our EME#fesat was primarily the result of productivity inopements from lower overall
manufacturing costs, a favorable mix of productd,sand higher service gross margin. Partially ettiag these favorable impacts to gross
margin were negative impacts from higher salesodists, rebates and unfavorable pricing.

The APJC segment gross margin percentage decraaseunpared with the corresponding period of fi2€dl2, due to the impact of higher
sales discounts, rebates and unfavorable pricmjaéso due to unfavorable mix impacts. Partiaffgeiting these factors were productivity
improvements, driven in large part by lower ovenadinufacturing costs and higher volume.

Factors That May Impact Net Sales and Gross Margin

Net product sales may continue to be affected btpfa, including global economic downturns andtesglanarket uncertainty, that ha
resulted in cautious IT-related capital spendingunenterprise, service provider, public sectod eommercial markets; changes in the
geopolitical environment and global economic cdnd#; competition, including price-focused compestfrom Asia, especially from China;
new product introductions; sales cycles and protaptementation cycles; changes in the mix of aistemers between service provider and
enterprise markets; changes in the mix of direletssand indirect sales; variations in sales chanmeld final acceptance criteria of the
product, system, or solution as specified by thetamer. Sales to the service provider market haea land may be in the future character
by large and sporadic purchases, especially rglatimur router sales and sales of certain produitksn our collaboration and data center
product categories. In addition, service providestomers typically have longer implementation cyctequire a broader range of services,
including network design services; and often haseeptance provisions that can lead to a delayviamee recognition. Certain of our
customers in certain emerging countries also tendéake large and sporadic purchases, and thelestretated to these transactions may
similarly be affected by the timing of revenue rgeition. As we focus on new market opportunitiasstomers may require greater levels of
financing arrangements, service, and support, édpein certain emerging countries, which in tunay result in a delay in the timing of
revenue recognition. To improve customer satisfactive continue to focus on managing our manufarguead-time performance, which
may result in corresponding reductions in ordeklmar A decline in backlog levels could result imra variability and less predictability in
our quarter-to-quarter net sales and operatingtsesu

Net product sales may also be adversely affectdtubguations in demand for our products, espegiaith respect to telecommunicatio
service providers and Internet businesses, whetheot driven by any slowdown in capital expenditiin the service provider market; price
and product competition in the communications arfidrimation technology industry; introduction andrket acceptance of new technologies
and products; adoption of new networking standeadd;financial difficulties experienced by our @mers. We may, from time to time,
experience manufacturing issues that create a delayr suppliers' ability to provide specific coomgnts, resulting in delayed shipments. To
the extent that manufacturing issues and any cetdeponent shortages result in delayed shipmariteeifuture, and particularly in periods
when we and our suppliers are operating at highel$ of capacity, it is possible that revenueafguarter could be adversely affected if such
matters are not remediated within the same qudttaradditional factors that may impact net prodiades, see “Part Il, Iltem 1A. Risk
Factors.”

Our distributors and retail partners participateanious cooperative marketing and other prograntseased sales to our distributors and
retail partners generally result in greater diffigun forecasting the mix of our products andatoertain degree, the timing of orders from our
customers. We recognize revenue for sales to atnilwlitors and retail partners generally based sellahrough method using information
provided by them, and we maintain estimated acsraadl allowances for all cooperative marketing @thér programs.

60




Product gross margin may be adversely affecteddrfuture by changes in the mix of products saldiuding periods of increased growth of
some of our lower margin products; introductiomefv products, including products with price-perfarme advantages; our ability to reduce
production costs; entry into new markets, includimgrkets with different pricing structures and csistictures, as a result of internal
development or through acquisitions; changes itridigion channels; price competition, includinghgeetitors from Asia, especially those
from China; changes in geographic mix of our pradades; the timing of revenue recognition and nexeedeferrals; sales discounts; incre

in material or labor costs, including share-bassdmensation expense; excess inventory and obsalEscharges; warranty costs; changes in
shipment volume; loss of cost savings due to cheiirgeomponent pricing; effects of value engineggrinventory holding charges; and the
extent to which we successfully execute on outegsaand operating plans. Additionally, our mantfgag-related costs may be negatively
impacted by constraints in our supply chain. Sergss margin may be impacted by various factoh as the change in mix between
technical support services and advanced servigeginiing of technical support service contradiations and renewals; share-based
compensation expense; and the timing of our sti@tagestments in headcount and resources to stiipsibusiness.

Research and Development (“R&D”), Sales and Marketig, and General and Administrative (“G&A”) Expenses

R&D, sales and marketing, and G&A expenses are sanmgad in the following table (in millions, excgpgrcentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance  Variance in April 27, April 28, Variance  Variance in
2013 2012 in Dollars Percent 2013 2012 in Dollars Percent

Research and development $ 1542 $ 135 $ 184 135% $ 4,428 $ 4,07z $ 352 8.7%
Percentage of net sales 12.6% 11.7% 12.2% 11.8%

Sales and marketing 2,37t 2,38: 8 (0.3% 7,17¢ 7,23( (52 (0.9%
Percentage of net sales 19.4% 20.6% 19.8% 21.0%

General and administrative 53C 562 (32 (5.7% 1,67¢ 1,611 63 3.£%
Percentage of net sales 4.3% 4.8% 4.6% 4.7%

Total $ 4,447 $ 4,308 $ 144 3.3% $ 13,27 $ 12,91 $ 364 2.8%
Percentage of net sales 36.4% 37.1% 36.7% 37.6%

R&D Expenses

The increase in R&D expenses for the third quaatet first nine months of fiscal 2013, as comparél the corresponding periods in fiscal
2012, was primarily due to higher headcount-relaqobenses attributable in large part to our actioisdf NDS at the beginning of fiscal
2013. Partially offsetting these costs was lowarstbased compensation expense.

We continue to invest in R&D in order to bring a&d range of products to market in a timely fashibwe believe that we are unable to
enter a particular market in a timely manner witteinally developed products, we may purchasecen$ie technology from other businesses,
or we may partner with or acquire businesses adtamative to internal R&D.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

The decrease in sales and marketing expdnséisethird quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2048,compared with the corresponding
periods in fiscal 2012was primarily due ttower discretionary spending and lower share-basetpensation expense. These items were
partially offset by higher headcount-related exeresulting largely from our acquisition of NDStla¢ beginning of fiscal 2013.

G&A Expenses

G&A expenses decreased for thed quarterof fiscal 2013, as compared with ttiérd quarterof fiscal 2012, primarily due to lower
corporate-level expenses, driven by a recoveriiémarket value of property held for sale. Lowarskbased compensation also contributed
to the decline in G&A expenseBhese items were partially offset by higher headtoelated expense resulting largely from our acqoisiof
NDS at the beginning of fiscal 201

G&A expenses increased in the first nine monthigschl 2013, as compared with the correspondinggen fiscal 2012, primarily due to
increased headcount-related expenses attributalplart to the acquisition of NDS at the beginniffscal 2013, and also due to higher
corporate-level expenses. Corporate-level expemdgsh tended to vary from period to period, in@ddperational infrastructure activities
such as real estate actions; IT project implememtst which included investments in our global daater infrastructure; and investments
related to operational and financial systems.
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Effect of Foreign Currenc

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, foreign curcgrluctuations, net of hedging, decreased the éoetbR&D, sales and marketing, and G&A
expenses by $43 million, or approximately 1.0%, pared with the third quarter of fiscal 2012. In flist nine months of fiscal 2013, foreign
currency fluctuations, net of hedging, decreasedcctimbined R&D, sales and marketing, and G&A expeiy $192 million , or
approximately 1.5% , compared with the first ninentins of fiscal 2012.

Headcount

Our headcount increased by 675 employees in the: giarter of fiscal 2013 and increased by apprexéhy 7,500 employees in the first nine
months of fiscal 2013. The increase for the thindrter of fiscal 2013 was attributable to headcdrorh new acquisitions, as well as strategic
hiring primarily in engineering and services, palyi offset by the reduction in headcount relatethie sale of our Linksys product line. The
increase for the first nine months of fiscal 2018vattributable to these factors as well as thaisitipn of NDS at the beginning of fiscal
2013.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

The following table presents share-based compa&msakpense (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Cost of sales - product $ 10 $ 12 ¢ 31 % 39
Cost of sales - service 34 39 10t 11€
Share-based compensation expense in cost of sales 44 51 13€ 15&
Research and development 72 97 22¢ 297
Sales and marketing 11¢€ 13¢ 383 42¢
General and administrative 38 51 13€ 15z
Restructuring and other charges — — (©)) 2
Share-based compensation expense in operating &gen 22¢ 28¢ 744 877
Total share-based compensation expense $ 27z % 337 % 88C $ 1,03

The year-over-year decrease in share-based contjpeneapense for the third quarter and first nimenths of fiscal 2013, as compared with
the corresponding prior year periods, was due piiyni the effect of a decrease in the aggregataesof share-based awards granted in
recent periods and stock option awards from préary becoming fully amortized. See Note 14 to thesBlidated Financial Statements.

Amortization of Purchased Intangible Assets

The following table presents the amortization afghased intangible assets included in operatingmresgs (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Amortization of purchased intangible assets inallitleoperating
expenses $ 88 § % $ 32¢ $ 292

The decrease in amortization of purchased intaegibsets for the third quarter of fiscal 2013,asmared with the third quarter of fiscal
2012, was due mainly to certain purchased intaagibsets having become fully amortized in the méginof the current period, partially
offset by the continuing amortization of purchasedngible assets from our acquisitions of NDShatlieginning of fiscal 2013, and from our
other, more recent acquisitions. The increasedrathortization of purchased intangible assetsarfitet nine months of fiscal 2013, as
compared with the corresponding period in fiscal20vas due to amortization of purchased intangibkets from our acquisitions of NDS at
the beginning of fiscal 2013, and from our otheorenrecent acquisitions. For additional informatiegarding purchased intangible assets,
see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The fair value of acquired technology and patessyell as acquired technology under developmsnteiermined at acquisition date
primarily using the income approach, which discewexpected future cash flows to present value.di$wount rates used in the present value
calculations are typically derived from a weightaderage cost of capital analysis and then adjuasedppropriate, to reflect risks inherent in
the development lifecycle. We consider the priaimgdel for products related to these acquisitiontsetgtandard within the high-technology
communications industry, and the applicable distoates represent the rates that market particgpaould use for valuation of such
intangible assets.

Restructuring and Other Charges

In the third quarter and first nine months of fis2@13, we incurred within operating expenses astructuring and other charges of
approximately $33 million and $105 million , respeely. These charges were related primarily to liyge severance charges for employees
subject to our workforce reduction that we annodriodate fiscal 2011. In the third quarter andtfinine months of fiscal 2012, we incurred
within operating expenses restructuring and otharges of $20 million and $225 million , respediiv&ee Note 5 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Operating Income

The following table presents our operating income aur operating income as a percentage of rev@numillions, except percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, April 27, April 28,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Operating income $ 294;: % 2,750 % 8,38 % 7,692
Operating income as a percentage of revenue 24.1% 23.1% 23.2% 22.2%

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, as comparethwhe third quarter of fiscal 2012, operating immincreased by 7% , and as a percentage o
revenue operating income increased by 0.4 percemaigts. The increase largely resulted from omtioaing focus on expense management
which resulted in lower sales and marketing and G&fienses as a percentage of revenue.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2013, as compaséth the first nine months of fiscal 2012, opérgtincome increased by 9% , and as a
percentage of revenue operating income increas@ddpercentage points. The increase largely resultad fsur continuing focus on expel
management which resulted in lower sales and makahd G&A expenses as a percentage of revenddram lower restructuring and
other charges.

Interest and Other Income (Loss), Net

Interest Income (Expense), NEte following table summarizes interest income iswerest expense (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance April 27, April 28, Variance
2013 2012 in Dollars 2013 2012 in Dollars
Interest income $ 16z $ 161 $ 1 $ 48 $ 483 $ —
Interest expense (14%) (157) 6 (440 (449 9
Interest income (expense), net $ 17 $ 10 $ 7 $ 43 % 34 $ 9

For the third quarter and first nine months ofdis2013, interest income remained fairly constamhgared with the corresponding periods in
fiscal 2012. Increased interest income earnedrantiing receivables was substantially offset byelointerest income from our portfolio of
cash, cash equivalents, and fixed income invessrena result of lower average rates of interestuoiportfolio of cash, cash equivalents,
and fixed income investments. For the third quaatet first nine months of fiscal 2013, interestenge decreased slightly compared with the
corresponding periods in fiscal 2012 due to th@falile impact of interest rate swaps as the threetim_LIBOR rate decreased.
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Other Income (Loss), Nathe components of other income (loss), net, arexsanized as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
April 27, April 28, Variance April 27, April 28, Variance
2013 2012 in Dollars 2013 2012 in Dollars
Gains (losses) on investments, net:

Publicly traded equity securities $ 2 % 15 % a7”n $ 12 $ 30 % (18)
Fixed income securities 8 15 @) 34 46 (12
Total available-for-sale investments 6 30 (29) 46 76 (30
Privately held companies (15) 3 (12 (69) (38) (32)
Net gains (losses) on investments 9) 27 (36) (29 38 (61)
Other gains (losses), net 5) (8 3 (4€) 7 (53
Other income (loss), net $ (14) $ 19 ¢ (33) % (69 % 45 $ (119

The decrease in total net gains on available-fla-is@estments in the third quarter of fiscal 2@bBnpared with the third quarter of fiscal
2012 was attributable to losses on publicly traglgdity securities and lower gains on fixed incomeusities in the current period as a result
of market conditions and the timing of sales obtheecurities. The change in net losses on investireprivately held companies was dri
primarily by equity method losses in the third daapf fiscal 2013, due mainly to higher lossesrfrour proportional share of the VCE joint
venture. The change in other gains (losses), mehéothird quarter of fiscal 2013 as compared whththird quarter of fiscal 2012 was
primarily due to foreign exchange impacts partialffset by an increase in donations.

The decrease in total net gains on available-fla-isaestments in the first nine months of fisc@ll3 compared with the first nine months of
fiscal 2012 was attributable primarily to lower ggion both publicly traded equity securities amédiincome securities in the current period
as a result of market conditions and the timingadés of these securities. The change in net lassas/estments in privately held companies
was driven primarily by higher equity method lossethe first nine months of fiscal 2013. The chairyother gains (losses), net for the first
nine months of fiscal 2013 as compared with thet filne months of fiscal 2012 was primarily dudéaieign exchange impacts and an
increase in donations.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes is subject to vditgtand could be adversely impacted by earningsgpwer than anticipated in countries
that have lower tax rates, higher than anticipatembuntries that have higher tax rates, and byratipn of or lapses in tax incentives. Our
provision for income taxes does not include prawisifor U.S. income taxes and foreign withholdiages associated with the repatriation of
undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidmthat we intend to reinvest indefinitely in doreign subsidiaries. If these earnings were
distributed to the United States in the form ofidiénds or otherwise, or if the shares of the raief@reign subsidiaries were sold or otherv
transferred, we would be subject to additional ih8ome taxes (subject to an adjustment for foréégrcredits) and foreign withholding
taxes. Further, as a result of certain of our omg@mployment and capital investment actions amanesibments, our income in certain
countries is subject to reduced tax rates andrimestases is wholly exempt from tax. Our failureneet these commitments could adversely
impact our provision for income taxes.

Our provision for income taxes resulted in an effectax rate of 15.9% for the third quarter otf$2013, as compared with an effective tax
rate of 22.1% for the third quarter of fiscal 20thich resulted in a net 6.2 percentage point dserén the effective tax rate for the third
quarter of fiscal 2013, as compared with the thjwdrter of fiscal 2012. The decrease in the effedéx rate was due to the net tax benefit of
$117 million which is due in large part to lapséshe time period for assessment of tax in cerfaigign jurisdictions recorded in the third
quarter of fiscal 2013.

Our provision for income taxes resulted in an dffectax rate of 7.7% for the first nine monthdistal 2013 as compared with 21.2% for the
first nine months of fiscal 2012, which resultedhinet 13.5 percentage point decrease for thenfinstmonths of fiscal 2013, as compared
with the first nine months of fiscal 2012. The d=ase in the effective tax rate was primarily duthéorecognition of a net benefit to the
provision for income taxes of $794 million relatedour settlement with the IRS, a tax benefit & million related to the reinstatement of
the U.S. federal R&D tax credit, and a tax bergfffs117 millionwhich is due in large part to lapses of the timegukfor assessment of tax
certain foreign jurisdictions.

64




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following sections discuss the effects of clesng our balance sheet, contractual obligatiotieracommitments, and the stock
repurchase program on our liquidity and capitabueses.

Balance Sheet and Cash Flows

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investméhésfollowing table summarizes our cash and caslvatgnts and investments (in millions):

April 27, July 28, Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 512: $ 9,79¢ % (4,677)
Fixed income securities 40,19: 37,29 2,89t
Publicly traded equity securities 2,074 1,62C 454
Total $ 47,38¢ $ 48,71¢  $ (1,32

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents andrimers in the first nine months of fiscal 2013 yasarily the result of cash paid for
acquisitions of $6.4 billion . Other significantassof cash in the first nine months of fiscal 2@0i3uded cash dividends paid of $2.4 billion ,
the repurchase of common stock of $1.8 billiond eapital expenditures of $0.8 billion . Partiadffsetting these cash outflows were cash
provided by operating activities of $8.9 billioan increase from $8.4 billion provided for thetfinfne months of fiscal 2012, and issuance of
common stock of $1.2 billion .

The increase in cash provided by operating aa@wiin the first nine months of fiscal 2013 compaséti the corresponding period in fiscal
2012 was primarily the result of an increase ininebme.

Our total in cash and cash equivalents and invedsiieeld by various foreign subsidiaries was $®8IBn and $42.5 billion as of April 27,
2013 and July 28, 2012, respectively. Under curtaantaws and regulations, if cash and cash eqeivaland investments held outside the
United States were distributed to the United Statele form of dividends or otherwise, we woulddudject to additional U.S. income taxes
(subject to an adjustment for foreign tax creditsdl foreign withholding taxes. The balance avadablthe United States as of April 27, 2013
and July 28, 2012 was $7.9 billion and $6.2 billjgrspectively.

We maintain an investment portfolio of various hiofgs, types, and maturities. We classify our innestts as shoterm investments based
their nature and their availability for use in @nt operations. We believe the overall credit dyalf our portfolio is strong, with our cash
equivalents and our fixed income investment paddfobnsisting primarily of high-quality investmegtade securities. We believe that our
strong cash and cash equivalents and investmesitsopoallows us to use our cash resources fotegiiainvestments to gain access to new
technologies, for acquisitions, for customer firiagactivities, for working capital needs, and floe repurchase of shares of common stock
and payment of dividends.

We expect that cash provided by operating activitiay fluctuate in future periods as a result ofimber of factors, including fluctuations in
our operating results, the rate at which produetsshipped during the quarter (which we refer taldpment linearity), the timing and
collection of accounts receivable and financinghegbles, inventory and supply chain managemerérighel revenue, excess tax benefits
resulting from share-based compensation, anditiediand amount of tax and other payments. Fortiaddil discussion, see “Part Il,

Item 1A. Risk Factors” in this report.

Accounts Receivable, Nd@he following table summarizes our accounts reddejanet (in millions), and DSO:

April 27, July 28, Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease)
Accounts receivable, net $ 494;: $ 436¢ $ 57z
DSO 37 34 3

Our accounts receivable net, as of April 27, 20ic3dased by approximately 13% compared with theoéfidcal 2012. Our DSO as of

April 27, 2013 was 3 days higher compared withahe of fiscal 2012. The increase in DSO duringtkiirel quarter of fiscal 2013 was
primarily due to the timing of product shipmentswhich a greater proportion of the shipments wadarin the latter part of the third quarter
of fiscal 2013, compared with the fourth quartefietal 2012.
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Inventory Supply Chaiifhe following table summarizes our inventories pacchase commitments with contract manufacturetissappliers
(in millions, except annualized inventory turns):

April 27, July 28, Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease)
Inventories $ 1,46¢ $ 1,66 $ (199
Annualized inventory turns 12.4 11.7 0.7
Purchase commitments with contract manufacturedssappliers $ 4,21 $ 3,86¢ $ 34¢€

Inventories as of April 27, 2013 decreased by 1&%nfour balance at the end of fiscal 2012, andHersame period purchase commitments
with contract manufacturers and suppliers increégeapproximately 9% . On a combined basis, invéegcand purchase commitments with
contract manufacturers and suppliers increasedbgd@npared with the end of fiscal 2012.

The inventory decrease was due mainly to lowerléesmanufactured finished goods, which was dugsirt to inventory sold as part of the
sale of our Linksys product line. The increaseunchase commitments with contract manufacturerssapgliers as of the end of the third
quarter of fiscal 2013, as compared with the enfisofil 2012, was attributable to our effort towmcsupply to meet forecasted demand.

We purchase components from a variety of suppéiatdsuse several contract manufacturers to provateufacturing services for our
products. During the normal course of busineserder to manage manufacturing lead times and hredpre adequate component supply, we
enter into agreements with contract manufactunedssappliers that allow them to procure inventaagdd upon criteria as defined by us or
that establish the parameters defining our requéremand our commitment to securing manufacturapacity. A significant portion of our
reported purchase commitments arising from thesgeagents are firm, noncancelable, and unconditioo@mitments. In certain instances,
these agreements allow us the option to cancelheesile, and adjust our requirements based onusimdss needs prior to firm orders being
placed. Our purchase commitments are for short-fgoduct manufacturing requirements as well agéonmitments to suppliers to secure
manufacturing capacity.

We record a liability, included in other currerabilities, for firm, noncancelable, and uncondiibpurchase commitments for quantities in
excess of our future demand forecasts consistehttiné valuation of our excess and obsolete invgnithe purchase commitments for
inventory are expected to be primarily fulfilledthin one year.

Inventory and supply chain management remain arefoeus as we balance the need to maintain sugyin flexibility to help ensure
competitive lead times with the risk of inventollysolescence because of rapidly changing techn@ondycustomer requirements. We believe
the amount of our inventory and purchase commitmesnappropriate for our revenue levels.

Financing Receivables and Guaranf@gsmeasure our net balance sheet exposure posdtated to our financing receivables and financing
guarantees by reducing the total of gross finanoiegivables and financing guarantees by the eseadcallowances for credit loss and
deferred revenue. As of April 27, 2013 , our ndabee sheet exposure position related to finaneiegivables and financing guarantees was
as follows (in millions):

FINANCING RECEIVABLES FINANCING GUARANTEES TOTAL
Financed
Service
Lease Loan Contracts Channel End-User
April 27, 2013 Receivables Receivables  and Other Total Partner Customers Total
Gross amount less unearned
income $ 3,47¢ $ 1671 $ 292« $ 807 % 391 $ 258 $ 64€ $ 8,71¢
Allowance for credit loss (24%) (93 (19 (357) — — — (357)
Deferred revenue (49 (44) (1,825 (1,919 (227) (229 (450 (2,369
Net balance sheet exposure$ 3,18/ $ 153¢ $ 1,08 $ 5,79 $ 164 % 32 % 19¢ $ 5,99«
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Financing ReceivableGross financing receivables less unearned incosreased by 6% compared with the end of fiscal 20h2.change
was primarily due to a 9% increase in lease rebédgaand a 10% increase in financed service cdsteanxd other, partially reduced by a 7%
decline in loan receivables. We provide financingertain end-user customers and channel parmersable sales of our products, services,
and networking solutions. These financing arrangemimclude leases, financed service contracts)aarss. Arrangements related to leases
are generally collateralized by a security inteneshe underlying assets. Lease receivables irechades-type and direct-financing leases. We
also provide certain qualified customers finandimglong-term service contracts, which primarilyate to technical support services and
advanced services. Our loan financing arrangemmaysinclude not only financing the acquisition of @roducts and services but also
providing additional funds for other costs ass@dawith network installation and integration of guoducts and services. We expect to
continue to expand the use of our financing progranthe near term.

Financing Guaranteeln the normal course of business, third parties prayide financing arrangements to our customedsciiannel
partners under financing programs. The financimgrayements to customers provided by third partieselated to leases and loans and
typically have terms of up to three years. In s@ages, we provide guarantees to third partiehtse lease and loan arrangements. The
financing arrangements to channel partners coosigtvolving short-term financing provided by thipdrties, generally with payment terms
ranging from 60 to 90 days. In certain instandassé financing arrangements result in a transfeupfeceivables to the third party. The
receivables are de-recognized upon transfer, ag tin@nsfers qualify as true sales, and we regayments for the receivables from the third
party based on our standard payment terms. Thegeding arrangements facilitate the working capéglirements of the channel partners,
and in some cases, we guarantee a portion of #remegements. We could be called upon to make patgnoeader these guarantees in the
event of nonpayment by the channel partners orused-customers. Historically, our payments undeseharrangements have been
immaterial. Where we provide a guarantee, we dbferevenue associated with the channel partneeaddiser financing arrangement in
accordance with revenue recognition policies, oreeord a liability for the fair value of the guatees. In either case, the deferred revenue is
recognized as revenue when the guarantee is removed

Deferred Revenue Related to Financing ReceivabidsGuarantee The majority of the deferred revenue in the prengdable is related to
financed service contracts. The majority of theereye related to financed service contracts, whithaily relates to technical support
services, is deferred as the revenue related amdied service contracts is recognized ratably theeperiod during which the related services
are to be performed. A portion of the revenue eeldd lease and loan receivables is also defenédnaluded in deferred product revenue
based on revenue recognition criteria not curremilying been met.

Borrowings
Senior Notes The following table summarizes the principal amoafnbur senior notes (in millions):

April 27, July 28,
2013 2012

Senior notes:

Floating-rate notes, due 2014 $ 1,25 $ 1,25(
1.625% fixed-rate notes, due 2014 2,00( 2,00(
2.90% fixed-rate notes, due 2014 50C 50C
5.50% fixed-rate notes, due 2016 3,00(¢ 3,00(
3.15% fixed-rate notes, due 2017 75C 75C
4.95% fixed-rate notes, due 2019 2,00¢ 2,00(
4.45% fixed-rate notes, due 2020 2,50( 2,50(
5.90% fixed-rate notes, due 2039 2,00( 2,00(
5.50% fixed-rate notes, due 2040 2,00( 2,00(
Total $ 16,00C $ 16,00(

Interest is payable semiannually on each classeo§énior fixed-rate notes, each of which is redddenby us at any time, subject to a make-
whole premium. Interest is payable quarterly onftbating-rate notes. We were in compliance withdebt covenants as of April 27, 2013 .

Commercial Papeln fiscal 2011 we established a short-term delatrfaing program of up to $3.0 billion through thsuiance of commercial
paper notes. As of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2042 had no commercial paper notes outstandingrithdeprogram.
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Other BorrowingsShort-term debt includes notes and credit facditiéth a number of financial institutions that arailable to certain of our
foreign subsidiaries. The amount of borrowings tauding under these arrangements was $13 millidr84 million as of April 27, 2013
and July 28, 2012, respectively.

Credit Facility On February 17, 2012, we terminated our then-exjstredit facility and entered into a credit agreatrwith certain
institutional lenders that provides for a $3.0ibillunsecured revolving credit facility that is edaled to expire on February 17, 2017. Any
advances under the credit agreement will accr@edst at rates that are equal to, based on cedadtitions, either (i) the higher of the
Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%, Bank of Americasriprate” as announced from time to time, or oreth LIBOR plus 1.00%, or (ii)
LIBOR plus a margin that is based on our seniot deddit ratings as published by Standard & Pdeiriancial Services, LLC and Moody's
Investors Service, Inc. The credit agreement regttinat we comply with certain covenants, includim we maintain an interest coverage
ratio as defined in the agreement. As of April 2013 , we were in compliance with the requiredresgéecoverage ratio and the other
covenants, and we had not borrowed any funds uhderredit facility.

We may also, upon the agreement of either the éxé&ting lenders or additional lenders not curgeptrties to the agreement, increase the
commitments under the credit facility by up to aidiional $2.0 billion and/or extend the expiratidaite of the credit facility by up to two
years, or up to February 17, 20.

Deferred Revenu€he following table presents the breakdown of defitrevenue (in millions):

April 27, July 28, Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease)
Service $ 8,70t $ 9,17 % (468)
Product 3,98( 3,707 278
Total $ 12,68 $ 12,88( $ (195)
Reported as:
Current $ 9,05t $ 8,85 $ 20z
Noncurrent 3,63( 4,02¢ (39§
Total $ 12,688 $ 12,88( $ (19%)

The 5% decrease in deferred service revenue reflleetongoing amortization of deferred service mexee partially offset by the impact of
new contract initiations and renewals in the firiste months of fiscal 2013. The amortization ofedefd revenue was in excess of the defe
revenue impact from new contract initiations amergals as we experienced more customers paying hatdtiyear technical support
contracts over time. The increase in deferred proavenue was primarily due to increased deferedéged to subscription revenue
arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

Operating Leases

We lease office space in many U.S. locations. @atie United States, larger leased sites inclitelg is Australia, Belgium, China, France,
Germany, India, Israel, Italy, Japan, and the Whikengdom . We also lease equipment and vehicles.fliture minimum lease payments
under all of our noncancelable operating leasels antinitial term in excess of one year as of Aprij 2013 were $1.1 billion .

Other Commitments

In connection with our business combinations asgtggurchases, we have agreed to pay certain@uaitimounts contingent upon the
achievement of agreed-upon technology, developnpeoduct, or other milestones or continued emplaymeéth us of certain employees of
acquired entities. See Note 12 to the Consolidaiedncial Statements.

We also have certain funding commitments primaehated to our investments in privately held comesmand venture funds, some of which
are based on the achievement of certain agreeduagestones, and some of which are required taihddd on demand. The funding
commitments were $113 million as of April 27, 201 mpared with $120 million as of July 28, 2012.
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Insieme Networks, Inc’ Insiemé&) In the third quarter of fiscal 2012, we made arestment in Insieme, an early stage company focosed
research and development in the data center matkedet forth in the agreement between Cisco asiéiime, this investment includes $100
million of funding and a license to certain of dachnology. In addition, pursuant to a November2&mendment to the agreement between
Cisco and Insieme, we agreed to invest an addliti8&million in Insieme upon the satisfaction eftain conditions. As of April 27, 2013,
we owned approximately 85% of Insieme as a reguhiese investments and have consolidated thetsasfulnsieme in our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In connection with this investment, we have enténéal a put/call option agreement that providesviib the right to purchase the remaining
interests in Insieme. In addition, the noncontngjlinterest holders can require us to purchase shares upon the occurrence of certain
events. If we acquire the remaining interests sfdme, the noncontrolling interest holders areildigto receive two milestone payments,
which will be determined using agreed-upon formiased on revenue for certain of Insieme's prodiééswill begin recognizing the
amounts due under the milestone payments whemlétesmined that such payments are probable ofjlmmed, which we expect may be in
fiscal 2014. When such a determination is madeirtitestone payments will then be recorded as cosgt@m expense by us based on an
estimate of the fair value of the amounts probableeing earned, pursuant to a vesting scheduleseuent changes to the fair value of the
amounts probable of being earned and the contimesting will result in adjustments to the recordethpensation expense. The maximum
amount that could be recorded as compensation egfsnus is approximately $863 million . This amiowas increased from up to a
previous maximum of $750 million, as a result &f lovember 2012 amendment, as the parties recagtiiaehigher staffing levels may be
necessary to perform additional product developnmEmt milestone payments, if earned, are expeotée paid primarily during fiscal 2016
and fiscal 2017.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We consider our investments in unconsolidated tbeimterest entities to be off-balance sheet gearents. In the ordinary course of
business, we have investments in privately heldpaomes and provide financing to certain custonignese privately held companies and
customers may be considered to be variable intergites. We evaluate on an ongoing basis oursimvents in these privately held
companies and customer financings, and we havendieted that as of April 27, 2013 there were no makenconsolidated variable interest
entities.

VCE is a joint venture that we formed in fiscal 204ith EMC Corporation (“‘EMC”), with investmentsofn VMware, Inc. (“VMware”) and
Intel Corporation. VCE helps organizations leverhgst-in-class technologies and disciplines frosc@j EMC, and VMware to enable the
transformation to cloud computing. As of April 2013, our cumulative gross investment in VCE was@ximately $464 million , inclusive
of accrued interest, and our ownership percentageapproximately 35% . We account for our investrireWCE under the equity method,
and our portion of VCE's net loss is recognizedthrer income (loss), net. As of April 27, 2013 , Insse recorded cumulative losses since
inception from VCE of $374 million . Our carryinghe in VCE as of April 27, 2013 was $90 millio®ver the next 12 months, as VCE
scales its operations, we expect that we will medditional investments in VCE and may incur addiéildosses proportionate with our share
ownership.

From time to time, EMC and Cisco may enter intorgntee agreements on behalf of VCE to indemnifidtparties, such as customers, for
monetary damages. Such guarantees were not maedlApril 27, 2013 .

On an ongoing basis, we reassess our investmeptg/ately held companies and customer financingdetermine if they are variable intel
entities and if we would be regarded as the prinb@ryeficiary pursuant to the applicable accounginiglance. As a result of this ongoing
assessment, we may be required to make additiss@bdures or consolidate these entities. Becaesmay not control these entities, we r
not have the ability to influence these events.

We provide financing guarantees, which are genefatlvarious third-party financing arrangementse@xied to our channel partners and end-
user customers. We could be called upon to makmeats under these guarantees in the event of nor@#\by the channel partners or end-
user customers. See the previous discussion of firemncing guarantees under “Financing ReceivadmesGuarantees.”

Securities Lending

We periodically engage in securities lending atiegi with certain of our available-for-sale investits. These transactions are accounted for
as a secured lending of the securities, and th&iies are typically loaned only on an overnighsis. The average daily balance of securities
lending for the nine months ended April 27, 2018 April 28, 2012 was $0.7 billion and $0.4 billiprespectively. We require collateral
equal to at least 102% of the fair market valuthefloaned security and that the collateral béénform of cash or liquid, high-quality assets.
We engage in these secured lending transactiohscvatlitworthy counterparties, and the associatetfigdio custodian has agreed to
indemnify us against collateral losses. As of Agii|l 2013 and July 28, 2012, we had no outstanskegrities lending transactions. We
believe these arrangements do not present a matski@r impact to our liquidity requirements.
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Stock Repurchase Program

In September 2001, our Board of Directors authdraetock repurchase program. As of April 27, 20@@r Board of Directors had
authorized an aggregate repurchase of up to $B@bdf common stock under this program, and theai@ing authorized repurchase amount
was $4.3 billion with no termination date. The &toepurchase activity under the stock repurchasgram, reported based on the trade date,
is summarized as follows (in millions, except peai® amounts):

Weighted-
Shares Average Price Amount
Repurchased per Share Repurchased
Cumulative balance at July 28, 2012 3,74C $ 20.3¢ % 76,13:
Repurchase of common stock under the stock repsegegram 81 19.81 1,61:
Cumulative balance at April 27, 2013 3,821 $ 20.3t $ 77,74¢

Dividends
During fiscal 2013 and 2012, our Board of Directdeslared the following dividends (in millions, eyt per-share amounts):

Declaration Date Dividend per Share Record Date Amount Payment Date

Fiscal 2013

March 28, 2013 $ 0.17 April 8,2013 $ 90t  April 24, 2013

November 15, 2012 0.14 November 29, 2012 74% December 19, 2012

August 14, 2012 0.14 October 4, 2012 744  October 24, 2012
Total $ 0.4¢ $ 2,392

Fiscal 2012

June 14, 2012 $ 0.0¢  July 5, 2012 $ 425 July 25, 2012

February 7, 2012 0.0¢  April 5, 2012 43z April 25, 2012

December 15, 2011 0.0€ January 5, 2012 32z January 25, 2012

September 20, 2011 0.0¢  October 6, 2011 322z  October 26, 2011
Total $ 0.2¢ $ 1,501

Any future dividends will be subject to the apprbefiour Board of Directors.
Liquidity and Capital Resource Requirements

Based on past performance and current expectatianbgelieve our cash and cash equivalents, invegtimeash generated from operations,
and ability to access capital markets and commidtedit lines will satisfy, through at least thexn&2 months, our liquidity requirements,
both in total and domestically, including the folimg: working capital needs, capital expendituregestment requirements, stock
repurchases, cash dividends, contractual obliggticommitments, principal and interest paymentdeist, pending acquisitions, future
customer financings, and other liquidity requiretseassociated with our operations. There are nerdthnsactions, arrangements, or
relationships with unconsolidated entities or ofhersons that are reasonably likely to materidfigch the liquidity and the availability of, as
well as our requirements for, capital resources.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our financial position is exposed to a varietyieks, including interest rate risk, equity pricgksiand foreign currency exchange risk.
Interest Rate Risk

Fixed Income Securitiéd/e maintain an investment portfolio of various hol$, types, and maturities. Our primary objecfiveholding

fixed income securities is to achieve an approgriatestment return consistent with preservinggipal and managing risk. At any time, a
sharp rise in market interest rates could havetanmahadverse impact on the fair value of our dixecome investment portfolio. Conversely,
declines in interest rates, including the impaatrflower credit spreads, could have a material m@vienpact on interest income for our
investment portfolio. We may utilize derivative ingnents designated as hedging instruments to\aloier investment objectives. We hac
outstanding hedging instruments for our fixed inecsecurities as of April 27, 2013 . Our fixed in@mvestments are held for purposes
other than trading. Our fixed income investmentsew®t leveraged as of April 27, 2013 . We monitor interest rate and credit risks,
including our credit exposures to specific ratiagegories and to individual issuers. As of Apri| 2813 , approximately 79% of our fixed
income securities balance consisted of U.S. govemmand U.S. government agency securities. Weugettee overall credit quality of our
portfolio is strong.

DebtAs of April 27, 2013 , we had $16.0 billion in peipal amount of senior notes outstanding, whichsisiad of $1.25 billion floating-rate
notes and $14.75 billion fixed-rate notes. Theyag amount of such senior notes was $16.2 billiand the related fair value was $18.4
billion , which fair value is based on market pacés of April 27, 2013 , a hypothetical 50 basings increase or decrease in market interest
rates would change the fair value of the fixed-gabt, excluding the $4.25 billion of hedged délyta decrease of $0.5 billion or an increase
of $0.6 billion, respectively. However, this hypetital change in interest rates would not impagtititerest expense on the fixed-rate debt,
which is not hedged.

Equity Price Risk

The fair value of our equity investments in publitladed companies is subject to market price ilityatWe may hold equity securities for
strategic purposes or to diversify our overall stneent portfolio. Our equity portfolio consistss#curities with characteristics that most
closely match the Standard & Poor's 500 Index o6RBAQ Composite Index. These equity securities atd for purposes other than tradil
To manage our exposure to changes in the fair \@lgertain equity securities, we may enter intaiggderivatives designated as hedging
instruments.

Publicly Traded Equity Securitidhe following tables present the hypothetical faitues of publicly traded equity securities asslteof
selected potential decreases and increases initteeqh each equity security in the portfolio, exatihg hedged equity securities, if any.
Potential fluctuations in the price of each eqsiggurity in the portfolio of plus or minus 10%, 2086d 30% were selected based on potential
near-term changes in those security prices. Thethgtical fair values as of April 27, 2013 and J28; 2012 are as follows (in millions):

VALUATION OF VALUATION OF
SECURITIES SECURITIES
GIVEN AN X% GIVEN AN X%
DECREASE IN INCREASE IN
\ FAIR VALUE ,
EACH STOCK'S PRICE AS OF APRIL 27, EACH STOCK'’S PRICE
(30)% (20)% (10)% 2013 10% 20% 30%
Publicly traded equity securities ~ $908 $1,038 $1,167 $1,297 $1,427 $1,556 $1,686
VALUATION OF VALUATION OF
SECURITIES SECURITIES
GIVEN AN X% GIVEN AN X%
DECREASE IN INCREASE IN
) FAIR VALUE ,
EACH STOCK'S PRICE AS OF JULY 28, EACH STOCK'S PRICE
(30)% (20)% (10)% 2012 10% 20% 30%
Publicly traded equity securities $944 $1,078 $1,213 $1,348 $1,483 $1,618 $1,752

There were no impairment charges on our investriargablicly traded equity securities for the pesgresented.
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Investments in Privately Held Compani#®& have also invested in privately held compariibese investments are recorded in other assets i
our Consolidated Balance Sheets and are accoumtedinhg primarily either the cost or the equitythoa. As of April 27, 2013, the total
carrying amount of our investments in privatelychebmpanies was $835 million , compared with $8%8an at July 28, 2012. Some of the
privately held companies in which we invested arthe startup or development stages. These invastraee inherently risky because the
markets for the technologies or products these emieg are developing are typically in the earlgstsand may never materialize. We could
lose our entire investment in these companies.e®aluation of investments in privately held compars based on the fundamentals of the
businesses invested in, including, among otheofacthe nature of their technologies and potefdiadinancial return. Our impairment
charges on investments in privately held compani&® $5 million and $15 million for the third quars of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012,
respectively, and were $23 million and $17 millauring the first nine months of fiscal 2013 ana #2012, respectively.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our foreign exchange forward and option contraatstanding as of April 27, 2013 and July 28, 2062summarized in U.S. dollar
equivalents as follows (in millions):

April 27, 2013 July 28, 2012
Notional Amount Fair Value Notional Amount Fair Value

Forward contracts:

Purchased $ 2,96¢ $ 4 3 3,33 % (20)

Sold $ 1,48¢ $ 2¢ 8 1,56¢ $ 5
Option contracts:

Purchased $ 76€ % 13 3 247¢ % 31

Sold $ 74z $ @ $ 2,23¢ % (25)

We conduct business globally in numerous currendibs direct effect of foreign currency fluctuatsoon sales has not been material because
our sales are primarily denominated in U.S. dolleiawvever, if the U.S. dollar strengthens relatvether currencies, such strengthening
could have an indirect effect on our sales to thierd it raises the cost of our products to non-dustomers and thereby reduces demand. A
weaker U.S. dollar could have the opposite effdotvever, the precise indirect effect of currenayctuations is difficult to measure or prec
because our sales are influenced by many factaddition to the impact of such currency fluctuatio

Approximately 70% of our operating expenses are-ddiar denominated. In the first nine monthsis€él 2013, foreign currency
fluctuations, net of hedging, decreased the contbi&D, sales and marketing, and G&A expenses by $illion , or approximately 1.5%
compared with the first nine months of fiscal 2018.reduce variability in operating expenses amdise cost of sales caused by non-U.S.-
dollar denominated operating expenses and costeedge certain forecasted foreign currency trar@atvith currency options and forward
contracts. These hedging programs are not designaavide foreign currency protection over longéi horizons. In designing a specific
hedging approach, we consider several factorsjdimg offsetting exposures, significance of expesucosts associated with entering into a
particular hedge instrument, and potential effestess of the hedge. The gains and losses on fara@range contracts mitigate the effect of
currency movements on our operating expenses avigdeeost of sales.

We also enter into foreign exchange forward anibaptontracts to reduce the short-term effectoadifn currency fluctuations on
receivables, investments, and payables that arentieated in currencies other than the functionalencies of the entities. The market risks
associated with these foreign currency receivaiblesstments, and payables relate primarily toararés from our forecasted foreign curre
transactions and balances. Our forward and optiotracts generally have the following maturities:

Maturities
Forward and option contracts - forecasted transastielated to operating expenses and serviceotsates Up to 18 month
Forward contracts - current assets and liabilities Up to 3 month
Forward contracts - net investments in foreign slibses Up to 6 month
Forward contracts - long-term customer financings Up to 2 year
Forward contracts - investments Up to 2 year

We do not enter into foreign exchange forward dioopcontracts for trading purposes.
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Iltem 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceduiased on our management's evaluation (with thigcqation of our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer), as of tiee@d of the period covered by this report, ourgpal executive officer and principal financial
officer have concluded that our disclosure contasld procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e)laddl5(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”))effective to ensure that information required tadiselosed by us in reports that we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, prockssanmarized and reported within the time persmixcified in Securities and Exchange
Commission rules and forms and is accumulated amtrunicated to our management, including our ppaloéxecutive officer and princip
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timelgdaisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in internal control over financial repdagtifihere was no change in our internal control ovearicial reporting (as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act)rdpour third quarter of fiscal 2013 that has miathr affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over fingalareporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Brazilian authorities have investigated our Brarilsubsidiary and certain of its current and foremaployees, as well as a Brazilian importer
of our products, and its affiliates and employeekting to alleged evasion of import taxes andgat improper transactions involving the
subsidiary and the importer. Brazilian tax authesithave assessed claims against our Braziliandsatysbased on a theory of joint liability
with the Brazilian importer for import taxes, inést, and penalties. In addition to claims assdjeithe Brazilian federal tax authorities in
prior fiscal years, tax authorities from the Bramil state of Sao Paulo have asserted similar claimthe same legal basis in prior fiscal years.
In the first quarter of fiscal 2013, the Brazilitaderal tax authorities asserted an additionairckgainst our Brazilian subsidiary based on a
theory of joint liability with respect to an allegjenderpayment of income taxes, social taxes,dsteand penalties by a Brazilian distributor.

The asserted claims by Brazilian federal tax autilesrare for calendar years 2003 through 2008 taadsserted claims by the tax authorities
from the state of Sao Paulo are for calendar y2@0% through 2007. The total asserted claims byiaa state and federal tax authorities
aggregate to approximately $432 million for thegéld evasion of import and other taxes, approximé&te2 billion for interest, and
approximately $1.9 billion for various penaltieB,determined using an exchange rate as of April2D13 . We have completed a thorough
review of the matters and believe the assertedslaigainst our Brazilian subsidiary are withoutitnand we are defending the claims
vigorously. While we believe there is no legal bésr the alleged liability, due to the complextiand uncertainty surrounding the judicial
process in Brazil and the nature of the claimsrésggoint liability with the importer, we are ubke to determine the likelihood of an
unfavorable outcome against our Brazilian subsydéend are unable to reasonably estimate a ranipssfif any. We do not expect a final
judicial determination for several yea

On March 31, 2011 and April 12, 2011, purportedshalder class action lawsuits were filed in thetéth States District Court for the
Northern District of California against Cisco arettain of its officers and directors. The lawswitsre consolidated, and an amen
consolidated complaint was filed on December 2120he consolidated action was purportedly browghibehalf of purchasers of Cisco's
publicly traded securities between February 3, 22idMay 11, 2011. Plaintiffs alleged that deferislamade false and misleading statem:
purported to assert claims for violations of théei@l securities laws, and sought unspecified cosgtery damages and other relief. On
February 12, 2012, we filed a motion seeking toniks all claims in the amended complaint. On M&@h2013, the Court granted our
motion and dismissed the amended complaint, findimfacts or inferences to support the plaintdfiggations. Plaintiffs chose not to file an
amended complaint and not to pursue an appealCohet dismissed the entire lawsuit with prejudicefgril 29, 2013.

Beginning on April 8, 2011, a number of purportedreholder derivative lawsuits were filed in bdtk United States District Court for the
Northern District of California and the CalifornBuperior Court for the County of Santa Clara adains Board of Directors and several

our officers. The federal lawsuits have been cadatdd in the Northern District of California. Riiffs in both the federal and state deriva
actions allege that the Board allowed certain efido make allegedly false and misleading statésn&he complaint includes claims for
violation of the federal securities laws, breacfiiddciary duties, waste of corporate assets, eirgnechment, and violations of the California
Corporations Code. The complaint seeks compensdtonages, disgorgement, and other relief. In liflhe United States District Court's
dismissal of the purported shareholder class actited above, all of the federal and state dexiedtiwsuits have been voluntarily dismissed.

We were subject to patent claims asserted by \Xnetc. on August 11, 2010 in the United StatestiisCourt for the Eastern District of
Texas. VirnetX alleged that various of our produttat implement a method for secure communicatsing virtual private networks infring
certain patents. VirnetX sought monetary damagdde trial on these claims began on March 4, 2@i8March 14, 2013, the jury entered a
verdict finding that our accused products do noitrige any of VirnetX's patents asserted in theslkaitv On April 3, 2013, VirnetX filed a
motion seeking a new trial on the issue of infrimgat, which we have opposed. The Court has searnigedate for VirnetX's motion in June
2013.

We were subject to numerous patent, tort, and achtlaims asserted by XpertUniverse on March 0092n the United States District Court
for the District of Delaware. Shortly before tritie Court dismissed on summary judgment all clamiglly asserted by XpertUniverse
except a claim for infringement of two XpertUnivensatents and a claim for fraud by concealmentriXjmgverse's remaining patent claims
alleged that three Cisco products in the fieldxgfestise location software infringed two XpertUnise patents. XpertUniverse's fraud by
concealment claim alleged that we did not disctmgedecision not to admit XpertUniverse into a partprogram. The trial on these
remaining claims began on March 11, 2013. On Ma&;h2013, the jury entered a verdict finding thed bf our products infringed two of
XpertUniverse's patents and awarded XpertUniveaseagjes of less than $35 thousaiitie jury also found for XpertUniverse on its fuay
concealment claim and awarded damages of $70 milwe believe we have strong arguments to ovetheriraud damage award or to
obtain a new trial. On May 6, 2013, we filed pagttmotions that are expected to be decided ip duAugust 2013. If the Court does not
grant our post-trial motions, we will pursue an eglp While the ultimate outcome of the case mdlrssult in a loss, we do not expect it to
be material.
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Cisco and a service provider customer are suljegatent claims asserted by TiVo, Inc. on Juned4224n the United States District Court
the Eastern District of Texas. TiVo alleges that digital video recorders deployed by the seryica/ider customer infringe certain of its
patents. TiVo seeks monetary damages and injunogivef. The trial on these claims is schedutedegin in March 2014. We intend to
show at trial that our products do not use therteltdgy described in the patents. We are seekingigsion from the Court to add
counterclaims alleging that TiVo's new productsintfe several digital video recorder patents owingds.

TiVo previously filed a similar patent lawsuit agsi the same service provider customer, accusgitativideo recorders manufactured by
one of our competitors. The outcome of that cagéch is now scheduled for trial in June 2013, dduhve an impact on the timing and
outcome of our case. The parties to that caseamagiuct a mediation prior to the June trial andpifwe expect to participate. The mediation
could result in a resolution of the case for us smale or all of our service provider customers,civtdould result in a material charge to us.
Due to the uncertainty surrounding the litigationgess, which involves numerous defendants, weirgaible to reasonably estimate the
ultimate outcome of this litigation at this time.

In addition, we are subject to legal proceedintsnts, and litigation arising in the ordinary coaiaf business, including intellectual property
litigation. While the outcome of these matterstisrently not determinable, we do not expect thatuhimate costs to resolve these matters
will have a material adverse effect on our consaéd financial position, results of operations¢ash flows. For additional information
regarding intellectual property litigation, see Pl Item 1A. Risk Factors-We may be found torinfie on intellectual property rights of
others” herein.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Set forth below and elsewhere in this report anoklirer documents we file with the SEC are desanistiof the risks and uncertainties that
could cause our actual results to differ materifithyn the results contemplated by the forward-logkstatements contained in this report. The
descriptions below include any material changesnib supersede the description of the risk factibesting our business previously disclosed
in “Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors” of our Annual Bart on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 2&12.

OUR OPERATING RESULTS MAY FLUCTUATE IN FUTURE PERIO DS, WHICH MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR STOCK
PRICE

Our operating results have been in the past, alidevitinue to be, subject to quarterly and anrlugtuations as a result of numerous factors,
some of which may contribute to more pronouncedttiations in an uncertain global economic enviromim€hese factors include:

* Fluctuations in demand for our products and sesyiespecially with respect to telecommunicatiomgise providers and Internet
businesses, in part due to changes in the globalogsic environment

* Changes in sales and implementation cycles fopottucts and reduced visibility into our customspgnding plans and
associated revenue

e Our ability to maintain appropriate inventory leveind purchase commitments

e Price and product competition in the communicatiand networking industries, which can change rgpidie to technological
innovation and different business models from uaigeographic regions

e The overall movement toward industry consolidatmong both our competitors and our customers

e The introduction and market acceptance of new t&lcignes and products and our success in new arldieganarkets, including
in our newer product categories such as data cantecollaboration and in emerging technologiesy@lsas the adoption of new
standards

* Variations in sales channels, product costs, orghproducts sold

e The timing, size, and mix of orders from customers

e Manufacturing and customer lead times

* Fluctuations in our gross margins, and the fadtoas contribute to such fluctuations, as describeldw

e The ability of our customers, channel partnersireah manufacturers and suppliers to obtain fim@agair to fund capital
expenditures, especially during a period of glavatliit market disruption or in the event of custonshannel partner, contract
manufacturer or supplier financial problems

e Share-based compensation expense

< Actual events, circumstances, outcomes, and amadiffésing from judgments, assumptions, and estavatsed in determining
the values of certain assets (including the amoointslated valuation allowances), liabilities, astter items reflected in our
Consolidated Financial Statements

« How well we execute on our strategy and operatiaggpand the impact of changes in our business Intloatecould result in
significant restructuring charges

« Our ability to achieve targeted cost reductions
* Benefits anticipated from our investments in engiireg, sales and manufacturing activities
* Changes in tax laws, tax regulations and/or accogmtles
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As a consequence, operating results for a partifutare period are difficult to predict, and, te&re, prior results are not necessarily
indicative of results to be expected in future pasi Any of the foregoing factors, or any othetdas discussed elsewhere herein, could hi
material adverse effect on our business, resultgefations, and financial condition that couldexgdely affect our stock price.

OUR OPERATING RESULTS MAY BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY UNFAVORABLE ECONOMIC AND MARKET
CONDITIONS AND THE UNCERTAIN GEOPOLITICAL ENVIRONME  NT

Challenging economic conditions worldwide have friome to time contributed, and may continue to dbate, to slowdowns in the
communications and networking industries at laegewell as in specific segments and markets inhlwvie operate, resulting in:

» Reduced demand for our products as a result ofraged constraints on IT-related capital spendingliycustomers, particularly
service providers, and other customer markets ds we

* Increased price competition for our products, mdy drom our competitors but also as a consequeficestomers disposing of
unutilized products

» Risk of excess and obsolete inventories
« Risk of supply constraints
» Risk of excess facilities and manufacturing capacit

« Higher overhead costs as a percentage of revenlikiginer interest expense

Instability in the global credit markets, includitige continuing European economic and financiahtil related to sovereign debt issues in
certain countries, the impact of uncertainty regaydhe U.S. federal budget including the effecthaf recent sequestration, the instability in
the geopolitical environment in many parts of trare and other disruptions, such as changes inggrarsts, may continue to put pressur:
global economic conditions. The world has receeffgerienced a global macroeconomic downturn, agtbfal economic and market
conditions, or economic conditions in key markegsnain uncertain or deteriorate further, we mayegigmce material impacts on our
business, operating results, and financial corlitio

Our operating results in one or more segments fsayke affected by uncertain or changing econominditions particularly germane to that
segment or to particular customer markets withat fegment. For example, during fiscal 2011 we eepeed a decrease in spending by our
public sector customers in almost every developatket around the world, and we continue to seeedsess in spending within certain
categories of our public sector customer market.

WE HAVE BEEN INVESTING IN PRIORITIES, INCLUDING OUR FOUNDATIONAL PRIORITIES, AND IF THE RETURN ON
THESE INVESTMENTS IS LOWER OR DEVELOPS MORE SLOWLY THAN WE EXPECT, OUR OPERATING RESULTS MAY
BE HARMED

We have been realigning and are dedicating resstoccus on certain priorities, such as leadprshour core routing, switching and
services, including security and mobility solutiposllaboration; data center virtualization andudpvideo; and architectures for business
transformation. However, the return on our investtaén such priorities may be lower, or may devetogre slowly, than we expect. If we do
not achieve the benefits anticipated from thesestments (including if our selection of areas fiveistment does not play out as we expect),
or if the achievement of these benefits is delaged operating results may be adversely affected.

OUR REVENUE FOR A PARTICULAR PERIOD IS DIFFICULT TO PREDICT, AND A SHORTFALL IN REVENUE MAY
HARM OUR OPERATING RESULTS

As a result of a variety of factors discussed ia thport, our revenue for a particular quartetificult to predict, especially in light of the
recent global economic downturn and related markeertainty. Our net sales may grow at a slower ttan in past periods or may decline,
which for example occurred in fiscal 2009. Our iipilo meet financial expectations could also beeaskely affected if the nonlinear sales
pattern seen in some of our past quarters recdtdlire periods. We have experienced periods ¢ timring which shipments have exceeded
net bookings or manufacturing issues have delalgguirents, leading to nonlinearity in shipping patte In addition to making it difficult to
predict revenue for a particular period, nonlingain shipping can increase costs, because irreghiament patterns result in periods of
underutilized capacity and periods in which ovediexpenses may be incurred, as well as in potedditional inventory management-
related costs. In addition, to the extent that nfecturing issues and any related component shartiegeilt in delayed shipments in the futi
and particularly
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in periods in which our contract manufacturersarerating at higher levels of capacity, it is pbksthat revenue for a quarter could be
adversely affected if such matters occur and ateemediated within the same quarter.

The timing of large orders can also have a sigaifieffect on our business and operating resuts fjuarter to quarter, primarily in the
United States and in emerging countries. From tortéme, we receive large orders that have a st effect on our operating results in
period in which the order is recognized as reveiihe.timing of such orders is difficult to prediand the timing of revenue recognition from
such orders may affect period to period changeirsales. As a result, our operating results ceaity materially from quarter to quarter
based on the receipt of such orders and their atémecognition as revenue.

Inventory management remains an area of focus. ¥yerienced longer than normal lead times on sewédrailir products in fiscal 2010. This
was attributable in part to increasing demand drivg the improvement in our overall markets, amdilsir to what has happened in the
industry, the longer than normal lead time extemsialso stemmed from supplier constraints based thpr labor and other actions taken
during the global economic downturn. Additionallye earthquake and tsunami in Japan during the ¢piarter of fiscal 2011 and the
flooding in Thailand in the first quarter of fisc2012 resulted in industry wide component supplyst@ints. Longer manufacturing lead tir
in the past have caused some customers to plasarthe order multiple times within our various saleannels and to cancel the duplicative
orders upon receipt of the product, or to placeerrdvith other vendors with shorter manufactureegl times. Such multiple ordering (along
with other factors) or risk of order cancellatio@yrcause difficulty in predicting our sales andaassult, could impair our ability to manage
parts inventory effectively. In addition, our eff®oto improve manufacturing lead-time performanes mesult in corresponding reductions in
order backlog. A decline in backlog levels coulsulein more variability and less predictabilityonr quarter-to-quarter net sales and
operating results. In addition, when facing comparsaipply-related challenges, we have increasee@ffants in procuring components in
order to meet customer expectations which in temtribute to an increase in purchase commitmentsehses in our purchase commitments
to shorten lead times could also lead to exces®hadlete inventory charges if the demand for eadpcts is less than our expectations.

We plan our operating expense levels based priynamifforecasted revenue levels. These expensethammepact of long-term commitments
are relatively fixed in the short term. A shortfimlrevenue could lead to operating results beglgw expectations because we may not be
able to quickly reduce these fixed expenses inomespto short-term business changes.

Any of the above factors could have a material estvémpact on our operations and financial results.

WE EXPECT GROSS MARGIN TO VARY OVER TIME, AND OUR L EVEL OF PRODUCT GROSS MARGIN MAY NOT BE
SUSTAINABLE

Our level of product gross margins declined indls2011 and to a lesser extent in fiscal 2012 aag continue to decline and be adversely
affected by numerous factors, including:

e Changes in customer, geographic, or product metuding mix of configurations within each producbgp
e Introduction of new products, including productstwprice-performance advantages
e Our ability to reduce production costs

« Entry into new markets or growth in lower marginrkes, including markets with different pricing acakst structures, through
acquisitions or internal development

e Sales discounts

« Increases in material, labor or other manufactureigted costs, which could be significant espéciliring periods of supply
constraints

« Excess inventory and inventory holding charges

* Obsolescence charges

* Changes in shipment volume

* The timing of revenue recognition and revenue dafer

* Increased cost, loss of cost savings or dilutiosasings due to changes in component pricing orgesaincurred due to inventa
holding periods if parts ordering does not corseatiticipate product demand or if the financialltreaf either contract

manufacturers or suppliers deteriorates
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* Lower than expected benefits from value engineering

* Increased price competition, including competifioosn Asia, especially from China
« Changes in distribution channels

* Increased warranty costs

* Increased amortization of purchased intangibletasespecially from acquisitions

How well we execute on our strategy and operatiagp

Changes in service gross margin may result fronoumarfactors such as changes in the mix betwedmieal support services and advanced
services, as well as the timing of technical suppervice contract initiations and renewals andattieition of personnel and other resource
support higher levels of service business in fupegods.

SALES TO THE SERVICE PROVIDER MARKET ARE ESPECIALLY VOLATILE, AND WEAKNESS IN SALES ORDERS
FROM THIS INDUSTRY MAY HARM OUR OPERATING RESULTS A ND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Sales to the service provider market have beeractaized by large and sporadic purchases, eslye@kdlting to our router sales and sale
certain products in our newer product categoriet s1s Data Center, Collaboration, and Service Beswideo, in addition to longer sales
cycles. In the past, we have experienced signifisaaakness in sales to service providers overicegtdended periods of time as market
conditions have fluctuated. Sales activity in ihdustry depends upon the stage of completion paeding network infrastructures; the
availability of funding; and the extent to whiclngee providers are affected by regulatory, ecormrand business conditions in the country
of operations. Weakness in orders from this ingusticluding as a result of any slowdown in capéapenditures by service providers (which
may be more prevalent during a global economic domnor periods of economic uncertainty), coulddnavmaterial adverse effect on our
business, operating results, and financial cormlitior example, during fiscal 2009, we experiereestbwdown in service provider capital
expenditures globally, and in fiscal 2011 we exgreced a slowdown in certain segments of this maikeluding in capital expenditures by
some service provider customers and in sales dfraditional cable set-top boxes in our then Unitates and Canada segment. Such
slowdowns may continue or recur in future peridsiers from this industry could decline for manggens other than the competitiveness of
our products and services within their respectiegk®ts. For example, in the past, many of our sergrovider customers have been
materially and adversely affected by slowdownsimdeneral economy, by overcapacity, by changtwiservice provider market, by
regulatory developments, and by constraints ontalavailability, resulting in business failuresdesubstantial reductions in spending and
expansion plans. These conditions have materialignbd our business and operating results in the g@d some of these or other conditions
in the service provider market could affect ouribess and operating results in any future peridtalfy, service provider customers typically
have longer implementation cycles; require a broaaiege of services, including design services;atatrthat vendors take on a larger share
of risks; often require acceptance provisions, Witian lead to a delay in revenue recognition; aqpe:et financing from vendors. All these
factors can add further risk to business condusiéidservice providers.

DISRUPTION OF OR CHANGES IN OUR DISTRIBUTION MODEL COULD HARM OUR SALES AND MARGINS

If we fail to manage distribution of our productedaservices properly, or if our distributors' ficéal condition or operations weaken, our
revenue and gross margins could be adversely affect

A substantial portion of our products and servisesld through our channel partners, and the nedeaiis sold through direct sales. Our
channel partners include systems integrators, saprioviders, other resellers, and distributorst&ys integrators and service providers
typically sell directly to end users and often pdevsystem installation, technical support, prafess services, and other support services in
addition to network equipment sales. Systems iategs also typically integrate our products intcoaarall solution, and a number of service
providers are also systems integrators. Distrilsustock inventory and typically sell to systemggrators, service providers, and other
resellers. We refer to sales through distributgrew two-tier system of sales to the end custoRevenue from distributors is generally
recognized based on a sell-through method usimgrirdtion provided by them. These distributors ameegally given business terms that
allow them to return a portion of inventory, reeeiredits for changes in selling prices, and pigdie in various cooperative marketing
programs. If sales through indirect channels irsgethis may lead to greater difficulty in fore@agtthe mix of our products and, to a degree,
the timing of orders from our customers.
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Historically, we have seen fluctuations in our grasargins based on changes in the balance of stibdition channels. Although variability
to date has not been significant, there can bessgrance that changes in the balance of our distsitbmodel in future periods would not
have an adverse effect on our gross margins arfiigmitity.

Some factors could result in disruption of or chesim our distribution model, which could harm sates and margins, including the
following:

* We compete with some of our channel partners, dictuthrough our direct sales, which may lead ttdsmnel partners to use
other suppliers that do not directly sell their oproducts or otherwise compete with them

* Some of our channel partners may demand that wertabsgreater share of the risks that their custemmay ask them to bear

« Some of our channel partners may have insuffidieahcial resources and may not be able to witltstdranges and challenges
in business conditions

« Revenue from indirect sales could suffer if outriisitors’ financial condition or operations weaken

In addition, we depend on our channel partnersailplbo comply with applicable regulatory requireme To the extent that they fail to do
that could have a material adverse effect on osiness, operating results, and financial condition.

THE MARKETS IN WHICH WE COMPETE ARE INTENSELY COMPE TITIVE, WHICH COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR
ACHIEVEMENT OF REVENUE GROWTH

The markets in which we compete are characterigadjid change, converging technologies, and aati@r to networking and
communications solutions that offer relative adeges. These market factors represent a compdtitigat to us. We compete with numerous
vendors in each product category. The overall nurabeur competitors providing niche product saus may increase. Also, the identity
and composition of competitors may change as wease our activity in newer product categories saigctlata center and collaboration and
in our priorities. As we continue to expand glopallle may see new competition in different geogirapégions. In particular, we have
experienced price-focused competition from competiin Asia, especially from China, and we antitéghis will continue.

Our competitors include Alcatel-Lucent; Arista Netks, Inc.; ARRIS Group, Inc.; Aruba Networks, InBvaya Inc.; Brocade
Communications Systems, Inc.; Check Point SoftWaehnologies Ltd.; Citrix Systems, Inc.; Dell IncM Ericsson Telephone Company;
Extreme Networks, Inc.; F5 Networks, Inc.; Fortilet.; Hewlett-Packard Company; Huawei Technols@e., Ltd.; International Business
Machines Corporation; Juniper Networks, Inc.; LogiMénc.; Meru Networks, Inc.; Microsoft CorporatioMotorola Solutions, Inc.; Palo
Alto Networks, Inc.; Polycom, Inc.; Riverbed Teclogy, Inc.; Symantec Corporation and VMware, Inamong others.

Some of these companies compete across many gfaduct lines, while others are primarily focusediispecific product area. Barriers to
entry are relatively low, and new ventures to @gabducts that do or could compete with our prtglace regularly formed. In addition, sc

of our competitors may have greater resourcesjding technical and engineering resources, thadavé\s we expand into new markets, we
will face competition not only from our existingropetitors but also from other competitors, inclggéxisting companies with strong
technological, marketing, and sales positions as¢hmarkets. We also sometimes face competition fesellers and distributors of our
products. Companies with whom we have strategiarales in some areas may be competitors in oteasaand in our view this trend may
increase.

For example, the enterprise data center is undaggofundamental transformation arising from thevesgence of technologies, including
computing, networking, storage, and software, pinatviously were siloed. Due to several factorsiuding the availability of highly scalable
and general purpose microprocessors, applicatiendspintegrated circuits offering advanced seegicstandards based protocols, cloud
computing and virtualization, the convergence ohtmlogies within the enterprise data center isisjpg multiple, previously independent,
technology segments. Also, some of our currentpantential competitors for enterprise data centair®ss have made acquisitions, or
announced new strategic alliances, designed tdigoshem to provide end-to-end technology solwi€or the enterprise data center. As a
result of all of these developments, we face greaimpetition in the development and sale of emiegpdata center technologies, including
competition from entities that are among our loagyt strategic alliance partners. Companies thastaaegic alliance partners in some areas
of our business may acquire or form alliances withcompetitors, thereby reducing their businesh ws.
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The principal competitive factors in the marketsvinich we presently compete and may compete ifiufuee include:
» The ability to provide a broad range of networkémgl communications products and services
e Product performance
e Price
e The ability to introduce new products, includinggucts with price-performance advantages
« The ability to reduce production costs
e The ability to provide value-added features sucheasirity, reliability, and investment protection
* Conformance to standards
e Market presence
e The ability to provide financing

e Disruptive technology shifts and new business nedel

We also face competition from customers to whicHieense or supply technology and suppliers fronictvlwe transfer technology. The
inherent nature of networking requires interopéditgbiAs such, we must cooperate and at the same tompete with many companies. Any
inability to effectively manage these complicatethtionships with customers, suppliers, and strai@tjance partners could have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resuitsfinancial condition and accordingly affect shances of success.

OUR INVENTORY MANAGEMENT RELATING TO OUR SALES TO O UR TWO-TIER DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL IS
COMPLEX, AND EXCESS INVENTORY MAY HARM OUR GROSS MA RGINS

We must manage our inventory relating to salesutadgstributors effectively, because inventory higydthem could affect our results of
operations. Our distributors may increase ordersidperiods of product shortages, cancel ordelfseif inventory is too high, or delay ord

in anticipation of new products. They also may atljbeir orders in response to the supply of oadpcts and the products of our competitors
that are available to them, and in response tosahfluctuations in end-user demand. Revenue taistributors generally is recognized
based on a sell-through method using informatiaviped by them, and they are generally given bssinerms that allow them to return a
portion of inventory, receive credits for changesélling price, and participate in various coofieeamarketing programs. Inventory
management remains an area of focus as we balameoeéd to maintain strategic inventory levelsisuee competitive lead times against
risk of inventory obsolescence because of rapilfnging technology and customer requirements. Vieing component supply-related
challenges, we have increased our efforts in pinguromponents in order to meet customer expeatstid we ultimately determine that we
have excess inventory, we may have to reduce ézegpand write down inventory, which in turn coudgult in lower gross margins.

SUPPLY CHAIN ISSUES, INCLUDING FINANCIAL PROBLEMS O F CONTRACT MANUFACTURERS OR COMPONENT
SUPPLIERS, OR A SHORTAGE OF ADEQUATE COMPONENT SUPFLY OR MANUFACTURING CAPACITY THAT
INCREASED OUR COSTS OR CAUSED A DELAY IN OUR ABILIT Y TO FULFILL ORDERS, COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE
IMPACT ON OUR BUSINESS AND OPERATING RESULTS, AND OUR FAILURE TO ESTIMATE CUSTOMER DEMAND
PROPERLY MAY RESULT IN EXCESS OR OBSOLETE COMPONENT SUPPLY, WHICH COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR
GROSS MARGINS

The fact that we do not own or operate the bullwfmanufacturing facilities and that we are reliam our extended supply chain could have
an adverse impact on the supply of our productsoanaur business and operating results:

< Any financial problems of either contract manufaets or component suppliers could either limit dymp increase costs

« Reservation of manufacturing capacity at our cantn@anufacturers by other companies, inside or@etsf our industry, could
either limit supply or increase costs
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A reduction or interruption in supply; a signifi¢ancrease in the price of one or more componentailure to adequately authorize
procurement of inventory by our contract manufaamtsira failure to appropriately cancel, reschedul@djust our requirements based on our
business needs; or a decrease in demand for odugisocould materially adversely affect our bussnegerating results, and financial
condition and could materially damage customettigziahips. Furthermore, as a result of bindingedc purchase commitments with
suppliers, we may be obligated to purchase comgsraprices that are higher than those availabthe current market. In the event that we
become committed to purchase components at prioegciess of the current market price when the compts are actually used, our gross
margins could decrease. We experienced longerrthanal lead times on several of our products icali®010. The earthquake and tsunami
in Japan during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 #re flooding in Thailand in the first quarterfisical 2012 resulted in industry-wide
component supply constraints. Although we have gelyesecured additional supply or taken other gaition actions when significant
disruptions have occurred, if similar situationsurcin the future, they could have a material aseaffect on our business, results of
operations, and financial condition. See the r&ttdr above entitled “Our revenue for a particplariod is difficult to predict, and a shortfall
in revenue may harm our operating results.”

Our growth and ability to meet customer demand&deépn part on our ability to obtain timely deliiess of parts from our suppliers and
contract manufacturers. We have experienced conmpshertages in the past, including shortages chlgenanufacturing process issues,
that have affected our operations. We may in theréuexperience a shortage of certain componetd para result of our own manufacturing
issues, manufacturing issues at our suppliers mtract manufacturers, capacity problems experiebgenlr suppliers or contract
manufacturers, or strong demand in the industryHose parts. A return to growth in the economikisly to create greater pressures on us
and our suppliers to accurately project overall ponent demand and component demands within spgecdituct categories and to establish
optimal component levels and manufacturing capae#pecially for labor-intensive components, congms for which we purchase a
substantial portion of the supply, or re-rampinghofacturing capacity for highly complex productsr Example, during fiscal 2010, we
experienced longer than normal lead times on skwérur products. This was attributable in parirtoreasing demand driven by the
improvement in our overall markets, and similamtmat is happening in the industry, the longer tharmal lead time extensions also
stemmed from supplier constraints based upon llear and other actions taken during the globahendc downturn. If shortages or delays
persist or worsen, the price of these componenisintaease, or the components may not be avaikttad, and we may also encounter
shortages if we do not accurately anticipate oedseWe may not be able to secure enough compoaiergasonable prices or of acceptable
quality to build new products in a timely mannethe quantities or configurations needed. Accongingur revenue and gross margins could
suffer until other sources can be developed. Oaraing results would also be adversely affectedrificipating greater demand than actu
develops, we commit to the purchase of more compusrtean we need, which is more likely to occua iperiod of demand uncertainties s
as we are currently experiencing. There can besaorance that we will not encounter these probiertige future. Although in many cases
we use standard parts and components for our pigdiertain components are presently available fvaly a single source or limited
sources, and a global economic downturn and refattiet uncertainty could negatively impact theilabdlity of components from one or
more of these sources, especially during times agalie have recently seen when there are supplistraints based on labor and other
actions taken during economic downturns. We maybeatble to diversify sources in a timely manndricl could harm our ability to deliver
products to customers and seriously impact premehfuture sales.

We believe that we may be faced with the followafigllenges in the future:

* New markets in which we participate may grow quickihich may make it difficult to quickly obtainggiificant component
capacity

* As we acquire companies and new technologies, wetmaependent, at least initially, on unfamiliapgly chains or relatively
small supply partners

« We face competition for certain components thatsapply-constrained, from existing competitors, aathpanies in other
markets

Manufacturing capacity and component supply coimggaould continue to be significant issues farWe purchase components from a
variety of suppliers and use several contract mastufers to provide manufacturing services formaducts. During the normal course of
business, in order to improve manufacturing leatetperformance and to help ensure adequate compsungply, we enter into agreements
with contract manufacturers and suppliers thaeeigiow them to procure inventory based upon G&tas defined by us or that establish the
parameters defining our requirements. In certasteinces, these agreements allow us the optiomtteaeschedule, and adjust our
requirements based on our business needs prismmfders being placed. When facing component lsugbated challenges, we have
increased our efforts in procuring components deoto meet customer expectations which in turrrdmute to an increase in purchase
commitments. For example, the earthquake in Japengithe third quarter of fiscal 2011 resultedridustry wide component supply
constraints,
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and an increase in our purchase commitments whashattributable to us securing supply componentgeamade commitments to secure
near term supply needs. Increases in our purct@aeeidments to shorten lead times could also leaktess and obsolete inventory charges
if the demand for our products is less than oueesations. If we fail to anticipate customer dempraperly, an oversupply of parts could
result in excess or obsolete components that cmdrsely affect our gross margins. For additiam@rmation regarding our purchase
commitments with contract manufacturers and suppliEee Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Siatés contained in this report.

WE DEPEND UPON THE DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PRODUCTS AND ENHANCEMENTS TO EXISTING PRODUCTS, AND IF
WE FAIL TO PREDICT AND RESPOND TO EMERGING TECHNOLO GICAL TRENDS AND CUSTOMERS' CHANGING
NEEDS, OUR OPERATING RESULTS AND MARKET SHARE MAY S UFFER

The markets for our products are characterizedapidly changing technology, evolving industry stamt$, new product introductions, and
evolving methods of building and operating networ®sr operating results depend on our ability teeliep and introduce new products into
existing and emerging markets and to reduce theéuatan costs of existing products. We believeitigstry is evolving to enable personal
and business process collaboration enabled by netddechnologies. As such, many of our strategtttives and investments are aimed at
meeting the requirements that a network capabteuttiple-party, collaborative interaction would denu, and the investments we have made
and our architectural approach are designed toletiad increased use of the network as the platforrall forms of communications and IT.
For example, in fiscal 2009 we launched our Cisodied Computing System, our next-generation emiegpdata center platform architected
to unite computing, network, storage access, artdalization resources in a single system, whiaffeisigned to address the fundamental
transformation occurring in the enterprise dataereiCisco Unified Computing System is one of salpriorities on which we are focusing
resources. Another example of a market transitierave focusing on is the move towards more prograiofm flexible and virtual networks.
In our view, this evolution is in its very earlyages, and we believe the successful products duntilss in this market will combine ASICs,
hardware, and software elements together.

The process of developing new technology, includéwnology related to more programmable, flexéid virtual networks, is complex and
uncertain, and if we fail to accurately predicttomsers' changing needs and emerging technologerad$ our business could be harmed. We
must commit significant resources, including theestments we have been making in our prioritiedeteeloping new products before
knowing whether our investments will result in puots the market will accept. In particular, if anodel of the evolution of networking to
collaborative systems does not emerge as we batiewl, or if the industry does not evolve as Wwelieve it will, or if our strategy for
addressing this evolution is not successful, mdmyuo strategic initiatives and investments maybao or limited value. For example, if we
do not introduce products related to network progrebility, such as software-defined-networking pratd, in a timely fashion, or if product
offerings in this market that ultimately succeed based on technology, or an approach to technotbgydiffers from ours, our business
could be harmed. Furthermore, we may not executeessfully on our vision because of challenges vagard to product planning and
timing, technical hurdles that we fail to overcome timely fashion, or a lack of appropriate reses. This could result in competitors, some
of which may also be our strategic alliance pagnproviding those solutions before we do and tdsearket share, net sales, and earnings.
The success of new products depends on severatgautcluding proper new product definition, compnt costs, timely completion and
introduction of these products, differentiationnefv products from those of our competitors, ancketaaicceptance of these products. There
can be no assurance that we will successfully iffeméw product opportunities, develop and bringviroducts to market in a timely mantr

or achieve market acceptance of our products ¢ptiealucts and technologies developed by othetswilrender our products or
technologies obsolete or noncompetitive. The priedand technologies in our newer product categsuel as Data Center and Collabora
as well as those in our Other Products categomywbrddentify as “emerging technologies” may naiye to have the market success we
anticipate, and we may not successfully identifg arvest in other emerging or new products.

CHANGES IN INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND MARKET CONDITIONS COULD LEAD TO CHARGES RELATED TO
DISCONTINUANCES OF CERTAIN OF OUR PRODUCTS OR BUSINESSES AND ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

In response to changes in industry and market tiondj we may be required to strategically reabgn resources and consider restructuring,
disposing of, or otherwise exiting businesses. dagision to limit investment in or dispose of dn@rtwise exit businesses may result in the
recording of special charges, such as inventorytacithology-related write-offs, workforce reductiowsts, charges relating to consolidation
of excess facilities, or claims from third partigso were resellers or users of discontinued pradu@tir estimates with respect to the useful
life or ultimate recoverability of our carrying bhe®f assets, including purchased intangible assetdd change as a result of such
assessments and decisions. Although in certaiannst our supply agreements allow us the opticarnael, reschedule, and adjust our
requirements based on our business needs prismmfders being placed, our loss contingencies imelyde liabilities for contracts that we
cannot cancel with contract manufacturers and sensplFurther, our estimates relating to the liibg for excess facilities are affected by
changes in real estate market conditions. Additipnae are required to perform goodwill impairméests on an annual basis and between
annual tests in certain circumstances, and futaoglgill impairment tests may result in a chargeaonings.
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In fiscal 2012 we largely completed a process conued in fiscal 2011 to lower our operating costs #msimplify our operating model and
concentrate our focus on selected foundationatipas. We have incurred significant restructuraiwrges as a result of these activities. The
changes to our business model may be disruptivkttenrevised model that we adopt may not be miient or effective than the aspects
of our business model that are being revised. Astime time, we believe the effect of these chanagprovided a one-time productivity
benefit that is not likely to be achieved on a tagbasis. Our restructuring activities, includingy related charges and the impact of the
related headcount reductions, could have a magiatrse effect on our business, operating resuitsfinancial condition.

OVER THE LONG TERM WE INTEND TO INVEST IN ENGINEERI NG, SALES, SERVICE, MARKETING AND
MANUFACTURING ACTIVITIES, AND THESE INVESTMENTS MAY  ACHIEVE DELAYED, OR LOWER THAN EXPECTED,
BENEFITS WHICH COULD HARM OUR OPERATING RESULTS

While we intend to focus on managing our costsamkenses, over the long term, we also intend tesinwm personnel and other resources
related to our engineering, sales, service, margetnd manufacturing functions as we focus on oundational priorities, such as leadership
in our core routing, switching and services, inahgdsecurity and mobility solutions; collaboratiatgta center virtualization and cloud; vid
and architectures for business transformation. Wdikely to recognize the costs associated wids¢hinvestments earlier than some of the
anticipated benefits, and the return on these tmests may be lower, or may develop more slowlgntive expect. If we do not achieve the
benefits anticipated from these investments, tiréfachievement of these benefits is delayed, perating results may be adversely affected.

OUR BUSINESS SUBSTANTIALLY DEPENDS UPON THE CONTINUED GROWTH OF THE INTERNET AND INTERNET-
BASED SYSTEMS

A substantial portion of our business and reverepedds on growth and evolution of the Internetuigiog the continued development of the
Internet, and on the deployment of our productsustomers who depend on such continued growthamidtéon. To the extent that an
economic slowdown or economic uncertainty and eelaeduction in capital spending adversely affpensling on Internet infrastructure we
could experience material harm to our businessatipg results, and financial condition.

Because of the rapid introduction of new produaid ehanging customer requirements related to nsastesh as cost-effectiveness and
security, we believe that there could be perforregmmoblems with Internet communications in the fefuvhich could receive a high degre:
publicity and visibility. Because we are a largeier of networking products, our business, opegatesults, and financial condition may be
materially adversely affected, regardless of whethenot these problems are due to the performahoer own products. Such an event cc
also result in a material adverse effect on theketaprice of our common stock independent of diedfects on our business.

WE HAVE MADE AND EXPECT TO CONTINUE TO MAKE ACQUISI TIONS THAT COULD DISRUPT OUR OPERATIONS
AND HARM OUR OPERATING RESULTS

Our growth depends upon market growth, our abititgnhance our existing products, and our abititiitroduce new products on a timely
basis. We intend to continue to address the nedduelop new products and enhance existing prodiucisgh acquisitions of other
companies, product lines, technologies, and peedoAequisitions involve numerous risks, includitng following:
« Difficulties in integrating the operations, systermexhnologies, products, and personnel of theiemdjgompanies, particularly
companies with large and widespread operationsoasdmplex products, such as Scientific-Atlanta,bBbe Starent, Tandberg
and NDS Group Limited

« Diversion of management's attention from normallydagperations of the business and the challengesasfaging larger and more
widespread operations resulting from acquisitions

» Potential difficulties in completing projects asisted with in-process research and developmemgilées

» Difficulties in entering markets in which we have or limited direct prior experience and where cetiiprs in such markets ha
stronger market positions

e Initial dependence on unfamiliar supply chainsedatively small supply partners
< Insufficient revenue to offset increased expensses@ated with acquisitions

e The potential loss of key employees, customersiloligors, vendors and other business partnerseo€dmpanies we acquire
following and continuing after announcement of asigion plans
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Acquisitions may also cause us to:
e Issue common stock that would dilute our currearsholders' percentage ownership

e Use a substantial portion of our cash resourceiscar debt, as we did in fiscal 2006 when we iglsaied sold $6.5 billion in
senior unsecured notes to fund our acquisitioncodrific-Atlanta

» Significantly increase our interest expense, leyer@nd debt service requirements if we incur aatdkiti debt to pay for an
acquisition

* Assume liabilities

* Record goodwill and nonamortizable intangible as#edt are subject to impairment testing on a eededsis and potential
periodic impairment charges

* Incur amortization expenses related to certaimiitde assets

» Incur tax expenses related to the effect of actiois on our intercompany research and developi@éiD”) cost sharing
arrangement and legal structure

* Incur large and immediate write-offs and restruoiand other related expenses

« Become subject to intellectual property or othigdition

Mergers and acquisitions of high-technology comesuaire inherently risky and subject to many faataitside of our control, and no
assurance can be given that our previous or fatcmeisitions will be successful and will not maadlyi adversely affect our business,
operating results, or financial condition. Failtwmemanage and successfully integrate acquisitionglamaterially harm our business and
operating results. Prior acquisitions have resutielwide range of outcomes, from successful éuotion of new products and technologies
to a failure to do so. Even when an acquired compas already developed and marketed products ttzer be no assurance that product
enhancements will be made in a timely fashion at gneacquisition due diligence will have identified pissible issues that might arise v
respect to such products.

From time to time, we have made acquisitions teatiited in charges in an individual quarter. Theksrges may occur in any particular
quarter, resulting in variability in our quartedgrnings. In addition, our effective tax rate fatufe periods is uncertain and could be impa
by mergers and acquisitions. Risks related to nedyrt development also apply to acquisitions. $desee the risk factors above, including
the risk factor entitled “We depend upon the deprlent of new products and enhancements to exiptiducts, and if we fail to predict and
respond to emerging technological trends and custgmhanging needs, our operating results andehahiare may suffer” for additional
information.

ENTRANCE INTO NEW OR DEVELOPING MARKETS EXPOSES US TO ADDITIONAL COMPETITION AND WILL LIKELY
INCREASE DEMANDS ON OUR SERVICE AND SUPPORT OPERATIONS

As we focus on new market opportunities-for examgtierage; wireless; security; transporting datécey, and video traffic across the same
network; and other areas within our newer prodoategories such as data center and collaboratioerging technologies, and our priorities-
we will increasingly compete with large telecommuations equipment suppliers as well as startup emieg. Several of our competitors n
have greater resources, including technical antheegng resources, than we do. Additionally, ast@mers in these markets complete
infrastructure deployments, they may require grdateels of service, support, and financing thanhaee provided in the past, especially in
emerging countries. Demand for these types of sergupport, or financing contracts may increagberfuture. There can be no assurance
that we can provide products, service, support,faxaghcing to effectively compete for these marieportunities.

Further, provision of greater levels of servicegport and financing by us may result in a delathtiming of revenue recognition. In
addition, entry into other markets has subjectetivail subject us to additional risks, particulattythose markets, including the effects of
general market conditions and reduced consumeidsnte.

INDUSTRY CONSOLIDATION MAY LEAD TO INCREASED COMPET ITION AND MAY HARM OUR OPERATING RESULTS

There has been a trend toward industry consolidati@ur markets for several years. We expecttthisd to continue as companies attem,
strengthen or hold their market positions in anhaxg industry and as companies are acquired ouaable to continue operations. For
example, some of our current and potential comgrstiior enterprise data center business have n@pasitions, or announced new strategic
alliances, designed to position them with the abith provide end-to-end
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technology solutions for the enterprise data ce@empanies that are strategic alliance partnessine areas of our business may acquire or
form alliances with our competitors, thereby redgdheir business with us. We believe that industnysolidation may result in stronger
competitors that are better able to compete asssnlece vendors for customers. This could leaddeemwariability in our operating results

and could have a material adverse effect on ounésss, operating results, and financial conditieurthermore, particularly in the service
provider market, rapid consolidation will lead ewfer customers, with the effect that loss of a meystomer could have a material impact on
results not anticipated in a customer marketplaceposed of more numerous participants.

PRODUCT QUALITY PROBLEMS COULD LEAD TO REDUCED REVE NUE, GROSS MARGINS, AND NET INCOME

We produce highly complex products that incorpotageling-edge technology, including both hardware software. Software typically
contains bugs that can unexpectedly interfere axiected operations. There can be no assuranceuhpteshipment testing programs will
be adequate to detect all defects, either oneslimidual products or ones that could affect numershipments, which might interfere with
customer satisfaction, reduce sales opportuniieaffect gross margins. From time to time, we haae to replace certain components and
provide remediation in response to the discoveryedécts or bugs in products that we had shippkdrélcan be no assurance that such
remediation, depending on the product involved, ldowt have a material impact. An inability to car@roduct defect could result in the
failure of a product line, temporary or permaneithdrawal from a product or market, damage to eputation, inventory costs, or product
reengineering expenses, any of which could havatanial impact on our revenue, margins, and netrirec

DUE TO THE GLOBAL NATURE OF OUR OPERATIONS, POLITIC AL OR ECONOMIC CHANGES OR OTHER FACTORS IN
A SPECIFIC COUNTRY OR REGION COULD HARM OUR OPERATI NG RESULTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

We conduct significant sales and customer supgmtagions in countries around the world and algmedd on non-U.S. operations of our
contract manufacturers, component suppliers artdhiiion partners. Although sales in several of emerging countries decreased during
the recent global economic downturn, several ofesnerging countries generally have been relatifady growing, and we have announced
plans to expand our commitments and expectationsriain of those countries. As such, our growibetiels in part on our increasing sales
into emerging countries. Our future results cowddrmterially adversely affected by a variety ofitpzdl, economic or other factors relating to
our operations inside and outside the United Statekiding impacts from the U.S. federal budgetuding the effect of the recent
sequestration, the global macroeconomic environmedtcontinuing challenges in Europe, whose maoro@nic condition could deteriorate
further, any or all of which could have a mateddlerse effect on our operating results and firdraindition, including, among others, the
following:

e The worldwide impact of the recent global econodownturn and related market uncertainty, includimgongoing European
economic and financial turmoil related to sovereaighbt issues in certain countries

« Foreign currency exchange rates

» Political or social unrest

« Economic instability or weakness or natural digasite a specific country or region; environmentad &rade protection measures
and other legal and regulatory requirements, sdméhizh may affect our ability to import our prodacto export our products
from, or sell our products in various countries

e Political considerations that affect service previdnd government spending patterns

e Health or similar issues, such as a pandemic aleeqic

- Difficulties in staffing and managing internatiormgderations

e Adverse tax consequences, including impositionitilvolding or other taxes on payments by subsiegari

WE ARE EXPOSED TO THE CREDIT RISK OF SOME OF OUR CUSTOMERS AND TO CREDIT EXPOSURES IN WEAKENED
MARKETS, WHICH COULD RESULT IN MATERIAL LOSSES

Most of our sales are on an open credit basis, tyiltal payment terms of 30 days in the Unitedestand, because of local customs or
conditions, longer in some markets outside theadh@tates. We monitor individual customer paymapgobility in granting such open credit
arrangements, seek to limit such open credit toumtsowe believe the customers can pay, and
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maintain reserves we believe are adequate to exysure for doubtful accounts. Beyond our opeditegrangements, we have also
experienced demands for customer financing andtémn of leasing arrangements. We expect denfandustomer financing to continue,
and recently we have been experiencing an inciieabés demand as the credit markets have beendregdy the recent global economic
downturn and related market uncertainty, includmgeased demand from customers in certain emergingtries. We believe customer
financing is a competitive factor in obtaining mess, particularly in serving customers involvedignificant infrastructure projects. Our I¢
financing arrangements may include not only finegdhe acquisition of our products and servicesalsd providing additional funds for
other costs associated with network installatiod iategration of our products and services.

Our exposure to the credit risks relating to onaficing activities described above may increasariicustomers are adversely affected by a
global economic downturn or periods of economicautainty. Although we have programs in place thatdesigned to monitor and mitigate
the associated risk, including monitoring of parkée risks in certain geographic areas, there eandassurance that such programs will be
effective in reducing our credit risks.

In the past, there have been significant bankraptamong customers both on open credit and withdodease financing arrangements,
particularly among Internet businesses and sepriceiders, causing us to incur economic or finanosses. There can be no assurance that
additional losses will not be incurred. Althougleske losses have not been material to date, fuiase$, if incurred, could harm our business
and have a material adverse effect on our operatisigits and financial condition. A portion of aales is derived through our distributors.
These distributors are generally given businesagdéhat allow them to return a portion of inventasceive credits for changes in selling
prices, and participate in various cooperative rating programs. We maintain estimated accrualsadindances for such business terms.
However, distributors tend to have more limitedafinial resources than other resellers and endeusésmers and therefore represent
potential sources of increased credit risk, becthusg may be more likely to lack the reserve resesito meet payment obligations.
Additionally, to the degree that turmoil in the ditemarkets makes it more difficult for some cus&mto obtain financing, those customers'
ability to pay could be adversely impacted, whiclturn could have a material adverse impact orbasiness, operating results, and financial
condition.

WE ARE EXPOSED TO FLUCTUATIONS IN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES THAT COULD NEGATIVELY IMPACT OUR
FINANCIAL RESULTS AND CASH FLOWS

Because a significant portion of our business idocted outside the United States, we face expdswrdverse movements in foreign
currency exchange rates. These exposures may cbaagéme as business practices evolve, and thelddhave a material adverse impact
on our financial results and cash flows. Histolicabur primary exposures have related to nondaEmominated sales in Japan, Canada, and
Australia and certain nondollar-denominated opega¢ixpenses and service cost of sales in Europie, America, and Asia, where we sell
primarily in U.S. dollars. Additionally, we have gosures to emerging market currencies, which caa batreme currency volatility. An
increase in the value of the dollar could increhsereal cost to our customers of our productb@sé markets outside the United States w

we sell in dollars, and a weakened dollar coulddase the cost of local operating expenses andigoent of raw materials to the extent:

we must purchase components in foreign currencies.

Currently, we enter into foreign exchange forwandtcacts and options to reduce the short-term imnplaforeign currency fluctuations on
certain foreign currency receivables, investmeantsl, payables. In addition, we periodically hedgicgrated foreign currency cash flows. (
attempts to hedge against these risks may notdmessful, resulting in an adverse impact on ouinuetime.

OUR PROPRIETARY RIGHTS MAY PROVE DIFFICULT TO ENFOR CE

We generally rely on patents, copyrights, trademaakd trade secret laws to establish and maiptajprietary rights in our technology and
products. Although we have been issued numeroes{zaand other patent applications are currenthylipg, there can be no assurance that
any of these patents or other proprietary rightsneit be challenged, invalidated, or circumventedhat our rights will, in fact, provide
competitive advantages to us. Furthermore, manyakpgcts of networking technology are governedbuystrywide standards, which are
usable by all market entrants. In addition, thene loe no assurance that patents will be issued perding applications or that claims allov
on any patents will be sufficiently broad to prdtear technology. In addition, the laws of someefgn countries may not protect our
proprietary rights to the same extent as do the lafithe United States. The outcome of any actiakan in these foreign countries may be
different than if such actions were determined urlde laws of the United States. Although we aredependent on any individual patents or
group of patents for particular segments of thertass for which we compete, if we are unable tdgmtoour proprietary rights to the totality
of the features (including aspects of productsqmteid other than by patent rights) in a marketmag find ourselves at a competitive
disadvantage to others who need not incur the antiat expense, time, and effort required to createvative products that have enabled us
to be successful.
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WE MAY BE FOUND TO INFRINGE ON INTELLECTUAL PROPERT Y RIGHTS OF OTHERS

Third parties, including customers, have in the pasl may in the future assert claims or initigtigdtion related to exclusive patent,
copyright, trademark, and other intellectual préypeights to technologies and related standardsaterelevant to us. These assertions have
increased over time as a result of our growth dedyeneral increase in the pace of patent claisertians, particularly in the United States.
Because of the existence of a large number of paterthe networking field, the secrecy of someddeg patents, and the rapid rate of
issuance of new patents, it is not economicallgtical or even possible to determine in advancethdrea product or any of its components
infringes or will infringe on the patent rights athers. The asserted claims and/or initiated litigacan include claims against us or our
manufacturers, suppliers, or customers, allegifrigngement of their proprietary rights with resp&zur existing or future products or
components of those products. Regardless of thi af¢hese claims, they can be time-consumingyltés costly litigation and diversion of
technical and management personnel, or require dewelop a non-infringing technology or enter ilitense agreements. Where claims are
made by customers, resistance even to unmeritoclairms could damage customer relationships. Tbanebe no assurance that licenses will
be available on acceptable terms and conditiorad,afl, or that our indemnification by our suppdievill be adequate to cover our costs if a
claim were brought directly against us or our coscs. Furthermore, because of the potential fdn biurt awards that are not necessarily
predictable, it is not unusual to find even argyabimeritorious claims settled for significant amtsu If any infringement or other intellect
property claim made against us by any third partsuiccessful, if we are required to indemnify gauer with respect to a claim against the
customer, or if we fail to develop non-infringirgchnology or license the proprietary rights on caruially reasonable terms and conditions,
our business, operating results, and financial itimmdcould be materially and adversely affected.

Our exposure to risks associated with the usetefié@ctual property may be increased as a resutagbisitions, as we have a lower level of
visibility into the development process with redpecsuch technology or the care taken to safegagaihst infringement risks. Further, in the
past, third parties have made infringement andlaimlaims after we have acquired technology tlaat hot been asserted prior to our
acquisition.

WE RELY ON THE AVAILABILITY OF THIRD-PARTY LICENSES

Many of our products are designed to include sakvea other intellectual property licensed fronrdhparties. It may be necessary in the
future to seek or renew licenses relating to variaspects of these products. There can be no aesutat the necessary licenses would be
available on acceptable terms, if at all. The ilighio obtain certain licenses or other rightd@obtain such licenses or rights on favorable
terms, or the need to engage in litigation regaydiese matters, could have a material adverseteffeour business, operating results, and
financial condition. Moreover, the inclusion in quoducts of software or other intellectual propdidcensed from third parties on a
nonexclusive basis could limit our ability to prat@ur proprietary rights in our products.

OUR OPERATING RESULTS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS COULD BE MATERIALLY HARMED BY UNCERTAINTIES OF
REGULATION OF THE INTERNET

Currently, few laws or regulations apply direcitygccess or commerce on the Internet. We couldaierrally adversely affected by
regulation of the Internet and Internet commercariy country where we operate. Such regulationkldoalude matters such as voice over
the Internet or using IP, encryption technologyesaaxes on Internet product sales, and accesgeshtor Internet service providers. The
adoption of regulation of the Internet and Interr@hmerce could decrease demand for our produdisasathe same time, increase the co
selling our products, which could have a materiblesse effect on our business, operating resuitsfiaancial condition.

CHANGES IN TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATION AND TARIFF S COULD HARM OUR PROSPECTS AND FUTURE
SALES

Changes in telecommunications requirements, olaégy requirements in other industries in whichaperate, in the United States or other
countries could affect the sales of our productgdrticular, we believe that there may be futir@nges in U.S. telecommunications
regulations that could slow the expansion of theise providers' network infrastructures and matériadversely affect our business,
operating results, and financial condition.

Future changes in tariffs by regulatory agencieapplication of tariff requirements to currentlytanffed services could affect the sales of
products for certain classes of customers. Additignin the United States, our products must cgmyith various requirements and
regulations of the Federal Communications Commisaitd other regulatory authorities. In countrietsinie of the United States, our prodt
must meet various requirements of local telecompatitins and other industry authorities. Changdariffs or failure by us to obtain timely
approval of products could have a material adveffeet on our business, operating results, andhirz condition.
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FAILURE TO RETAIN AND RECRUIT KEY PERSONNEL WOULD H ARM OUR ABILITY TO MEET KEY OBJECTIVES

Our success has always depended in large partraabdity to attract and retain highly skilled tetbal, managerial, sales, and marketing
personnel. Competition for these personnel is seerspecially in the Silicon Valley area of North€alifornia. Stock incentive plans are
designed to reward employees for their Idagn contributions and provide incentives for thiememain with us. Volatility or lack of positiy
performance in our stock price or equity incentiveards, or changes to our overall compensationrganogincluding our stock incentive
program, resulting from the management of shargidil and share-based compensation expense onighemay also adversely affect our
ability to retain key employees. As a result of onenore of these factors, we may increase oundninn geographic areas outside the United
States, which could subject us to additional geitipal and exchange rate risk. The loss of servafemny of our key personnel; the inability
retain and attract qualified personnel in the feifur delays in hiring required personnel, particyl engineering and sales personnel, could
make it difficult to meet key objectives, such iasdly and effective product introductions. In aduit companies in our industry whose
employees accept positions with competitors frejuemaim that competitors have engaged in imprdpeng practices. We have received
these claims in the past and may receive additidaahs to this effect in the future.

ADVERSE RESOLUTION OF LITIGATION OR GOVERNMENTAL IN VESTIGATIONS MAY HARM OUR OPERATING
RESULTS OR FINANCIAL CONDITION

We are a party to lawsuits in the normal courseusfbusiness. Litigation can be expensive, lengihy, disruptive to normal business
operations. Moreover, the results of complex lggateedings are difficult to predict. For exam@eazilian authorities have investigated our
Brazilian subsidiary and certain of its current &owiner employees, as well as a Brazilian impaofevur products, and its affiliates and
employees, relating to alleged evasion of impots$aand alleged improper transactions involvingsilesidiary and the importer. Brazilian
tax authorities have assessed claims against @zilRAn subsidiary based on a theory of joint lig&oiwith the Brazilian importer for import
taxes, interest, and penalties. In the first quantdiscal 2013, the Brazilian federal tax autties asserted an additional claim against our
Brazilian subsidiary based on a theory of joinbilidy with respect to an alleged underpaymentnadime taxes, social taxes, interest, and
penalties by a Brazilian distributor. The assedi@ims by Brazilian federal tax authorities are datendar years 2003 through 2008 and the
related asserted claims by the tax authorities fitwarstate of Sao Paulo are for calendar years #006gh 2007. The total asserted claims by
Brazilian state and federal tax authorities aggeetmapproximately $432 million for the allegedision of import and other taxes,
approximately $1.2 billion for interest, and appmately $1.9 billion for various penalties, all dehined using an exchange rate as of April
27, 2013. We have completed a thorough reviewefthtters and believe the asserted claims again&razilian subsidiary are without
merit, and we are defending the claims vigoroudlile we believe there is no legal basis for tHegad liability, due to the complexities and
uncertainty surrounding the judicial process indilrand the nature of the claims asserting joiability with the importer, we are unable to
determine the likelihood of an unfavorable outcagainst our Brazilian subsidiary and are unable&sonably estimate a range of loss, if
any. We do not expect a final judicial determinatior several years. An unfavorable resolutionagiduits or governmental investigations
could have a material adverse effect on our busjreserating results, or financial condition. Fddidional information regarding certain of
the matters in which we are involved, see ItemLg&gal Proceedings,” contained in Part Il of thigas.

CHANGES IN OUR PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES OR ADVERS E OUTCOMES RESULTING FROM EXAMINATION OF
OUR INCOME TAX RETURNS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR R ESULTS

Our provision for income taxes is subject to vditgtend could be adversely affected by earningadp®wer than anticipated in countries t
have lower tax rates and higher than anticipatesbimtries that have higher tax rates; by chang#sa valuation of our deferred tax assets
and liabilities; by expiration of or lapses in tR&D tax credit laws; by expiration of or lapsesa@x incentives; by transfer pricing
adjustments, including the effect of acquisitionsonir intercompany R&D cost sharing arrangementlegal structure; by tax effects of
nondeductible compensation; by tax costs relatédtéocompany realignments; by changes in accogmiimciples; or by changes in tax la
and regulations, including possible U.S. changabkddaxation of earnings of our foreign subsidigrithe deductibility of expenses
attributable to foreign income, or the foreign tagdit rules. Significant judgment is required &tatmine the recognition and measurement
attribute prescribed in the accounting guidanceufarertainty in income taxes. The accounting gusddor uncertainty in income taxes
applies to all income tax positions, including gogential recovery of previously paid taxes, whickettled unfavorably could adversely
impact our provision for income taxes or additiopaid-in capital. Further, as a result of certdiour ongoing employment and capital
investment actions and commitments, our incomeitam countries is subject to reduced tax ratésimsome cases is wholly exempt from
tax. Our failure to meet these commitments coultbeskly impact our provision for income taxes. dididion, we are subject to the
continuous examination of our income tax returnghgylnternal Revenue Service and other tax autbsriwe regularly assess the likelihood
of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinatio determine the adequacy of our provisionrfiooime taxes. There can be no assur
that the outcomes from these continuous examinatidth not have an adverse effect on our operatasylts and financial condition.
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OUR BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS ARE ESPECIALLY SUBJECT TO THE RISKS OF EARTHQUAKES, FLOODS, AND
OTHER NATURAL CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

Our corporate headquarters, including certain ofresearch and development operations are locatdekiSilicon Valley area of Northern
California, a region known for seismic activity. éitlonally, a certain number of our facilities doeated near rivers that have experienced
flooding in the past. Also certain of our suppliarsl logistics centers are located in regionshibae or may be affected by recent earthquake,
tsunami and flooding activity which has and couwdtinue to disrupt the flow of components and d&ljvof products. A significant natural
disaster, such as an earthquake, a hurricane,nmloa a flood, could have a material adverse impa®ur business, operating results, and
financial condition.

MAN-MADE PROBLEMS SUCH AS COMPUTER VIRUSES OR TERRORISM MAY DISRUPT OUR OPERATIONS AND HARM
OUR OPERATING RESULTS

Despite our implementation of network security nueas our servers are vulnerable to computer virusesk-ins, and similar disruptions
from unauthorized tampering with our computer systeAny such event could have a material adverfsetadn our business, operating
results, and financial condition. Efforts to linttite ability of malicious third parties to disrupetoperations of the Internet or undermine our
own security efforts may meet with resistance.ddiion, the continued threat of terrorism and h&ged security and military action in
response to this threat, or any future acts obtiem, may cause further disruptions to the ecomsrof the United States and other countries
and create further uncertainties or otherwise riedlgharm our business, operating results, andrfaial condition. Likewise, events such as
widespread blackouts could have similar negativesicts. To the extent that such disruptions or uat#ies result in delays or cancellations
of customer orders or the manufacture or shipmeatioproducts, our business, operating resultd,fimancial condition could be materially
and adversely affected.

WE ARE EXPOSED TO FLUCTUATIONS IN THE MARKET VALUES OF OUR PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS AND IN
INTEREST RATES; IMPAIRMENT OF OUR INVESTMENTS COULD HARM OUR EARNINGS

We maintain an investment portfolio of various hogs, types, and maturities. These securities anemlly classified as available-for-sale
and, consequently, are recorded on our Consolidgdéghce Sheets at fair value with unrealized gairlesses reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income, net ofQax portfolio includes fixed income securities aglity investments in publicly traded
companies, the values of which are subject to nhgmkee volatility to the extent unhedged. If suntiestments suffer market price declines,
as we experienced with some of our investmentsidudiscal 2009, we may recognize in earnings traie in the fair value of our
investments below their cost basis when the dedifedged to be other than temporary. For inforamategarding the sensitivity of and risks
associated with the market value of portfolio irwesnts and interest rates, refer to the secti@dtiQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk.” Our investments in private cames are subject to risk of loss of investmentitahprhese investments are inherently
risky because the markets for the technologiesadycts they have under development are typicalthé early stages and may never
materialize. We could lose our entire investmerthegse companies.

IF WE DO NOT SUCCESSFULLY MANAGE OUR STRATEGIC ALLI ANCES, WE MAY NOT REALIZE THE EXPECTED
BENEFITS FROM SUCH ALLIANCES AND WE MAY EXPERIENCE INCREASED COMPETITION OR DELAYS IN PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

We have several strategic alliances with largecmdplex organizations and other companies with ke work to offer complementary
products and services and have established avjeimtre to market services associated with ourddisified Computing System products.
These arrangements are generally limited to spamifijects, the goal of which is generally to faaie product compatibility and adoption of
industry standards. There can be no assurance ivealize the expected benefits from these stiateljances or from the joint venture. If
successful, these relationships may be mutuallgfieal and result in industry growth. However jatices carry an element of risk becaus
most cases, we must compete in some businesswveithas company with which we have a strategic atlimand, at the same time, cooperate
with that company in other business areas. Alsthe$e companies fail to perform or if these refahips fail to materialize as expected, we
could suffer delays in product development or otipgrational difficulties. Joint ventures can biiclilt to manage, given the potentially
different interests of joint venture partners.

OUR STOCK PRICE MAY BE VOLATILE

Historically, our common stock has experienced &gl price volatility, particularly as a resokltvariations between our actual financial
results and the published expectations of anafysisas a result of announcements by our compeétatais. Furthermore, speculation in the
press or investment community about our strategsition, financial condition, results of operatipbssiness, security of our products, or
significant transactions can cause changes intoak grice. In addition, the stock market has eiquered extreme price and volume
fluctuations that have affected the market pricenahy technology companies, in particular, and hiaae often been unrelated to the
operating performance of these companies. Theseré&aas well as general economic and politicat@@mns and the announcement of
proposed and completed acquisitions or other
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significant transactions, or any difficulties asated with such transactions, by us or our curegnotential competitors, may materially
adversely affect the market price of our commoulsto the future. Additionally, volatility, lack giositive performance in our stock price or
changes to our overall compensation program, imetudur stock incentive program, may adverselydfteir ability to retain key employees,
virtually all of whom are compensated, in part,dghen the performance of our stock price.

THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT OUR OPERATING RESULT S AND FINANCIAL CONDITION WILL NOT BE
ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY OUR INCURRENCE OF DEBT

We have senior unsecured notes outstanding in gregate principal amount of $16.0 billion that nmatat specific dates in 2014, 2016, 2!
2019, 2020, 2039 and 2040. We have also establsleedimercial paper program under which we mayeisbrt-term, unsecured
commercial paper notes on a private placement biasis a maximum aggregate amount outstandingyatiare of $3.0 billion. We had no
commercial paper notes outstanding under this progrs of April 27, 2013The outstanding senior unsecured notes bear fixtdinterest
payable semiannually, except $1.25 billion of thées which bears interest at a floating rate paygbhrterly. The fair value of the long-term
debt is subject to market interest rate volatilithie instruments governing the senior unsecuregsnmintain certain covenants applicable to
us and our subsidiaries that may adversely affecability to incur certain liens or engage in e@rttypes of sale and leaseback transactions.
In addition, we will be required to have availaliighe United States sufficient cash to repay ftlwr notes on maturity. There can be no
assurance that our incurrence of this debt or atwé debt will be a better means of providing ilitify to us than would our use of our
existing cash resources, including cash currerdlg bffshore. Further, we cannot be assured thatnaintenance of this indebtedness or
incurrence of future indebtedness will not adversdiect our operating results or financial coratiti In addition, changes by any rating
agency to our credit rating can negatively imphetyalue and liquidity of both our debt and eqsigurities, as well as the terms upon which
we may borrow under our commercial paper program.

ltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds
(a) None
(b) None

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities (iniamB, except peshare amounts

Total Number of Shares ~ Approximate Dollar Value

Purchased as Part of of Shares That May Yet
Total Number of Average Price Paid  Publicly Announced Plans Be Purchased Under the
Period Shares Purchased per Share or Programs Plans or Programs
January 27, 2013 to February 23, 2013 2 % 20.8: 2 3 5,07
February 24, 2013 to March 23, 2013 16 $ 21.02 16 $ 4,731
March 24, 2013 to April 27, 2013 23 % 20.7¢ 23 % 4,25¢
Total 41 20.8¢ 41

On September 13, 2001, we announced that our Bdddidrectors had authorized a stock repurchaserpmgAs of April 27, 2013, our
Board of Directors had authorized the repurchaseydb $82 billion of common stock under this pemgr As of April 27, 2013, we had
repurchased and retired 3.8 billion shares of ourroon stock at an average price of $20.35 per shaen aggregate purchase prices@?.7
billion since inception of the stock repurchasegpam, and the remaining authorized amount for stepkrchases under this program was
$4.3 billion with no termination date.

For the majority of restricted stock units granténd number of shares issued on the date theatestistock units vest is net of the effect of
minimum statutory tax withholding requirements wiitle appropriate taxing authorities. Although thestbheld shares are not issued or
considered common stock repurchases under our gtpaikchase program and therefore are not inclirdéee preceding table, they are
treated as common stock repurchases in our finksteiiements as they reduce the number of shaaes/tuld have been issued upon vesting
(see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statéshen
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Item 3.

Item 4.

Item 5.

Item 6.

Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.

Other Information
None.

Exhibits

The following documents are filed as Exhibits tis tleport:

31.1
31.2

32.1
32.2
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Princifadecutive Officer
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principatancial Officer
Section 1350 Certification of Principal ExecutivéfiGer

Section 1350 Certification of Principal FinancidfiGer

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Cisco Systems, Inc.

Date:May 20, 2013 By /s/ Frank A. Calderoni

Frank A. Calderoni

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and duly authorizedrsatory)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

31.1
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32.1
32.2
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
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101.LAB
101.PRE

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Princiflecutive Officer
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principatancial Officer
Section 1350 Certification of Principal ExecutivéfiGer

Section 1350 Certification of Principal FinancidfiGer

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docune
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, John T. Chambers, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on ForraQ0f Cisco Systems, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gniifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 20, 2013

/sl John T. Chambers

John T. Chambers
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Frank A. Calderoni, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ0f Cisco Systems, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or enéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirgg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tlgistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 20, 2013

/sl Frank A. Calderoni
Frank A. Calderoni

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John T. Chambers, do hereby certify, pursuadBtd).S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant toBe06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that, to my knowledge:

e the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Compfamythe quarter ended April 27, 2013 , as filethvihe Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”), fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&esrExchange Act of 1934;
and

» the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: May 20, 2013

/sl John T. Chambers

John T. Chambers

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Frank A. Calderoni, do hereby certify, pursumi8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuargt¢td® 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that, to my knowledge:

» the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Compfamythe quarter ended April 27, 2013, as filethwhe Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Reportfilly complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d) of the Securities Exchat
Act of 1934; and

» the information contained in the Report fairkggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: May 20, 2013

/sl Frank A. Calderoni

Frank A. Calderoni

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer)




